City of San Juan Bautista
The “City of History”

www.san-juan-bautista.ca.us

AGENDA

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS
311 Second Street
San Juan Bautista, California

DECEMBER 17, 2019

In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to attend or
participate in the meeting, please call the City Clerk’s Office at (831) 623-4661, extension 13 at least 48
hours prior to the meeting.

Any writings or documents provided fo a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this agenda
will be made available for public inspection at the meeting and in the City Clerk’s office located at City
Hall, 311 Second Street, San Juan Bautista, Califomia during normal business hours.

. Call to Order 6:00 PM
Pledge of Allegiance
Roll Call

. Ceremonial Iltems

A. Selection of New Mayor

B. Selection of New Vice Mayor

C. Honor Christmas Parade Volunteers

. Public Comment

. Consent Items

All matters listed under the Consent Agenda may be enacted by one motion authorizing actions indicated for those items
so designated. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless requested by a member of the City Council, a
staff member, or a citizen.

A. Approve Affidavit of Posting Agenda

B. Approve Affidavit of Posting Public Hearing Notice

C. Approve Minutes of the Regular Meeting of November 19, 2019

D. Waive Reading of Ordinances and Resolutions on Tonight’s Agenda Beyond Title

. Presentations, Informational Items and Reports

Proclamation Honoring Luis Valdez

Presentation of the Fiscal Year 2019 Audit — Ryan Jolley, CPA
Report by Fire Department

Monthly Financial Statements

City Manager’s Report

Reports from City Council Appointees to Regional Organizations and
Committees

Strategic Plan Committee Report

mmoomp
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6. Public Hearing ltems
A. Consider Approval of “2"d Addendum San Juan Bautista 2015-2019 Housing
Element, Mitigated Negative Declaration” in support of adoption of the San Juan
Bautista 5" Cycle Housing Element Four-Year Update (2019-2023).
B. Consider Adopting the San Juan Bautista 5" Cycle Housing Element Four-Year
Update (2019-2023).
C. Introduce an Ordinance to Rescind Cannabis Dispensary Ban Ordinance

7. Action ltems
A. Consider Resolution 2019-XX Accepting the Fiscal Year 2019 Audit

8. Discussion Iltems
A. City Guidelines for Marijuana Growers — Victor Gomez
B. Strategic Planning Committee Membership and By-Laws Review
C. No Fault Evictions
D. CDBG Grant Process — City Manager Don Reynolds

9. Comments
A. City Council
B. City Manager
C. City Attorney

10. Adjournment



Item #4A
City Council Meeting
December 17, 2019

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING

[, TRISH PAETZ, DO NOW DECLARE, UNDER THE PENALTIES OF PERJURY
THAT | AM THE DEPUTY CITY CLERK FOR THE CITY OF SAN JUAN
BAUTISTA, AND THAT | POSTED THREE (3) TRUE COPIES OF THE
ATTACHED CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA. | FURTHER DECLARE THAT
| POSTED SAID AGENDA ON THE 10" DAY OF DECEMBER 2019, AND |
POSTED THEM IN THE FOLLOWING LOCATIONS IN SAID CITY OF SAN
JUAN BAUTISTA, COUNTY OF SAN BENITO, CALIFORNIA.

1. ON THE BULLETIN BOARD AT CITY HALL, 311 SECOND STREET.
2. ON THE BULLETIN BOARD AT THE CITY LIBRARY, 801 SECOND

STREET.
3. ON THE BULLETIN BOARD AT THE ENTRANCE TO THE UNITED
STATES POST OFFICE, 301 THE ALAMEDA

SIGNED AT SAN JUAN BAUTISTA, COUNTY OF SAN BENITO, CALIFORNIA,
ON THE 10" DAY OF DECEMBER 2019.

J/(Mé\ Q)o\c{(

TRISH PAETZ, DEPUT\(/CITY CLERK







Item #4B
City Council Meeting
December 17, 2019

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE

l, TRISH PAETZ, DO NOW DECLARE UNDER THE PENALTIES OF PERJURY,
THAT I AM THE DEPUTY CITY CLERK FOR THE CITY OF SAN JUAN
BAUTISTA, AND THAT | POSTED THREE (3) TRUE COPIES OF THE
ATTACHED CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE. | FURTHER
DECLARE THAT | POSTED SAID NOTICE ON THE 6t DAY OF DECEMBER
2019, AND | POSTED THEM IN THE FOLLOWING LOCATIONS IN SAID CITY
OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA, COUNTY OF SAN BENITO, CALIFORNIA.

1. ONTHE BULLETIN BOARD AT CITY HALL, 311 SECOND STREET.
2. ON THE BULLETIN BOARD AT THE CITY LIBRARY, 801 SECOND

STREET.
3. ON THE BULLETIN BOARD AT THE ENTRANCE TO THE UNITED
STATES POST OFFICE, 301 THE ALAMEDA

SIGNED AT SAN JUAN BAUTISTA, COUNTY OF SAN BENITO, CALIFORNIA,
ON THE 10" DAY OF DECEMBER 2019.

J W (cu’i?

TRISH PAETZ, DEPUW CITY CLERK




NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
BY THE SAN JUAN BAUTISTA CITY COUNCIL

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN by the City of San Juan Bautista that, pursuant to
Government Code Section 65090, a public hearing will be conducted at the regular City
Council meeting to be held on Tuesday, December 17, 2019, at 6:00 PM, at City Hall
Council Chambers located in San Juan Bautista City Hall, 311 Second Street, San Juan
Bautista, CA. The public hearing will be held to consider:

1. Approval of “2"d Addendum San Juan Bautista 2015-2019 Housing Element,
Mitigated Negative Declaration” in support of adoption of the San Juan Bautista
5t Cycle Housing Element Four-Year Update (2019-2023).

2. Adoption of San Juan Bautista 5" Cycle Housing Element Four-Year Update
(2019-2023). The adoption of this Housing Element is an amendment to the San
Juan Bautista General Plan and affects all properties in the city.

3. Consideration of Rescinding Ordinance 2011-01 that Added Chapter 5-14.5 to
the Municipal Code to Permanently Prohibit Medical Marijuana Dispensaries

ALL INTERESTED PARTIES wishing to provide oral comment on the matters described
above may do so at this meeting or may provide written comments. Staff reports and the
full text of the items to be discussed will be available for public review at City Hall on
December 13, 2019. Written comments may be hand delivered; mailed to City Hall (311
Second Street, P.O. Box 1420, San Juan Bautista, CA 95045); or e-mailed to
cityplanning@san-juan-bautista.ca.us, no later than 5:00 p.m., December 17, 2019.

If a challenge is made on the actions described above, pursuant to Government Code
Section 65009, court testimony may be limited to only those issues raised at the public
hearing described in this notice or in written correspondence delivered to the City at or
prior to the public hearing.

Posted: December 6, 2019



Item #4C
City Council Meeting
December 17, 2019

CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
NOVEMBER 19, 2019
DRAFT MINUTES

1. CALL TO ORDER - Mayor Flores called the meeting to order at 6:00 P.M.

A. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE -~ Council Member DeVries led the Pledge of
Allegiance.

B. ROLL CALL Present: Mayor Flores, Vice Mayor Edge, Council Members
DeVries, Freeman and Jordan.

Staff Present: City Manager Reynolds, City Attorney Mall, City Clerk
Cent, Deputy City Clerk Paetz, Associate City Planner
Kennedy, Lead Library Technician Eagen

2. PUBLIC COMMENT ON ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA

Ken Halla thanked City staff for moving a speed limit sign to a better location on Lang
Street. Mirijana Tomas presented Mama's Morsels jams and jellies for sale at the
Windmill Market for the holidays and the proceeds would benefit the upkeep of the
Marentis house.

3. CONSENT ITEMS

A.Approve Affidavit of Posting Agenda

B. Approve Affidavit of Posting Public Hearing Notice

C.Adopt Ordinance 2019-06 Revising Section 11-18-030 (Site Plan and Design
Review Procedures) of Title 11 (Zoning) of the San Juan Bautista Municipal
Code, for the Purpose of Implementing the San Juan Bautista General Plan
Housing Element (Second Reading)

D.Adopt Ordinance 2019-07 Revising Chapter 2-5 (Reserved), of Title 2
(Government Organization and Administration), of the San Juan Bautista
Municipal Code to Address Reasonable Accommodations (Second Reading)

E. Adopt Ordinance 2019-08 Revising Section 5-9-310 (Application for Sewer
Permits), of Chapter 5-9 (Uniform Wastewater Regulation), of Title 5 (Public
Health, Safety and Welfare) of the San Juan Bautista Municipal Code; and
Revising Section 6-4-105 (Extension of Water Mains), of Chapter 6-4 (Water
Service), of Title 6 (Public Services), of the San Juan Bautista Municipal Code,
Both to Address Priority Utility Services for Affordable Housing (Second
Reading)

F. Adopt Ordinance 2019-09 Revising Various Sections of Title 11 (Zoning) of the
San Juan Bautista Municipal Code, Including:

= Section 11-02-050 (Permitted and Conditional Uses by Zoning District, Use
Matrix); and

= Section 11-29-010 (Definitions); Both for the Purpose of Implementing the
San Juan Bautista General Plan Housing Element (Second Reading)

G.Adopt Ordinance 2019-10 Adding a New Chapter 3.9 to the Municipal Code
Establishing a Permitting Process and Standards for Short-Term Rentals

City Council Regular Meeting Minutes — November 19, 2019 1
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City Council Meeting
December 17, 2019

(Second Reading)

H.Approve Minutes of the Regular Meeting of October 15, 2019

I. Approve Minutes of the Special Meeting of October 8, 2019

J. Approve Minutes of the Regular Meeting of September 17, 2019

K.Approve Minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 20, 2019

L. Approve Minutes of the Regular Meeting of July 16, 2019

M.Approve Minutes of the Special Meeting of June 26, 2018

N.Approve Resolution 2019-52 for Street Closure for Our Lady of Guadalupe
Procession

O.Approve Resolution 2019-53 Authorizing Donation of Fire Engine to Guatemala
Non-Profit

P. Approve Appointment of Youth Commissioners

Q.Waive Reading of Ordinances and Resolutions on Tonight’s Agenda Beyond
Title

Council Member Freeman made a motion to approve all items in 3. Consent ltems.

Second by Council Member DeVries. Motion passed 5-0.

4. PRESENTATIONS, INFORMATIONAL ITEMS AND REPORTS

A.Presentation on Resiliency and the Microgrid by Leslie Austin of Greenpower
City Manager Reynolds introduced Leslie Austin of Greenpower. Ms. Austin gave a slide
presentation about Greenpower’s work with public agencies. Robert Hymes of MYNT
gave a slide presentation of the services MYNT offers in regards to microgrids. Both Ms.
Austin and Mr. Hymes answered questions from council members. There was also
discussion between council members and City staff.

B.Presentation on Cannabis Rules and Regulations by Victor Gomez

Victor Gomez of Pinnacle Strategy gave a slide presentation. His presentation offered a
review of the City’s cannabis program and reviewed the Rules and Regulations. He
anticipated applications would start to be accepted in February 2020. Council members
asked questions of Mr. Gomez and staff. City Manger Reynolds and Mr. Gomez
presented an overview of the approval process, fees and costs involved. Mr. Gomez
described the application review being consistent rather than competitive. Mr. Gomez
also advised removing the reference to medical cannabis from the proposed rules and
regulations as the ordinance is for recreational cannabis. At the conclusion of Mr.
Gomez’s presentation, City Manager Reynolds recommended the Council go on to ltem
5. A. Adopt Resolution 2019-54 Setting Cannabis Rules and Regulations, and Application
for Cannabis Facilities. Mr. Gomez then provided the three corrections to the Resolution
for cannabis rules and regulations: 1) Delete “medical” from Section 3. B. i. 2) Delete
“medical’ from Section 4. A. 1. ii. in two places. Council Member DeVries made a motion
to go to Item 5. A. Adopt Resolution 2019-54 Setting Cannabis Rules and Regulations,
and Application for Cannabis Facilities. Being no objection, Mayor Flores went to ltem 5.
A

5. ACTION ITEMS

A.Adopt Resolution 2019-54 Setting Cannabis Rules and Regulations, and
Application for Cannabis Facilities

Staff had no additional information to add to the report during ltem 4. B. Presentation on

Cannabis Rules and Regulations. Public comment was received from Rachel Ponce with

City Council Regular Meeting Minutes — November 19, 2019 2
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December 17, 2019

questions and clarification regarding lifting the ban. She asked if cannabis would be
allowed in the same locations. Staff responded yes. There was no other public comment.
Council Member Jordan made a motion to adopt Resolution 2019-54 Setting Cannabis
Rules and Regulations, and Application for Cannabis Facilities. Second by Council
Member DeVries. Motion passed 5-0.

At this point in the meeting, Mayor Flores went back to Item 4. C. Library Annual Report
by City Lead Library Tech Rochelle Eagen.

C.Library Annual Report by City Lead Library Tech Rochelle Eagen

Lead Library Technician Rochelle Eagen gave a slide presentation reviewing the
accomplishments and changes at the San Juan Bautista City Library during FY19. The
Council and Staff thanked Ms. Eagen for her work at the Library.

At 7:15 P.M. Mayor Flores called for a recess.
At 7:18 P.M. Mayor Flores called the meeting back to order.

D.Monthly Financial Statements

City Manager Reynolds reviewed the Financial Statements and the upcoming schedule of

Fiscal Department events.

E. City Manager’s Report

City Manager Reynolds reviewed his report and handed out additional information on

Item 3. O. Approve Resolution 2019-53 Authorizing Donation of Fire Engine to Guatemala

Non-Profit from 4 the World, the organization receiving the fire engine.

F. Reports from City Council Appointees to Regional Organizations and
Committees

Council Member Freeman reported on the AMBAG meeting and the Intergovernmental

meeting he attended. Council Member Jordan reported on the Water Resources

Association of San Benito County meeting she attended. Mayor Flores reported on a

letter drafted with State Senator Caballero addressed to the San Benito County Board of

Supervisors in opposition to the proposed roundabout at State Highways 25 and 156. He

also reported on a presentation he made regarding municipal government to the students

at San Andreas School.

G.Strategic Plan Committee Report

Strategic Plan Committee Secretary Kennedy gave a report on the Committee’s

November 7 meeting, including a proposed community art project at State Highway 156

and Washington Street.

5. ACTION ITEMS

A.Adopt Resolution 2019-54 Setting Cannabis Rules and Regulations, and
Application for Cannabis Facilities

Action was taken on this item earlier in the meeting, after Item 4. B.

B.Approve Resolution 2019-55 Allowing for Release of Monumentation Bond for
the Copperleaf Subdivision (Edenbridge L.P.)

City Manager Reynolds reviewed City Engineer Bezhad’s report. He reported the

resolution had been updated and was the one before the Council tonight. There was no

public comment. Council Member Freeman made a motion to Approve Resolution 2019-

City Council Regular Meeting Minutes — November 19, 2019 3
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55 Allowing for Release of Monumentation Bond for the Copperleaf Subdivision

(Edenbridge L.P.) Second by Vice Mayor Edge. Motion passed 5-0.

C.Approve Resolution 2019-56 Approving a Second Amendment and Extension to
the Agreement Between the City and Harris and Associates for Planning
Services

City Manager Reynolds reviewed his report and answered questions from council

members. No public comments were received. Vice Mayor Edge made a motion to

Approve Resolution 2019-56 Approving a Second Amendment and Extension to the

Agreement Between the City and Harris and Associates for Planning Services. Second

by Council Member Freeman. Motion passed 5-0.

6. DISCUSSION ITEMS

A.Consider Changing Cannabis Ordinance

City Manager Reynolds presented his report and the concerns of potential business
owners regarding the requirement for a permanent foundation. Council members
discussed types of foundations. Victor Gomez of Pinnacle Strategy addressed the council
members’ questions and concerns. Public comment was received from Robert Hymes
that MYNT could work with growers to provide green energy. Dan Fernandez suggested
having water treatment on site. Ron Androdi commented that if the City of San Juan
Bautista required “bells and whistles” then growers would look at other places to start
cannabis businesses. Council Member DeVries suggested looking at other types of
foundations. Council Member Jordan would like to see pre- and post-soil testing, and
“green” energy and water requirements. Mayor Flores requested City Manager Reynolds
to look at the items brought up by council members and bring the item back.

7. COMMENTS

A.City Council

No comments were received.
B.City Manager

No comments were received.
C.City Attorney

No comments were received.

8. ADJOURNMENT
Council Member Jordan made a motion to adjourn. Second by Vice Mayor Edge. Motion
passed 5-0. The meeting was adjourned at 8:04 P.M.

César E. Flores, Mayor
ATTEST:

Laura Cent, City Clerk

City Council Regular Meeting Minutes — November 19, 2019 4
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WAIVER OF READING
OF ORDINANCES

State law requires that an ordinance be read in its entirety prior to adoption unless
the City Council waives reading beyond the title. Reading an entire ordinance at
the meeting is extremely time-consuming; reading of the title alone usually gives
the audience sufficient understanding of what the Council is considering.

To ensure that this waiver is consistently approved by the Council, Council should
make the waiver at each meeting, thus, you should do it at this point on the
Consent Agenda. The Council then does not have to worry about making this
motion when each ordinance comes up on the agenda.

GC36934
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PROCLAMATION RECOGNIZING LUIS VALDEZ

WHEREAS, Luis Valdez is regarded as one of the most important and influential
American playwrights living today; and

WHEREAS, Luis’ numerous feature film and television credits include, among others,
the box office hit film La Bamba starring Lou Diamonds Phillips, Cisco Kid starring
Jimmy Smits and Cheech Marin and Corridos: Tales of Passion and Revolution
starring Linda Ronstadt; and

WHEREAS, Luis’company, El Teatro Campesino, located in the rural community of
San Juan Bautista, is the most important and longest running Chicano Theater in the
United States; and

WHEREAS, El Teatro Campesino has brought numerous plays to San Juan Bautista
and to the Mission San Juan Bautista; and

WHEREAS, Luis’ hard work and long creative career have won him countless awards
including numerous LA Drama Critic Awards, Dramalogue Awards, Bay Area Critics
Awards, the prestigious George Peabody Award for exeellence in television, the
Presidential Medal of the Arts, the Governor’s Awatrd for the California Arts Council,
and Mexico’s prestigious Aguila Azteca Award given o individuals whose work
promotes cultural excellence and exchange between US and Mexico; and

WHEREAS, in May 2017, Luis Valdez was awarded the Tower Award by San Jose
State University, the university's highest award given to San Jose State exemplars; and

WHEREAS, Luis Valdez has -tatht at the University of California, Berkeley, UC
Santa Cruz, Fresno State University and was one of the founding professors of CSU
Monterey Bay; and

WHEREAS, Luis Valdez is the recipient of honorary doctorates from the University
of Rhode Island, the University of South Florida, Cal Arts, the University of Santa
Clara, and his alma mater, San Jose State University; and

WHEREAS, on January 17, 2020 Luis Valdez will receive a lifetime achievement
award at the Martin Luther King Breakfast at Bethany Church of God in Gilroy.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the City Council for the City of
San Juan Bautista does hereby recognize Luis Valdez for his contributions to the arts,
his exceptional performances and for bringing El Teatro Campesino to the City of San
Juan Bautista.

Mayor César E. Flores
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of San Juan Bautista, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of San Juan Bautista, California, (the City) as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of San Juan Bautista, California, as of June 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial
position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.



Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the budgetary comparison
information on pages 28 — 29 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not
a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally acoepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our
audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Management has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by
this missing information.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
City’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were derived
from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated in
all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 11, 2019, on our
consideration of the City of San Juan Bautista’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report
is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering City of San Juan
Bautista’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

December 11, 2019



CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2019

ASSETS

Cash and investments
Restricted cash and investments
Accounts receivable, net
Due from other governmental agencies
Internal balances
Prepaid expense and other assets
Capital assets (net of allowance
for depreciation)
Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amount on debt refunding
Total deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued expense
Accrued interest
Deposits
Long-term liabilities

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for capital improvements
Restricted for specific projects and programs
Unrestricted/(deficit)
Total net position

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

$ 4,386,537 $§ 2,085380 $ 6,471,917
- 1,232,397 1,232,397
34,235 190,310 224,545
257,160 - 257,160
1,735,470 (1,735,470) -
6,492 - 6,492
2,087,890 13,466,461 15,554,351
8,507,784 15,239,078 23,746,862
- 1,586,329 1,586,329
- 1,586,329 1,586,329
319,202 598,752 917,954
- 100,999 100,999
15,750 132,787 148,537
- 287,489 287,489
- 10,799,945 10,799,945
334,952 11,919,972 12,254,924
2,087,890 2,379,028 4,466,918
1,159,925 1,232,397 2,392,322
514,215 - 514,215
4,410,802 1,294,011 5,704,813
$ 8172832 $§ 4905436 $ 13,078,268

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2019
Non Major Total
Impact Governmental Governmental
General Fees Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments 2,967,569 § 1,139,327 § 279,641 § 4,386,537
Accounts receivable 34,235 - 34,235
Due from other governmental agencies 200,792 - 56,368 257,160
Due from other funds 1,793,157 - - 1,793,157
Prepaid expense and other assets 6,492 = - 6,492
Total assets 5,002,245 § 1,139,327 § 336,009 $ 6,477,581
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expense 293,468 § - § 25734 § 319,202
Due to other funds - - 57,687 57,687
Deposits 15,750 - - 15,750
Total liabilities 309,218 83,421 392,639
Fund Balance
Nonspendable
Advances to other funds 1,793,157 - - 1,793,157
Prepaid 6,492 - - 6,492
Restricted
Public safety - 163,236 38,693 201,929
Capital improvement projects - 728,249 183,834 912,083
Circulation improvements B 247,842 - 247,842
Lighting and landscape maintenance - - 35972 35,972
Committed
Buildings 124,950 - - 124,950
Vehicles 151,364 - - 151,364
Unassigned 2,617,064 - (5,911) 2,611,153
Total fund balance 4,693.027 1,139,327 252,588 6.084.942
Total liabilities and fund balance 5,002,245 § 1,139327 § 336,009 $ 6,477,581

See accompanying notes.



CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA

RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE TO NET POSITION
OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
JUNE 30, 2019

Total governmental fund balances $ 6,084,942

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial

resources and therefore are not reported in the funds 2,087,890
Net position of governmental activities $ 8,172,832

See accompanying notes.



CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE —
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
Non Major Total
Impact Governmental Governmental
General Fees Funds Funds
Revenue
Taxes $ 1,473,823 § - § 50,995 $ 1,524,818
Intergovernmental 21,919 - 231,908 253,827
Charges for services 67,255 - g 67,255
Licenses, permits and impact fees 209,897 369,522 38,000 617,419
Fines and forfeitures 1,629 - . 1,629
Interest and rent 80,771 - 1,452 82,223
Other 135,114 - - 135,114
Total revenue 1,990,408 369,522 322,355 2,682,285
Expenditures
Current
General government 460,661 - - 460,661
Public works 377,013 - 41,378 418,391
Parks and recreation 94,651 - - 94,651
Public safety 432,938 - 99,996 532,934
Community development 562,172 - 43911 606,083
Capital outlay 452,846 879,673 - 1,332,519
Total expenditures 2,380,281 879,673 185,285 3,445,239
Revenue over/(under) expenditures (389,873) (510,151) 137,070 (762,954)
Other Financing Sources/(Uses)
Operating transfers in/(out) 222,701 - (141,599) 81,102
Total other financing sources (uses) 222,701 - (141,599) 81,102
Change in Fund Balance (167,172) (510,151) (4,529) (681,852)
Fund Balance
Beginning of year 4,860,199 1,649,478 257,117 6,766,794
End of year $ 4,693,027 § 1,139,327 § 252,588 § 6,084,942

See accompanying noies. 7



CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA

RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Net change in fund balance - total governmental funds $ (681,852)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the Statement of
Activities, but they do not require the use of current financial
resources. Therefore, depreciation expense is not reported as
expenditures in Governmental Funds (88,119)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures, However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their
cstimatcd uscful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount of
capital outlay in the current period. 1,332,519

Change in net position of governmental activities $ 562,548

See accompanying notes. 8



CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION — PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2019
Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Total
Proprietary
Water Sewer Funds
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and investments $ 895,507 $ 1,189873 § 2,085,380
Restricted cash and investments 863,071 369,326 1,232,397
Accounts receivable, net 91,990 98,320 190,310
Total current assets 1,850,568 1,657,519 3,508,087
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
(net of allowance for depreciation) 7,413,720 6,052,741 13,466,461
Total noncurrent assets 7,413,720 6,052,741 13,466,461
Total assets 9,264,288 7,710,260 16,974,548
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amount on debt refunding 872,481 713,848 1,586,329
Total deferred outflows of resources 872,481 713,848 1,586,329
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expense 30,160 568,592 598,752
Accrued interest 55,549 45,450 100,999
Due to other funds 954,509 780,961 1,735,470
Deposits 132,787 - 132,787
Current portion of long-term debt 167,759 119,730 287,489
Total current liabilities 1,340,764 1,514,733 2,855,497
Noncurrent Liabilities
Long-term debt 5,939,970 4,859,975 10,799,945
Total liabilities 7,280,734 6,374,708 13,655,442
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 1,305,991 1,073,037 2,379,028
Restricted for capital improvements 863,071 369,326 1,232,397
Unrestricted 686,973 607,038 1,294,011
Total net position $§ 2,856,035 $ 2,049,401 $ 4,905,436

See accompanying notes.



CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSE, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION -
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Total
Proprietary
Water Sewer Funds
Operating Revenue
Charges for services $ 843,366 $ 910,082 $ 1,753,448
Other fees 468,652 272,838 741,490
Total operating revenue 1,312,018 1,182,920 2,494,938
Operating Expense
Contractual services and utilities 106,597 291,529 398,126
Personnel 127,638 113,110 240,748
Supplies, materials and repairs 101,206 573,351 674,557
Depreciation expense 326,616 308,686 635,302
Total operating expense 662,057 1,286,676 1,948,733
Operating income/(loss) 649,961 (103,756) 546,205
Nonoperating Revenue/(Expense)
Development impact fees 44,525 163,993 208,518
Interest income 26,039 22,349 48,388
Interest expense (271,308) (220,954) (492,262)
Total nonoperating revenue/(expense) (200,744) (34,612) (235,356)
Net income/(loss) before transfers 449,217 (138,368) 310,849
Operating Transfers In/(Out) (44,606) (36,496) (81,102)
Change in Net Position 404,611 (174,864) 229,747
Net Position
Beginning of year 2,451,424 2,224,265 4,675,689
End of year $ 2,856,035 $ 2,049,401 $ 4,905,436

See accompanying notes. 10



CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Total
Proprietary
Water Sewer Funds
Operating Activities
Receipts from customers and users $ 1,364,892 $ 1,177,012 $ 2,541,904
Payments for contractual services and utilities (238,984) (291,529) (530,513)
Payments to employees (127,638) (113,110) (240,748)
Payments to suppliers (101,206) (211,614) (312,820)
Net cash provided by operating activities 897,064 560,759 1,457,823
Non-capital Financing Activities
Payments and transfers (to)/from other funds (44,606) (36,496) (81,102)
Net cash provided by (used in)
noncapital financing activities (44,606) (36,496) (81,102)
Capital and Related Financing Activities
Payments from developers 44,525 163,993 208,518
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,191,784) (570,346) (1,762,130)
Payments received from other funds (29,840) (24,417) (54,257)
Bond premium 35,733 29,236 64,969
Principal paid on long-term debt (217,469) (122,183) (339,652)
Interest paid on long-term debt (272,483) (221,915) (494,398)
Net cash provided by (used in) capital and
related financing activities (1,631,318) (745,632) (2,376,950)
Investing Activities
Interest received 26,039 22,349 48,388
Net cash provided by investing activities 26,039 22,349 48,388
Net Decrease in Cash (752,821) (199,020) (951,841)
Cash
Beginning of year 2,511,399 1,758,219 4,269,618
End of year $ 1,758,578 § 1,559,199 $ 3,317,777
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Operating income (loss) $ 649,961 $  (103,756) $ 546,205
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation expense 326,616 308,686 635,302
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable 23,359 (5,908) 17,451
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable,
Accrued Liabilities and Deposits (102,872) 361,737 258,865
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 897,064 § 560,759 § 1,457,823
See accompanying notes. 11



CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the City of San Juan Bautista (the City) have been prepared in conformity with
Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to
governmental entities. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

Reporting Entity

The City of San Juan Bautista, State of California (the "City"), was incorporated in 1869. The City operates
under a Council-Manager form of government. The City's major operations include public safety; highways
and streets; sewer and water; parks and recreation; building inspection; public improvements; planning and
zoning; and general administrative services.

Dasis of P'resentation — Fund Accounting

Government-Wide Financial Statements — The Government-Wide Financial Statements (the Statement of
Net Position and the Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position) report information of all of the
nonfiduciary activities of the primary government. For the most part, eliminations have been made to
minimize the double counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental
and business-type activities of the City. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
inter-governmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely significantly
on fees charged to external parties.

The Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for each segment of the business-type activities of the City and for each function of the
City’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or
function and are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include 1) charges paid by
the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted
to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified
as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Net Position is restricted when constraints placed on them are either externally imposed or are imposed by
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Internally imposed designations of resources are not
presented as restricted net position. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use,
generally, it is the City’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are
needed.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements — The Governmental Fund Financial Statements provide
information about the City’s funds. Separate statements for each fund category — governmental and
proprietary are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and
enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental funds are separately
aggregated and reported as non-major funds.

12



CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party
receives and gives up essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies and investment
earnings, result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities.

The City reports the following major governmental fund:

General Fund — The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used for all financial
resources except those required legally, or by sound financial management to be accounted for in another
fund. Generally, the General Fund is used to account for those traditional governmental services of the City,
such as police and fire protection, planning and general administrative services.

Impact Fees Fund — The Impact Fees Fund accounts for monies received related to impact fees.
The City reports the following major enterprise funds:

Water Fund — The Water Fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the City’s water treatment and
water transmission and distribution systems.

Sewer Fund — The Sewer Fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the City’s sewer system.

Basis of Accounting

The Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses
are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.
Nonexchange transactions, in which the City gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving)
equal value in exchange, include property and sales taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On an accrual
basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenues
from sales tax are recognized when the underlying transactions take place. Revenues from grants,
entitlements and donations are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligible requirements have been
satisfied.

Governmental Funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available.
Property and sales taxes, interest, certain state and federal grants and charges for services are accrued when
their receipt occurs within sixty days after the end of the accounting period so as to be both measurable and
available. Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and
judgments are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as
expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and capital leases are reported as
other financing sources.

13



CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Proprietary Funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a Proprietary Fund’s principal ongoing operations. Revenues and expenses not meeling this
definition are reported as non-operating.

Financial Statement Amounts

Cash and Investments — Cash and investments represent the City's cash bank accounts including but not
limited to certificates of deposit, money market funds and cash management pools for reporting purposes in
the Statement of Cash Flows. Additionally, investments with maturities of three months or less when
purchased are included as cash equivalents in the Statement of Cash Flows.

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds. Interest earnings as a
result of this pooling are distributed to the appropriate funds based on month end cash balances in each fund.

Accounts Receivable — Billed but unpaid services provided to individuals or non-governmental entities are
recorded as accounts receivable. An allowance for doubtful accounts is provided to account for potentially
uncollectible amounts.

San Benito County is responsible for the assessment, collection and apportionment of property taxes for all
taxing jurisdictions. Property taxes are levied in equal installments on November 1 and February 1. They
become delinquent on December 10 and April 10, respectively. The lien date is March 1 of each year.
Property taxes are accounted for in the General Fund. Property tax revenues are recognized when they
become measurable and available to finance current liabilities. The City considers property taxes as
available if they are collected within 60 days after year end. Property tax on the unsecured roll are due on
the March 1 lien date and become delinquent if unpaid on August 31. However, unsecured property taxes
are not susceptible to year end accrual. The County adopted the alternative method of secured property tax
apportionment available under the Revenue and Taxation Code of the State (also known as the “Teeter
Plan”) wheteby secured property taxes were distributed to participating taxing on the basis of the tax levy,
including any uncollected amounts at fiscal year-end. The County, as administrator, benefits from future
collections of penalties and interest on delinquent taxes. Taxes receivable are recorded as of the date levied.
The County is still using the Teeter Plan as of June 30, 2019.

The City is permitted by Article XIIIA of the State of California Constitution (known as Proposition 13) to
levy a maximum tax of $1.00 per $100 of full cash value.

Interfund Receivables/Payables — ltems classified as interfund receivable/payable represent short-term
lending/borrowing transactions between funds. This classification also includes the current portion of an
advance to or from another fund.

Capital Assets — Capital outlays are recorded as expenditures of the General and Special Revenue Funds and
as assets in the Government-Wide Financial Statements to the extent the City’s capitalization threshold is
met.

14



CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns in the Government-Wide Financial Statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as
assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $1,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.
Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated
capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
assets lives are not capitalized. Betterments and major improvements which significantly increase values,
change capacities or extend useful lives are capitalized. Upon sale or retirement of fixed assets, the cost and
related accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts and any resulting gain or loss is
included in the results of operations.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities are included as part of the
capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units, are depreciated
using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Years
Buildings, structures and improvements 40
Infrastructure 40
Equipment 5-10

Deferred Outflow/Inflows of Resources — In addition to assets, liabilities and net position, the statement of
net position reports separate sections for deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources.
Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of resources that applies to a future period(s) and
will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until then. Conversely, deferred inflows of
resources represent an acquisition of resources that applies to a future period(s) and will not be recognized as
an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

The deferred charges from debt retirement relate to the defeasance costs of the City’s 2008 Water and Sewer
Certificates of Participation. The balance is being amortized over a twenty-eight year period.

Compensated Absences — It is the City's policy to permit all employees to accumulate eamned but unused
vacation and compensatory time benefits. All vacation pay is accrued when earned in the government-wide
and proprietary fund financial statements.

Sick leave can be accumulated, but vesting is limited and will not be paid upon termination. For this reason,
the City does not accrue any costs relating to sick leave.




CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Long-Term Obligations — In the Government-Wide Financial Statements, and Proprietary Fund types in the
fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or Proprietary Fund Type Statement of Net
Position. Debt principal payments of both government and business-type activities are reported as decreases
in the balance of the liability on the Statement of Net Position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred
and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net
of the applicable bond premium or discount.

In the fund financial statements, however, debt principal payments of Governmental Funds are recognized as
expenditures when paid. Governmental Fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond
issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on
debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual
debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Non-Current Governmental Assets/Liabilities — GASB Statement No. 34 eliminates the presentation of
account groups, but provides for these records to be maintained and incorporates the information into the
Governmental Activities column in the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position.

Net Position — The government-wide and business-type activities fund financial statements utilize a net
position presentation. Net position are categorized as invested capital assets (net of related debt), restricted
and unrestricted.

o Net Investment in Capital Assets — This category groups all capital assets, including infrastructure,
into one component of net position. Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances of debt
that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of these assets reduce the
balance in this category.

o Restricted Net Position — This category presents external restrictions on net position imposed by
creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed
by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

o Unrestricted Net Position — This category represents net position of the City, not restricted for any
project or other purpose.

Fund Equity — In the fund financial statements, governmental fund balance is made up of the following
components:

e Nonspendable fund balance typically includes inventories, prepaid items, long-term portion of loans
receivable, nonfinancial assets held for resale and other items that must be maintained intact pursuant
to legal or contractual requirements, such as endowments.

o Restricted fund balance category includes amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or through
enabling legislations.

16



CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

* Committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific
purposes determined by a formal action of the City Council. The City Council has the authority to
establish, modify, or rescind a fund balance commitment.

® Assigned fund balance are amounts designated by the City Council for specific purposes and do not
meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed.

® Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification that includes all spendable amounts in the
General Fund not contained in other classifications.

When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted (committed,
assigned, or unassigned) fund balances are available, the City’s policy is to apply restricted first. When
expenditures are incurred for purposes for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are
available, the City’s policy is to apply committed fund balance first, then assigned fund balance, and finally
unassigned fund balance.

Use of Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during
the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

17



CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Note 2 — Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

California law authorizes the City to invest in obligations of the United States Treasury, agencies and
instrumentalities, certificates of deposit or time deposits in banks and savings and loan associations which
are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

In accordance with applicable sections of the California Government Code and the San Juan Bautista
Municipal Code, the City prepares and legally adopts an annual balanced budget on a basis consistent with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Annual appropriated budgets are
adopted for the General Fund, specific Special Revenue Funds, and specific Capital Projects Funds. Budget
plans are adopted for Proprietary Funds. A proposed budget is presented to the City Council during June of
each- year for review. The Council holds public hearings and may add to, subtract from, or change
appropriations within the revenues and reserves estimated as available. Expenditures may not legally exceed
budgeted appropriations at the fund level. Supplementary appropriations which alter the total expenditures
of any fund, or expenditures in cxcess of total budgeted fund appropriations, must be approved by the City
Council.

All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end to the extent they have not been expended or encumbered.
Note 3 — Cash and Investments

The City pools all of its cash and investments except those funds required to be held by outside fiscal

agents under the provisions of bond indentures. Interest income earned on pooled cash is allocated to the

various funds on average cash balances. Interest income from cash investments held with fiscal agents is

credited directly to the related funds.

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2019 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as
follows:

Statement of Net Position:

Cash and Investments $ 6,471,917
Restricted Cash and Investments 1,232,397
Total Cash and Investments $ 7,704,314

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2019 consist of the following:

Cash on hand $ 200
Deposits with Financial Institutions 2,645,224
Statewide Community Infrastructure Program 1,178,859
Local Agency Investment Fund 3,469,365
Held by Fiscal Agent:

Money Market Mutual Funds 410,666
Total Cash and Investments $ 7,704,314

18



CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Note 3 — Cash and Investments (Continued)

Fair Value Measurements

The framework for measuring fair value provides a fair value hierarchy that categorizes the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three levels. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest
priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and lowest
priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described as
follows:

Level 1:  Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or
liabilities in active markets that a government can access at the measurement date.

Level2: Inputs to valuation methodology include inputs — other than quoted prices included within Level
1 —that are observable for an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3:  Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement.

The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement level within a fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest
level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.

LAIF is valued based on the City’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF
portfolio (Level 2 input).

The City had the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2019;

June 30,
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2019
Investments by fair value level:
Equity Securities:
LAIF $ - $3,469365 $ - $3,469365
Total Equity Securities - 3,469,365 - 3,469,365
Investments carried at amortized cost:
Bank Deposits and Cash on Hand 2,645,424
Statewide Community Infrastructure Program 1,178,859
Money Market Mutual Funds 410,666
Total Investments amortized at cost 4,234,949
Total Investments $ 7,704,314
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CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Note 3 — Cash and Investments (Continued)
Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City’s Investment Policy

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the City by the California
Government Code (or the City’s investment policy, where more restrictive). The table also identifies
certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the City’s investment policy, where more
restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. The City’s
investment policy does not contain any specific provisions intended to limit the City’s exposure to interest
rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. This table does not address investments of debt
proceeds held by bond trustee that are governed by the provisions of debt agreements of the City, rather
than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the City’s investment policy.

Minimum Maximum Maximum
Maximum Credit Percentage Investment
Authorized Investment Type Maturity Quality of Portfolio In One Issuer
U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None None None
U.S. Agency Securities 5 years None None None
Banker's Acceptances 180 days None 20% 10% or $5 million
Commercial Paper 180 days A 15% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 2 years None 30% None
Medium-Term Notes 5 years AA 20% 10%
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A AAA 20% 10%
Repurchase Agreements | year None None None
Time Deposits 2 years None 10% None
County Pooled Investment Funds N/A N/A None None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None $40 million None
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CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Note 3 — Cash and Investments (Continued)
Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value
to changes in market interest rates. As of June 30, 2019 the City had the following investments:

Investment Type Amount Maturity Date
Local Agency Investment Fund $ 3,469,365 N/A
Held by Fiscal Agent:
Money Market Mutual Funds 410,666 N/A
Total $ 3,880,031

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of
the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California
Government Code, the City’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of year end for
each investment type.

Minimum Rating as of Year End

Legal Not
Investment Type Amount Rating Rated
Local Agency Investment Fund $ 3,469,365 N/A $ 3,469,365
Held by Fiscal Agent:
Money Market Mutual Funds 410,666 N/A 410,666
Total $§ 3,880,031 $ 3,880,031

Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy of the City contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one
issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. At times, the City's bank accounts may
exceed federally insured limits. The City has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is
not exposed to any significant credit risk on its cash and cash equivalents.
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CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Note 3 — Cash and Investments (Continued)

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failute of a depositury financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The California Government Code and the City’s
investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial
credit risk for deposits, other than the following provision for deposits: The California Government Code
requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging
securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by
the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least
110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. As of June 30, 2019, the carrying amount of the
City’s bank deposits was $2,645,224, and the respective bank balances totaled $2,780,633, of the total bank
balance. Of the bank balances, only $250,000 is insured through the Federal Depository Insurance
Company. The remaining balance is to be collateralized by the bank.

The custodial risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a
transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that
are in the possession of another party. The California Government Code and the City’s investment policy do
not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for
investments. With respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct investments in
marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government’s indirect investment in
securities through the use of mutual funds or government investment pools (such as LAIF).

Investment in State Investment Pool

The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by the
California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair value
of the City’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based
upon the City’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to
the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting
records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.
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CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Note 4 — Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2019, was as follows:

Balance . Balance
July 1, 2018 Additions Retirements June 30, 2019

Governmental Activities

Capital assets, not being depreciated

Land $ 22,610 $ - $ - § 22,610
Construction in progress - 879,673 - 879,673
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 22,610 879,673 - 902,283

Capital assets, being depreciated

Buildings and improvements 1,144,618 173,603 - 1,318,221
Infrastructure 610,819 186,516 - 797,335
Machinery and equipment 938,210 92,727 - 1,030,937
Total capital assets, being depreciated 2,693,647 452,846 - 3,146,493

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements (734,990) (30,887) - (765,877)

Infrastructure (278,352) (29,608) - (307,960)

Machinery and equipment (859,425) (27,624) - (887,049)
Total accumulated depreciation (1,872,767) (88,119) - (1,960,886)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 820,880 364,727 - 1,185,607
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 843,490 § 1,244,400 $ - § 2,087,890
Business-Type Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated

Land $ 234,783 § 252492 § - § 487,275
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 234,783 252,492 - 487,275
Capital assets, being depreciated

Building 323,861 - - 323,861

Improvements other than buildings 17,959,275 1,249,696 - 19,208,971

Machinery and equipment 743,818 259,942 - 1,003,760
Total capital assets, being depreciated 19,026,954 1,509,638 - 20,536,592
Less: accumulated depreciation (6,922,104) (635,302) - (7,557,406)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 12,104,850 874,336 - 12,979,186
Business-type activities capital assets, net § 12339633 $ 1,126,828 § - § 13,466,461
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CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Note 4 — Capital Assets (Continued)
Depreciation expense was charged to the following functions in the Statement of Activities:

Governmental Functions:

General Government $ 2,513
Public Works 47,902
Parks and Recreation 18,208
Public Safety 19,496

$ 88,119

Business-Type Functions:

Water $ 326,616
Sewer 308,686
$ 635,302

Note 5 — Long-Term Debt

The City generally incurs long-term debt to finance projects or purchase assets which will have useful
lives equal to or greater than the related debt.

In governmental fund types, debt discounts and issuance costs are recognized in the current period. Debt
discounts and issuance costs incurred in proprietary funds are deferred and amortized over the term of the
debt using the bonds-outstanding method, which approximates the effective interest method. The City’s
debt transactions are summarized below and discussed in detail thereafter:

Balance Balance Current
July 1, 2018 Additions Retirements _June 30, 2019 Portion

Business-Type Activities Long Term Debt

Truck Capital Lease $ 4,692 § - 3 3,733 § 959 % 959
Water Meter Note Payable 90,079 - 68,549 21,530 21,530
2015 Enterprise Revenue Bonds 11,145,000 - 260,000 10,885,000 265,000
Plus Unamortized Premium on Bond 187,315 - 7,370 179,945 7.370

Total Business-Type Activities Debt $ 11,427,086 § - $ 339,652 $§ 11,087.434 § 294,859

Long-term debt payable at June 30, 2019 was comprised of the following individual issues:

Truck Capital Lease — In December of 2016, the City entered into a capital lease agreement with GM
Financial for the purchase of a truck. Interest and principal payments of $969 are payable quarterly, with
interest at 4.3 percent through September 2019.

Water Metcr Note Payable — In June of 2016, the City entered into a loan agreement for $203,966 with
Trigen Leasing LLC for the purchase of water meters. Terms of the note call for monthly payments of
$5,818 including interest at 2.96 percent, which begins October 2016 and will mature in October 2019.
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CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Note 5 — Long-Term Debt (Continued)

2015 Enterprise Revenue Bonds — In December 2015, the City issued Series 2015 Enterprise Revenue
Bonds for the principal amount of $11,640,000. The issuance was to refund the outstanding principal
balance of the 2008 Water and Sewer COP and the Pavex Note payable described above. In addition, the
proceeds of the sale of the bond were used to provide funding to improve the City’s water system as well as
paying the costs of issuance. The reacquistion price exceeded the net carrying amount of the old debt by
$1,819,135. The City refunded the above debts to reduce its total debt service over 28 years by $4,125,856
and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present values of debt service payments on the old
and new debt) of $1,947,479. The bonds bear interest ranging from 3.0% to 5.0% and are payable semi-
annually commencing April 2016 through October 2043. Debt service is secured by a pledge of net revenues
of the City’s Water and Sewer Systems. The City covenants that it shall prescribe, revise and collect such
charges for the services and facilites of the water and sewer systems which shall produce revenues sufficient
in each fiscal year to provide gross revenues which are sufficient to pay all water and sewer operation and
maintenance costs and all bond installment payments and produce net water and sewer revenues equal to at
least 1.25 times debt service coming due and payable during such fiscal year. The City is in compliance with
those covenants as of June 30, 2019. Cash basis debt service paid during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019
totaled $668,638. Total water and sewer system net revenues calculated in accordance with the covenants
were $1,357,311 and net revenue available for debt service was 2.03 times debt service at June 30, 2019.

The annual requirement to amortize the principal and interest on long-term debt at June 30, 2019, were as
follows:

Years ending June 30, Principal Interest
2020 $ 287,489 § 399,575
2021 275,000 388,638
2022 285,000 377,438
2023 300,000 365,738
2024 310,000 351,988
2025-2029 1,800,000 1,519,340
2030-2034 2,125,000 1,187,391
2035-2039 2,515,000 804,152
2040-2044 3,010,000 289,500

$ 10,907,489 $ 5,683,760
Net of unamortized premiums 179,945
Net long-term debt $ 11,087,434
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CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Note 6 — Deferred Compensation Plan

On October 1, 1999, the City established a deferred compensation plan for its employees which provides
them an opportunity to save for retirement. The plan meets the requirements of Internal Revenue Code
Section 457. Under the plan, empioyees make tax deferred coniributions up to the limits established by the
Internal Revenue Service. The contributions made to the plan may be withdrawn only upon retirement
seperation from service, death or unforseeable emergency. Employees are 100% vested in their
contributions from the first date of participation. The plan provides for varying matching contributions.

The plan is administered by the City. The participants are offered a choice of investment options and make
their own investment decisions. The City has fiduciary obligation for due care in the administration of the
plan, but is not responsible for the investments or performance results of the investment products offered
under the plan, therefore, the City is not required to report these funds on the City’s financial statements.

Note 7 — Risk Management

The City of San Juan Bautista is insured under the Public Agency Risk Sharing Authority of California
(PARSAC) liability program. Protection is afforded for “bodily injury, property damage, personal injury and
public officials’ errors and omissions, subject to certain limitations”.

Limit of protection — $995,000 ultimate net loss as the result of any occurrence because of bodily injury,
property damage, personal injury or public officials’ errors and omissions or any combination therof in
excess of the retained limit.

Retained limit — $5,000 ultimate net loss as the result of any occurrence because of bodily injury, property
damage, personal injury or public officials’ errors and omissions or any combination thereof.

Complete audited financial statements for PARSAC can be obtained from PARSAC’s office at 1523
Response Road, Suite One, Sacramento, CA 95815.

Note 8 - Advances

In August 2016 the City formalized an advance agreement between the City’s General Fund and the Water and
Sewer Funds for the amount of $1,895,844. The amount is payable by the Water and Sewer Funds to the General
Fund over a period of 29 years at an interest rate of 1.5 percent payable in annual payments of $81,102.

Advances from and to balances as of June 30, 2019 are as follows:

Advance From Advance To

Major Governmental Funds:

General Fund $ - 1,793,158
Nonmajor Governmental Funds:

Cops Grant Fund 17,675 -

Maintenance Districts Fund 40,012 -
Proprietary Funds:

Water Fund 954,509 -

Sewer Fund 780,962 -

$ 1,793,158 § 1,793,158
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CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Note 9 — Interfund Transfers

With the City Council approval, resources may be transferred from one City fund to another. The purpose of
the majority of transfers is to reimburse a fund that has made expenditures on behalf of another fund.
Transfers within fund types have been eliminated with the government-wide financial statements. Transfers
in and out for the year ended June 30, 2019 consisted of the following:

Transfers In Transfers Out

Major Governmental Funds:

General Fund $ 222,701 $ -
Nonmajor Governmental Funds:

COPS Grant - 58,193

Gas Tax Fund - 67,677

Roads & Restrooms Fund - 14,725

Maintenance Districts Fund = 1,004
Proprietary Funds:

Water Fund - 44,606

Sewer Fund - 36,496

$ 222,701 $ 222,701

Note 10 - Subsequent Events

The City evaluated subsequent events for recognition and disclosure through December 11, 2019, the date
which these financial statements were available to be issued. Management concluded that no material
subsequent events have occurred since June 30, 2019 that required recognition or disclosure in such financial
statements.
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CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
Variance with
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenue
Taxes $ 1,214,500 $ 1,214500 $ 1,473,823 § 259,323
I[ntergovernmental - - 21,919 21,919
Charges for services 181,637 48,232 67,255 19,023
Licenses, permits and impact fees 401,180 109,054 209,897 100,843
Fines and forfeitures 2,000 2,000 1,629 (371)
Interest and rent 70,000 70,000 80,771 10,771
Other 15,000 15,000 135,114 120,114
Total revenue 1,884,317 1,458,786 1,990,408 531,622
Expenditures
Current
General government 442,092 442,092 460,661 (18,569)
Public works 365,305 402,805 377,013 25,792
Parks and recreation 80,541 80,541 94,651 (14,110)
Public safety 500,315 500,315 432,938 67,377
Community development 497,194 497,194 562,172 (64,978)
Capital outlay 194,000 209,000 452,846 (243,846)
Total expenditures 2,079,447 2,131,947 2,380,281 (248,334)
Revenue over (under) expenditures (195,130) (673,161) (389,873) 283,288
Other Financing Sources
Transfers in (out) - net 366,303 366,303 222,701 (143,602)
Net Change in Fund Balance $ 171,173 §  (306,858) (167,172) $ 139,686
Fund Balance
Beginning of year 4,860,199
End of year $ 4,693,027
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CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

IMPACT FEES FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
Variance with
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenue
Licenses, permits and impact fees $ 1,125,064 $ 806,049 $ 369,522 §  (436,527)
Total revenue 1,125,064 806,049 369,522 (436,527)
Expenditures
Current
Capital outlay 795,500 554,500 879,673 (325,173)
Total expenditures 795,500 554,500 879,673 (325,173)
Net Change in Fund Balance $ 329564 $§ 251,549 (510,151) § __ (761,700)
Fund Balance
Beginning of year 1,649,478
End of year $ 1,139,327
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of San Juan Bautista, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of San Juan Bautista, California, (the
“City”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 11,
2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
City’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City’s financial statements are fice from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.



Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

December 11,2019
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| HOLLISTER FIRE DEPARTMENT

e
’ | Fire Station 1 110 Fifth Street ® Hollister, CA 95023-3926
| Headquarters  (831) 636-4325 e Fax (831) 636-4329

December 9, 2019

Fire Chiefs Report

The Hollister Fire Department responded to 239 calls for service in District 4 from July 1%
2019 Thru December 9™ 2019. Approximately 39 of those calls were Automatic Aid to
Aromas Tri-County Fire Protection District.

e District 4 — 239
o Fires-13
o Vehicle Accidents — 43
o EMS-91

o Other —92 (to include: Public Assist, Alarm, Gas Leak, HAZMAT,
ete.)

Fire Prevention/Investigations

°* Engine Company business inspections & new residential inspections (continued).

e School Inspections — Aromas-San Juan Unified, Anzar High School, and San Juan School
(complete)

° Hotel [nspections — Hacienda De Leal, Posada De San Juan, ST. Francis Retreat. (complete)

° Weed Abatement- City of SJB and surrounding area (continued).

* Structure fire- 34 Church St. Cause under investigation

Fire Station 2 Fire Station 3 Fire Station 4

1000 Union Road 24 Polk Street
Hollister, CA 95023 San Juan Bautista, CA 95045

(831) 636-4141 (831)623-4513



HOLLISTER FIRE DEPARTMENT

Fire Station 1 110 Fifth Street @ Hollister, CA 95023-3926
Headquarters  (831) 636-4325 » Fax (831) 636-4329

HFD Apparatus Report 12/11/2019
&
220 City of Hollister

T-71 (Truck 71) In Service at Station 1/Cross Staffed / Aerial Ladder “Out of Service”

E-11 (Engine 11) Out of Service for maintenance.

E-12 (Engine 12) In Service at Station 2/Covering District 2

R-16 (Reserve Engine 16) In Service at Station 3 as E-13 / Covering District 3
$-65 (Support 65) In Service at Station 2 / Staffed by Call Back Personnel
E-642 (Type 6} In Service at Station 2/Cross Staffed

E-643 {Type 6) In Service at Station 3/Cross Staffed

R-61 (Rescue 61) In Service at station 1/Crossed Staffed

WT-53 (Water Tender 53) In Service at Station 2/Cross Staffed

E-329 (OES Engine) In Service at Station 1

Training Reserve Engine (Black top) at station 2

San Benito County

R-17 (Reserve Engine 17) OQut of Service for repair (Bulldog)
R-15 (Reserve Engine 15) In Service at Station 1 as £E-11/Covering District 1

E- 332 (Engine 332) (Type 3 Wildland Engine) In Service at Station 4/Cross Staffed

WT-52 (Water Tender 52) Q0S (Out of Service)

Fire Station 2 Fire Station 3 Fire Station 4
1000 Union Road 24 Polk Street
Hollister, CA 95023 San Juan Bautista, CA 95045
(831) 636-4141 (831) 623-4513



HOLLISTER FIRE DEPARTMENT

| FireStation1 110 Fifth Street ® Hollister, CA 95023-3926
| Headquorters  (831) 636-4325 » Fax (831) 6364329

San Juan Bautista

E-14 (Engine 14) — In Service at Station 4/Covering District 4

Fire Station 2 Fire Station 3 Fire Station 4
1000 Union Road 24 Polk Street
Hollister, CA 95023 San Juan Bautista, CA 95045

(831) 636-4141 (831) 623-4513
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: ; Item #5D
City of San Juan Bautista City Council Meeting

Revenues ~ Budget Vs. Actual December 17, 2019
For the Four Month Period Ended October 31, 2019

REVENUES FY19 FY20 Annual YTD
Fund Actuals Actuals Budget Difference 33%  Notes
General Fund 307,715 582,549 1,854,841 (1,272,292) 31% A
Special Revenue Funds:
Capital Projects Fund - 184,000 1,722,000 (1,538,000) 11%
Community Developme 68,403 144,343 553,058 (408,715) 26% B
COPS 53,766 35,318 100,000 (64,682) 35%
Parking & Restroom Fd 10,781 8,732 32,200 (23,468) 27%
Gas Tax Fund 22,378 35,425 53,851 (18,426) 66% B
Valle Vista LLD 6,691 7,239 21,717 (14,478) 33%
Rancho Vista CFD - 30,915 92,744 (61,829) 33%
Copperleaf CFD - 11,463 34,390 (22,927) 33%
Development Impact Fee Funds:
Public/Civic Facility 19,848 33,575 25,000 8,575 134% B
Library 26,700 45,166 33,000 12,166 137% B
Storm Drain 100,921 - 80,000 (80,000) 0% B
Park In-Lieu 10,465 - 10,000 (10,000) 0% B
Public Safety 20,651 34,933 15,000 19,933 233% B
Traffic 22,980 - 10,000 (10,000) 0% B
Zone 1 TIMF - - 30,000 (30,000) 0% B
Internal Service Funds:
Blg Rehab. & Replace 18,500 12,667 38,000 (25,333) 33%
Vehicle Replacement 20,000 20,000 60,000 (40,000) 33%
Enterprise Funds:
Water
Operations 317,191 370,333 979,000 (608,667) 38%
Capital 749,571 - 100,000 (100,000) 0% D
Sewer
Operations 317,908 371,342 1,010,600 (639,258) 37%
Capital 340,773 - 600,000 (600,000) 0% D
TOTAL Funds 2,127,527 1,345,451 7,455,401 6,109,950 18%

A ~ Increased revenue over prior year is largely due to interal fund transfers established this year to offset adminstrative
costs, and capital expenses of which are covered by special revenue and enterprise funds.

B ~ These funds are developer derived and are recognized when received.

C ~ Gas tax funds are received at varying increments during the year, as such the amounts received
do not always align with the year to date percentages.

D ~ The timing of the projects and the related revenue does not always align with the
year-to-date percentages.



City of San Juan Bautista
Expenditures ~ Budget Vs. Actual
For the Four Month Period Ended October 31, 2019

EXPENDITURES FY19 FY20 Annual YTD
Fund Actuals Actuals Budget Variance 33% Note
General Fund 439,270 398,166 1,740,248 (1,342,082) 23%
Special Revenue Funds:
Capital Projects Fund - 55,607 1,763,000 (1,707,393) 3% A
Community Development 184,895 207,629 553,058 (345,429) 38%
COPS 33,333 33,333 100,000 (66,667) 33%
Parking & Restroom Fd 1,275 3,339 15,000 (11,661) 22%
Gas Tax Fund 5,914 17,950 53,851 (35,901) 33%
Affordable Housing Fund - 64,696 18,877 45,819 343% B
Valle Vista LLD 5,502 8,321 26,717 (18,396) 31%
Rancho Vista CFD 2,809 1,473 40,904 (39,431) 4%
Copperleaf CFD 2,809 1,473 21,523 (20,050) 7%
Development Impact Fee Funds
Public/Civic Facility - 11,000 33,000 (22,000) 33%
Library - 8,000 24,000 (16,000) 33%
Storm Drain 3,000 65,333 196,000 (130,667) 33%
Park In-Lieu 15,000 38,333 115,000 (76,667) 33%
Public Safety - 8,333 25,000 (16,667) 33%
Traffic 18,000 36,333 109,000 (72,667) 33%
Internal Service Funds:
Blg Rehab. & Replace - 6,667 20,000 (13,333) 33%
Vehicle Replacement . 3,963 11,890 (7,927) 33%
Enterprise Funds:
Water:
Operations 179,463 209,432 738,921 529,489  28%
Capital 180,927 247,463 349,979 102,516 71% A
Sewer
Operations 222,207 364,447 1,608,450 1,244,003 23% C
Capital 64,706 18,920 638,979 620,059 3% A
TOTAL Funds 919,840 1,412,047 8,203,397 6,791,350 17%
Footnotes:

A ~ Capital costs occur sporadically during the year, and do not always align with the to date percentages

B ~ Current year to date costs, which over budget, are offset from prior period impact funds received.

C ~ Costs are higher than prior year due to the implementation of funds transfers for capital purposes in
the current fiscal year.

12/7/2019



City of San Juan Bautista

Warrant Listing
As of November 30, 2019
Date Num Name Amount
101.000 - Union Bank
101.001 - Operating Acct. 1948
11/05/2019 213159 4Leaf, Inc. -7,901.60
11/05/2019 213160 Abbott's Pro Power -34.29
11/05/2019 213161 Alexander Electric Inc. dba State Electri -2,209.00
11/05/2019 213162 All Clear Water Services -3,355.00
11/05/2019 213163 at&t -253.33
11/05/2019 213164 AVAYA 0.00
11/05/2019 213165 Brigantino Irrigation, Inc. -349.37
11/05/2019 213166 Core & Main -69.35
11/05/2019 213167 CSG Consultants, Inc. -51,987.50
11/05/2019 213168 Cypress Water Services -10,075.00
11/05/2019 213169 Data Ticket Inc. -200.00
11/05/2019 213170 Department of Transportation -475.53
11/05/2019 213171 Harris & Associates -495.00
11/05/2019 213172 Hollister Auto Parts, Inc. -609.39
11/05/2019 213173 Home Depot Credit Services -314.89
11/05/2019 213174 Hydrotex -249.61
11/05/2019 213175 Lautzenhiser's Stationery, inc, -164.99
11/05/2019 213176 Level 1 Private Security. -8,928.00
11/05/2019 213177 Maggiora Bros. Drilling Inc. -98,286.15
11/05/2018 213178 MailFinance -112.22
11/05/2019 213179 Mc Kinnon Lumber Co., Inc. -26.88
11/05/2019 213180 Monterey Bay Analytical Services -291.50
11/05/2019 213181 PG&E -2,886.33
11/05/2019 213182 P.M. Landscaping Services, LLC -2,100.00
11/05/2018 213183 PARSAC -3,449.00
11/05/2019 213184 R & B Company -2,233.34
11/05/2019 213185 Rossi Bros Tire & Auto -25.00
11/05/2019 213186 Rx-Tek -364.24
11/05/2019 213187 San Benito County Assessor -60.00
11/05/2019 213188 San Benito County Sheriff -39,513.60
11/05/2019 213189 San Juan Bautista Committee. -5,000.00
11/05/2019 213190 Smith & Enright Landscaping -1,471.13
11/05/2019 213191 Sprint -113.17
11/05/2019 213192 Staples -446.92
11/05/2019 213193 State Compensation Insurance Fund -7,110.50
11/05/2019 213194 Todd Kennedy -18.90
11/05/2019 213195 United Site Services of California, Inc, -331.73
11/05/2019 213196 Univar USA Inc. -1,089.44
11/05/2019 213197 US Bank -5,293.20
11/05/2019 213198 US Bank Equipment Finance -249.61
11/05/2019 213199 Valero Marketing & Supply -615.46
11/05/2019 213200 Wendy L. Cumming, CPA -2,392.50

11/19/2019 213201 at&t -70.08



City of San Juan Bautista

Warrant Listing
As of November 30, 2019
Date Num Name Amount

11/20/2019 213202 3T Equipment Company Inc. -1,140.89
11/20/2019 213203 ACWA Health Benefits Authority -8,862.69
11/20/2019 213204 AFLAC -152.78
11/20/2019 213205 Armando Venegas. -150.00
11/20/2019 213206 Association of California Water Agencies -5,530.00
11/20/2019 213207 atét -79.24
11/20/2019 213208 AVAYA -250.66
11/20/2019 213209 Clark Pest Control -Y5.00
11/20/2019 213210 Constantion Santos -700.00
11/20/2019 213211 EMC Planning Group Inc. -15,881.78
11/20/2019 213212 Enrique Hernandez -311.36
11/20/2019 213213 Freitas + Freitas -1,278.30
11/20/2019 213214 Harris & Associates -9,530.95
11/20/2019 213215 International Institute of Municipal Cler -170.00
11/20/2019 213216 Jardines, Inc. -150.00
11/20/2019 213217 Jessica Navarro Martinez -650.00
11/20/2019 213218 Joaquin Bautista -532.00
11/20/2019 213219 Jose Mondragen -650.00
11/20/12019 213220 KBA Docusys -321.99
11/20/2019 213221 Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. -4,620.00
11/20/2019 213222 Level 1 Private Security. -1,134.00
11/20/2019 213223 Monterey Bay Analytical Services -1,429.20
11/20/2019 213224 Monterey Bay Area Cactus/Succulent Soc. -200.00
11/20/2019 213225 Monterey County Health Department -30.00
11/20/2019 213226 Nick Bryan -150.00
11/20/2019 213227 PG&E -11,748.59
11/20/2019 213228 Paul Champion -42.53
11/20/2019 213229 Ready Refresh -251.85
11/20/2019 213230 San Benito County Tax Collector -83.40
11/20/2019 213231 Sentry Alarm System -342.00
11/20/2019 213232 SWRCB -5,197.00
11/20/2019 213233 True Value Hardware 0.00
11/20/2019 213234 US Bank Equipment Finance -272.51
11/20/2019 213235 Charter Communications -537.77
11/20/2019 213236 Laura Cent. -100.00
11/20/2019 213237 Sprint -113.17
11/21/2019 213238 True Value Hardware -164.47
Total 101.001 - Operating Acct. 1948 -334,076.88
Total 101.000 - Union Bank -334,076.88

TOTAL

-334,076.88



Item #5E

City of San Juan Bautista
The “City of History”
CITY COUNCIL REPORT

AGENDA TITLE: CITY MANAGER’S MONTHLY REPORT
DATE: NOVEMBER 19, 2019
FROM: DON REYNOLDS, CITY MANAGER

RECOMMENDATION: That the City Council receive and file this report.
DISCUSSION: A summary of another busy month will follow.

Administration- City staffing status — We miss our Office Assistant, who left December 6. We
have retained temporary help for Accounts Payable. The web and IT tasks are being tackled as
needed with two vendors supporting our staff. We are also paying a small contract amount to the
past Office Assistant so she can help us bridge the gap until the web-services are figured out. City
Hall will be closed the week of December 23 - to the 27, but staffing at the Yard will continue
on a minimum basis to make certain the essential services are maintained. The Library will also
be open but with limited hours.

Budget/Finance- The Audit has made it to the City Council, so attention is quickly turning to the
Mid-Year adjustments. Two special studies being considered include a “data portal” for the web-
site that takes our budget data and other stored data, and summarizes it for the general public. This
is called “Open Data” provided by a non-profit called “Clear-Gov.” A second study being
considered is a fiscal sustainability study that takes a S and 10 year look at our future to make sure
that we are fiscally sustainable.

Cannabis — Things did not move as quickly for Cannabis as anticipated these past four weeks, but
we are seeking to rescind the prohibition ordinances in December. We hope to bring the tax rate
resolution forward in January, and with that, we will be ready to roll. The City Manager will
execute the small agreement with Pinnacles Consulting, and seek changes to the website to
accommodate cannabis applications. As far as building standards for cultivation, staff is almost
ready to bring forward an ordinance amendment favoring the removal of the concrete floors
discussed in November. The most conservative ordinances in the state leave these technical
decisions to be made on a case by case basis by the Building Official and City Engineer. Laws
regarding water conservation and ground water contamination already exist and do not need to be
duplicated in the Cannabis codes.

Planning- The SB2 Grant application was filed before its deadline of November 30™ as planned.
It will focus on a specific plan along the southern portion of The Alameda. Hopefully, the Housing
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Element approved by the Planning Commission will be approved by the City Council December
17", and the City will be set for the next four years. Many current planning matters are successfully
moving forward now, including the historic preservation of Casa Rosa.

Public Works- The City recovered $116,000 in RSTP funds from the COG this month, claiming
reimbursements from 2018 related to San Juan-Hollister Road improvements. This money will
come in handy as we bid the Third Street improvements in January. The Pavement Management
Plan award is ready to go, as bidding closed Friday, December 6". Bids were less than budgeted.
Design is done for the new sewer line that fronts the Coke Farm properties. It will be bid next
month.

Public Works Crew- We made it through some heavy rains these past few weeks fairly unscathed.
Crews worked hard in the wet weather to make certain the storms drains were clear. We replaced
the sandbags taken by a County property owner. (These are available to SJB residents at the Yard
on Frist Street if anyone needs them.) We were also able to capitalize on the events to identify
where storm water intrusion occurs into the waste water stream. Odors from Earthbound Farms
seems to have decreased as a result of intensifying the use of chemical treatments, the cold weather,
and the reduction of flow from the industrial users.

Fleet: Will the Street Sweeper be home for Christmas? Keeping our fingers crossed. It has been
in the shop for smog repairs. We hope to send off the old fire engine to Guatemala this week!

Parks- A real estate specialist has been assigned to resolve the property issues related to Franklin
Circle. Apparently in July 1961 when the streets were dedicated, the parcel in the cul-de-sac with
no ownership or parcel number was dedicated to the City as a street. A process has been identified
to assign an APN, and change this dedication and incorporate it into the City’s parks program. At
mid-year budget adjustment, the Council can consider a small development budget to move this
Park forward at last.

Other stuff- I’'m joining Rotary.
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City Council Meeting
December 17, 2019

CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA
CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT

AGENDA TITLE: ADOPTION OF 2" ADDENDUM TO MITIGATED NEGATIVE
DECLARATION IN SUPPORT OF HOUSING ELEMENT ADOPTION

DATE: December 17, 2019
DEPARTMENT HEAD: Don Reynolds, City Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a report from City staff and housing element consultant and
approve Resolution CC-2019-XX (Attachment 1), adopting the “2"® Addendum San Juan Bautista
2015-2019 Housing Element Mitigated Negative Declaration” in support of adoption of the San
Juan Bautista 5 Cycle Housing Element Four-Year Update (2019-2023).

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: The City of San Juan Bautista recently completed the first of two
required updates to its General Plan Housing Element?. The City is now poised to adopt the
second of these required updates, and this action must be accompanied by an analysis
pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). This analysis consists of a CEQA
addendum entitled: “2"® Addendum San Juan Bautista 2019-2023 Housing Element Mitigated
Negative Declaration.”? The original Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration evaluated the
adoption of the previous housing element (i.e., San Juan Bautista General Plan 2015-2019
Housing Element) and various implementing actions.

This 2" Addendum provides additional environmental analysis and information concerning the
changes to the City’s General Plan Housing Element that would occur as a result of the adoption
of the San Juan Bautista 5 Cycle Housing Element Four-Year Update (2019-2023). The update makes
limited changes to the previously adopted Housing Element, including:

1. Updated information on public participation;

2. New analysis and information on AB 2162 that requires supportive housing by right
where multi-family and mixed use are allowed;

3. Updated information on changes to the Zoning Ordinance made during the course of
the previous housing element update;

4. New analysis and information on SB 35 that exempts qualifying affordable housing
projects from CEQA review and requires “by right” development;

5. New information on short-term rental regulations;

! The California Department of Housing and Community Development has established that San Juan Bautista is
required to prepare a 4-year update to its 2015-2019 Housing Element by December 31, 2019.

2 Addendum #1 provided an analysis of the re-zoning of land to meet the City’s Regional Housing Needs Allocation
and was adopted by the City Council at its September 16, 2019 meeting.
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6. Updated analysis of progress made on last housing element; and
7. Four new housing programs

a.

b.
C.
d

Supportive Housing by Right;

Low Barrier Navigation Centers;

SB 35 Permit Streamlining; and
Advertise Reasonable Accommodations.

The proposed changes to the previous housing element described above would not involve any
condition described in CEQA Guidelines Section 15162 calling for the preparation of a
subsequent negative declaration.

Resolution CC-2019-XX, adopting the CEQA addendum, is provided in Attachment 1, and the 2"
Addendum is attached as an exhibit to the resolution (see Attachment 1, Exhibit A). The original
Mitigated Negative Declaration is also attached to the resolution as Exhibit B (see Attachment

1, Exhibit B).

Attachments:

1. Resolution adopting 2" Addendum to the Mitigated Negative Declaration, with exhibits



ATTACHMENT 1

RESOLUTION CC-2019-XX

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
SAN JUAN BAUTISTA ADOPTING A SECOND ADDENDUM TO
THE SAN JUAN BAUTISTA 2019-2023 HOUSING ELEMENT
MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION

WHEREAS, the City of San Juan Bautista adopted a Mitigated Negative Declaration on
(October 8, 2019) in support of its adoption of the City of San Juan Bautista 2015-2019 Housing
Element and various implementing actions; and

WHEREAS, the City of San Juan Bautista is now considering the approval of its second
housing element update, entitled: City of San Juan Bautista 5" Cycle Housing Element Four-
Year Update (2019-2023), and

WHEREAS, under CEQA Guidelines, Section 15164, a Lead Agency shall prepare an
addendum to an adopted mitigated negative declaration if only minor technical changes or
additions are necessary or none of the conditions described in Section 15162 calling for the
preparation of a Subsequent Negative Declaration have occurred; and

WHEREAS, under CEQA Guidelines Section 15162, when a mitigated negative
declaration has been adopted for a project, no subsequent mitigated negative declaration shall be
prepared for that project unless the lead agency determines, on the basis of substantial evidence
in light of the whole record, one or more of the following:

A. Substantial changes are proposed in the project which will require major revisions to the
previous negative declaration due to the involvement of new significant environmental
effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant

effects;

B. Substantial changes occur with respect to the circumstances under which the project is
undertaken which will require major revisions of the previous negative declaration due
to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in
the severity of previously identified significant effects; or

C. New information of substantial importance, which was not known and could not have
been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the previous negative
declaration was adopted shows any of the following:

1. The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the previous
negative declaration; '

2. Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than
shown in the previous [mitigated negative declaration];
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Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in
fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of
the project, but the project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or
alternative; or

Mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably different from those
analyzed in the previous [mitigated negative declaration] would substantially
reduce one or more significant effects on the environment, but the project
proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative; and

WHEREAS, an addendum need not be circulated for public review but can be included
in, or attached to, the originally adopted negative declaration (CEQA Guidelines, Section
15164 [c]); and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission recommended adoption of the “2" Addendum
San Juan Bautista 2019-2023 Housing Element Mitigated Negative Declaration” at its
December 3, 2019 meeting.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of San
Juan Bautista adopts the “2™ Addendum San Juan Bautista 2019-2023 Housing Element
Mitigated Negative Declaration” (see Exhibit A), and makes the following findings:

A.

Only minor technical changes or additions to the adopted Mitigated Negative
Declaration are necessary to consider the project, and none of the conditions
described in Section 15162 calling for the preparation of a subsequent Negative
Declaration have occurred;

The Addendum was completed in compliance with CEQA;

The City Council reviewed and considered the information contained in the 2"
Addendum, along with the original adopted Mitigation Negative Declaration adopted
on October 8, 2019 (attached as Exhibit B), and found it adequate and complete based
on the City’s independent judgment and analysis;

On the basis of the whole record, there is no substantial evidence that the project will
have a significant effect on the environment; and

Documents and other materials constituting the record of the proceedings upon which
the City’s decision and its findings are based are located at the Office of the City
Clerk of the City of San Juan Bautista, 311 2"¢ Street, San Juan Bautista, CA 95045.

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION was approved by the San Juan Bautista City
Council at its regular meeting held on the 17" day of December, 2019, by the following vote:
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AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Mayor, César E. Flores
ATTEST:

Laura Cent, City Clerk
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SAN JUAN BAUTISTA
2015-2019 HOUSING ELEMENT
MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION

PREPARED FOR
City of San Juan Bautista
Todd Kennedy, Associate Planner
311 2nd Street
San Juan Bautista, CA 95045
Tel 831.623.4661

PREPARED BY
EMC Planning Group Inc.
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Tel 831.649.1799
Fax 831.649.8399
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2" Addendum

San Juan Bautista

2015-2019 Housing Element
Mitigated Negative Declaration

CEQA APPROACH

This document evaluates the San Juan Bautista 5* Cycle Housing Element Four-Year Update
(2019-2023) (“Four-Year Update Housing Element”), which includes revisions to the previous
San Juan Bautista 2015-2019 Housing Element (“2015-2019 Housing Element”) adopted by the
City of San Juan Bautista (“City”) on September 16, 2019. A Mitigated Negative Declaration
was prepared to analyze the 2015-2019 Housing Element on July 30, 2019 and adopted by the
City on October 8, 2019. The Four-Year Update Housing Element would not involve any
condition described in CEQA Guidelines Section 15162 calling for the preparation of a
subsequent negative declaration.

This document is a second addendum to the San Juan Bautista 2015-2019 Housing Element
Mitigated Negative Declaration. The subjects addressed by this addendum are the following
revisions:

1. Updated information on public participation;

2. New analysis and information on AB 2162 that requires supportive housing by right
where multi-family and mixed use are allowed;

3. Updated information on changes to the Zoning Ordinance made during the course of
the previous housing element update;

4. New analysis and information on SB 35 that exempts qualifying affordable housing
projects from CEQA review and requires “by right” development;

5. New information on short-term rental regulations;
6. Updated analysis of progress made on last housing element; and
7. Four new housing programs:

a. Supportive Housing by Right;

b. Low Barrier Navigation Centers;

c. SB35 Permit Streamlining; and

d. Advertise Reasonable Accommodations.

EMC Planning Group Inc. 1
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2nd Addendum to the Mitigated Negative Declaration

This addendum reviews the changes and updates in the state’s housing laws and
requirements by the California Housing and Community Development Department
(“HCD”) and examines whether, as a result of these changes or new information, any new or
worsened impacts could occur that were not identified in the Mitigated Negative

Declaration.

The City has determined that a second addendum to the Mitigated Negative Declaration is
an appropriate environmental document for environmental review of the Four-Year Update
Housing Element. This addendum discusses only the environmental topics and CEQA
checklist questions that are specifically relevant to the Four-Year Update Housing Element
and its subsequent updates to the 2015-2019 Housing Element. Unless otherwise stated, the
sources used in this document can also be found in Section E, Sources, of the Mitigated
Negative Declaration.

CHANGES TO THE PROJECT DESCRIPTION

State law requires housing elements to be updated periodically, and because the City missed
its 2015 deadline, HCD now requires the City to adopt housing elements on a four-year
cycle—two updates instead of just one. The City has prepared the second housing element
update to cover the period 2019-2023 (i.e. the Four-Year Update Housing Element). The draft
of the Four-Year Update Housing Element was sent to HCD for its initial 60-day review on
September 30, 2019. City staff received HCD comments on this draft on October 21, 2019, and
a revised document that responded to HCD comments was sent back to HCD on October 28,
2019. HCD reviewed this revised draft and informed City Staff that it had no further

comments.
The Four-Year Update Housing Element includes the following revisions:
1. Updated information on public participation;

2. New analysis and information on AB 2162 that requires supportive housing by right
where multi-family and mixed use are allowed;

3. Updated information on changes to the Zoning Ordinance made during the course of
the previous housing element update;

4. New analysis and information on SB 35 that exempts qualifying affordable housing
projects from CEQA review and requires “by right” development;

5. New information on short-term rental regulations;
6. Updated analysis of progress made on last housing element; and
7. Four new housing programs:

a. Supportive Housing by Right;

2 EMC Planning Group Inc.
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2n¢ Addendum to the Mitigated Negative Declaration

b. Low Barrier Navigation Centers;
c. SB35 Permit Streamlining; and
d. Advertise Reasonable Accommodations.

To support the adoption of the Four-Year Update Housing Element, a public workshop
occurred on August 13, 2019. Noticing for the workshop was mailed to 14 different housing
organizations in the region, plus direct emails were sent to approximately 250 residents.
Notices were also posted on the City’s main website, on social media, and at City Hall.
Approximately 20 persons attended the workshop and offered comments about ways to
increase affordable housing, the best locations for lower income housing and emergency
shelters, and accessory dwelling units.

The Four-Year Update Housing Element is supported by this second addendum to the
Mitigated Negative Declaration that evaluated the environmental effects of the 2015-2019
Housing Element adopted on September 16, 2019. As indicated previously, the addendum
evaluates the revisions contained in the Four-Year Update Housing Element (outlined
above), none of which would result in a significant impact or the worsening of an existing
significant impact; the remainder of this document will provide support for this statement.

ANALYSIS

The following environmental analysis of Four-Year Update Housing Element supplements
the Mitigated Negative Declaration. For the following sections, the Four-Year Update
Housing Element is also referred to as “proposed project.” Additional information can be
found in the Mitigated Negative Declaration and is referenced where applicable.

Section 1.0, Aesthetics

The purpose of the proposed project is to update the 2015-2019 Housing Element with new
information and to provide programs necessary to respond to recent changes in State
Housing Law. The proposed project targets the supply of housing on lands already
designated for urban development by the City’s adopted 2015-2019 Housing Element and
General Plan. No specific housing developments are being approved as part of the proposed
project, and the adoption of the proposed project would not directly or indirectly result in

adverse aesthetic impacts.

Section 2.0, Agriculture and Forest Resources
The purpose of the proposed project is to update the 2015-2019 Housing Element with new

information and to provide programs necessary to respond to recent changes in State
Housing Law. The proposed project targets the supply of housing on lands already

EMC Planning Group 3
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2vd Addendum to the Mitigated Negative Declaration

designated for urban development by the City’s adopted 2015-2019 Housing Element and
General Plan. No specific housing developments are being approved as part of the proposed
project, and the adoption of the proposed project would not directly or indirectly result in

adverse agricultural impacts.

Section 3.0, Air Quality
The purpose of the proposed project is to update the 2015-2019 Housing Element with new

information and to provide programs necessary to respond to recent changes in State
Housing Law. The proposed project targets the supply of housing on lands already
designated for urban development by the City’s adopted 2015-2019 Housing Element and
General Plan. No specific housing developments are being approved as part of the proposed
project, and the adoption of the proposed project would not directly or indirectly result in

adverse air quality impacts.

Section 4.0, Biological Resources

The purpose of the proposed project is to update the 2015-2019 Housing Element with new
information and to provide programs necessary to respond to recent changes in State
Housing Law. The proposed project targets the supply of housing on lands already
designated for urban development by the City’s adopted 2015-2019 Housing Element and
General Plan. No specific housing developments are being approved as part of the proposed
project, and the adoption of the proposed project would not directly or indirectly result in

adverse impacts to biological resources.

Section 5.0, Cultural Resources

The purpose of the proposed project is to update the 2015-2019 Housing Element with new
information and to provide programs necessary to respond to recent changes in State
Housing Law. The proposed project targets the supply of housing on lands already
designated for urban development by the City’s adopted 2015-2019 Housing Element and
General Plan. No specific housing developments are being approved as part of the proposed
project, and the adoption of the proposed project would not directly or indirectly resultin
adverse impacts to cultural resources.

Section 6.0, Energy

The purpose of the proposed project is to update the 2015-2019 Housing Element with new
information and to provide programs necessary to respond to recent changes in State
Housing Law. The proposed project targets the supply of housing on lands already
designated for urban development by the City’s adopted 2015-2019 Housing Element and
General Plan. No specific housing developments are being approved as part of the proposed

4 EMC Planning Group Inc.
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project, and the adoption of the proposed project would not directly or indirectly result in

adverse energy impacts.

Section 7.0, Geology and Soils

The purpose of the proposed project is to update the 2015-2019 Housing Element with new
information and to provide programs necessary to respond to recent changes in State
Housing Law. The proposed project targets the supply of housing on lands already
designated for urban development by the City’s adopted 2015-2019 Housing Element and
General Plan. No specific housing developments are being approved as part of the proposed
project and the adoption of the proposed project directly or indirectly result in adverse
geology and soil impacts.

Section 8.0, Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The purpose of the proposed project is to update the 2015-2019 Housing Element with new
information and to provide programs necessary to respond to recent changes in State
Housing Law. The proposed project targets the supply of housing on lands already
designated for urban development by the City’s adopted 2015-2019 Housing Element and
General Plan. No specific housing developments are being approved as part of the proposed
project, and the adoption of the proposed project would not directly or indirectly result in

adverse greenhouse gas emission impacts.

Section 10.0, Hydrology and Water Quality

The purpose of the proposed project is to update the 2015-2019 Housing Element with new
information and to provide programs necessary to respond to recent changes in State
Housing Law. The proposed project targets the supply of housing on lands already
designated for urban development by the City’s adopted 2015-2019 Housing Element and
General Plan. No specific housing developments are being approved as part of the proposed
project, and the adoption of the proposed project would not directly or indirectly result in
adverse hydrology and water quality impacts.

Section 11.0, Land Use

The purpose of the proposed project is to update the 2015-2019 Housing Element with new
information and to provide programs necessary to respond to recent changes in State
Housing Law. The proposed project targets the supply of housing on lands already
designated for urban development by the City’s adopted 2015-2019 Housing Element and
General Plan. After adoption of the proposed project, the City will have met all required
state housing laws and, therefore, would not conflict with land use policies or plans or result
in any adverse land use impacts.

EMC Planning Group 5
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Section 12.0, Mineral Resources

The purpose of the proposed project is to update the 2015-2019 Housing Element with new
information and to provide programs necessary to respond to recent changes in State
Housing Law. The proposed project targets the supply of housing on lands already
designated for urban development by the City’s adopted 2015-2019 Housing Element and
General Plan. No specific housing developments are being approved as part of the proposed
project, and the adoption of the proposed project would not directly or indirectly result in

adverse impacts related to mineral resources.

Section 13.0, Noise

The purpose of the proposed project is to update the 2015-2019 Housing Element with new
information and to provide programs necessary to respond to recent changes in State
Housing Law. The proposed project targets the supply of housing on lands already
designated for urban development by the City’s adopted 2015-2019 Housing Element and
General Plan. No specific housing developments arc being approved as part of the proposed
project, and the adoption of the proposed project would not directly or indirectly result in

adverse noise impacts.

Section 14.0, Population and Housing

The proposed project involves the adoption of four (4) new housing programs in order to
meet the requirements of the state housing laws. Adoption of the proposed project would
not result in unplanned population growth within the City as the state is requiring (and
consequently, the City is expecting) an increase in the availability of affordable housing units
within the City’s boundaries. Therefore, the potential population growth would not be
unplanned. The purpose of the proposed project is to support additional housing units on
land that is currently vacant or underutilized and, therefore, the proposed project would not
result in the displacement of substantial numbers of existing people or housing.

Section 15.0, Public Services

The purpose of the proposed project is to update the 2015-2019 Housing Element with new
information and to provide programs necessary to respond to recent changes in State
Housing Law. The proposed project targets the supply of housing on lands already
designated for urban development by the City’s adopted 2015-2019 Housing Element and
General Plan. No specific housing developments are being approved as part of the proposed
project, and the adoption of the proposed project would not directly or indirectly result in

adverse impacts associated with public services.

6 EMC Planning Group Inc.
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Section 16.0, Recreation

The purpose of the proposed project is to update the 2015-2019 Housing Element with new
information and to provide programs necessary to respond to recent changes in State
Housing Law. The proposed project targets the supply of housing on lands already
designated for urban development by the City’s adopted 2015-2019 Housing Element and
General Plan. No specific housing developments are being approved as part of the proposed
project, and the adoption of the proposed project would not directly or indirectly result in
adverse impacts associated with existing recreational facilities.

Section 17.0, Transportation

The purpose of the proposed project is to update the 2015-2019 Housing Element with new
information and to provide programs necessary to respond to recent changes in State
Housing Law. The proposed project targets the supply of housing on lands already
designated for urban development by the City’s adopted 2015-2019 Housing Element and
General Plan. No specific housing developments are being approved as part of the proposed
project, and the adoption of the proposed project would not directly or indirectly result in
adverse impacts related to transportation.

Section 18.0, Tribal Cultural Resources

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15164, an invitation to consult on the Mitigated
Negative Declaration was transmitted on May 20, 2019 to four tribes determined to be
affiliated with the area impacted by the Housing Element update and associated
implementing actions. The proposed project does not change or alter the boundary of the
study area identified in the Mitigated Negative Declaration and, therefore, is covered by the
invitation for consultation. No further discussion is required.

Section 19.0, Utilities and Service Systems

The purpose of the proposed project is to update the 2015-2019 Housing Element with new
information and to provide programs necessary to respond to recent changes in State
Housing Law. The proposed project targets the supply of housing on lands already
designated for urban development by the City’s adopted 2015-2019 Housing Element and
General Plan. No specific housing developments are being approved as part of the proposed
project, and the adoption of the proposed project would not directly or indirectly result in
adverse impacts to the existing utilities and service systems.

Section 20.0, Wildfire
The purpose of the proposed project is to update the 2015-2019 Housing Element with new

information and to provide programs necessary to respond to recent changes in State
Housing Law. The proposed project targets the supply of housing on lands already

EMC Planning Group

28



2nd Addendum to the Mitigated Negative Declaration

designated for urban development by the City’s adopted 2015-2019 Housing Element and
General Plan. No specific housing developments are being approved as part of the proposed
project, and the adoption of the proposed project would not directly or indirectly result in
adverse impacts related to wildfires.

Section 21.0, Mandatory Findings of Significance

The purpose of the proposed project is (o update the 2015-2019 [ousing Element with new
information and to provide programs necessary to respond to recent changes in State
Housing Law. The proposed project targets the supply of housing on lands already
designated for urban development by the City’s adopted 2015-2019 Housing Element and
General Plan. No specific housing developments are being approved as part of the proposed
project, and the adoption of the proposed project would not directly or indirectly:

a. Degrade the quality of the environment; substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or
wildlife species; cause a fish or wildlife population to drop below self-sustaining
levels; threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community; substantially reduce the
number or restrict the range of an endangered, rare, or threatened species; or
eliminate important examples of the major periods of California history or prehistory;

b. Have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively considerable; or

c. Cause substantial adverse effects on human beings, either directly or indirectly.

8 EMC Planning Group Inc.
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CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA

Ve, flerea et te

CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT

AGENDA TITLE: PUBLIC HEARING AND APPROVAL OF THE SAN JUAN BAUTISTA
5" CYCLE HOUSING ELEMENT FOUR-YEAR UPDATE (2019-2023)

DATE: December 17, 2019
DEPARTMENT HEAD: Don Reynolds, City Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a report from City staff and the City’s housing element
consultant, hold a public hearing to receive public comment, and approve Resolution CC-2019-
XX (Attachment 1), approving the San Juan Bautista 5 Cycle Housing Element Four-Year
Update (2019-2023).

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: State law requires housing elements to be updated periodically,
and the last update for San Juan Bautista was required in 2015. Because the City missed its
2015 deadline, the State Housing and Community Development Department (HCD) now
requires the City to adopt housing elements on a four-year cycle. This means that the City is
required to complete both its 2015 update and a second four-year update that is due on
December 31, 2019. The 2015 update (for the period 2015-2019) was recently adopted on
October 8, 2019, and in November 2019, HCD approved San Juan Bautista’s 2015 housing
element update. If the City can meet the December 315 deadline for adopting the four-year
update and also complete its 2023 update on time, then the City returns to the standard eight-
year housing element update cycle.

City staff and consultant have prepared the four-year housing element update to cover the
period 2019-2023. A draft of this document was sent to HCD for its initial 60-day review on
September 30, 2019, and City staff received HCD comments on this draft on October 21, 2019.
A revised document that responded to HCD comments was sent back to HCD on October 28,
2019. HCD also reviewed this revised draft and informed City Staff that it had no further
comments.

The four-year update includes the following revisions:

1. Updated information on public participation;

2. New analysis and information on AB 2162 that requires supportive housing by right
where multi-family and mixed use are allowed;

3. Updated information on changes to the Zoning Ordinance made during the course of
the previous housing element update;
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4, New analysis and information on SB 35 that exempts qualifying affordable housing
projects from CEQA review and requires “by right” development;
5. New information on short-term rental regulations;
6. Updated analysis of progress made on last housing element; and
7. Four new housing programs
a. Supportive Housing by Right;
b. Low Barrier Navigation Centers;
c. SB35 Permit Streamlining; and
d. Advertise Reasonable Accommodations.

City Staff is now requesting that the City Council adopt this four-year housing element update.
The adoption must take the form of a resolution, and a resolution approving the housing
element is attached (see Attachment 1). The San Juan Bautista 5t Cycle Housing Element Four-
Year Update (2019-2023), which contains the edits suggested by HCD, is attached to the
resolution as Exhibit A.

To support the adoption of this four-year housing element update, staff and consultant
conducted a public workshop on August 13, 2019. Noticing for the workshop was mailed to 14
different housing organizations in the region. Notices were also posted on the City’s main
website, on social media, and at City Hall. Approximately 20 persons attended the workshop
and offered comments about ways to increase affordable housing, the best locations for lower
income housing and emergency shelters, and accessory dwelling units.

The proposed adoption of the San Juan Bautista 5" Cycle Housing Element Four-Year Update
(2019-2023) is supported by an addendum to the Initial Study and Mitigated Negative
Declaration that evaluated the environmental effects of the 2015 housing element update
adopted on October 8, 2019. The addendum evaluates the revisions contained in the four-year
update (outlined above), none of which would result in a significant impact or the worsening of
an existing significant impact. Earlier in the evening the City Council adopted the CEQA
addendum.

Attachment:
1. Resolution approving four-year housing element update, with housing element
document attached as Exhibit A



ATTACHMENT 1

RESOLUTION CC-2019-XX

A RESOLUTION OF THE SAN JUAN BAUTISTA CITY COUNCIL
ADOPTING THE GENERAL PLAN HOUSING ELEMENT (FOUR-
YEAR UPDATE), CONSISTENT WITH SECTION 65580 ET SEQ.
OF THE CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE

WHEREAS, the City of San Juan Bautista is required by State law to prepare and adopt
a General Plan for the long-term physical growth and development of the City; and

WHEREAS, the Housing Element is one of seven State-mandated elements to be
included in the General Plan; and

WHEREAS, the California Department of Housing and Community Development has
established that San Juan Bautista is required to prepare a four-year update to its 2019-2023
Housing Element by December 31, 2019; and

WHEREAS, the City held a housing element workshop on August 13, 2019, pursuant to
housing element law, to allow the residents and area housing organizations the opportunity to
provide their opinions on the City’s housing needs; and

WHEREAS, City staff and consultants subsequently prepared a draft Housing Element
update for review by the California Department of Housing and Community Development
(HCD); and

WHEREAS, HCD reviewed the draft document and provided a review letter on
November 22, 2019 outlining the revisions necessary for the draft housing element to be in
compliance with state Housing Element law (Government Code §65580 et seq.); and

WHEREAS, City staff and consultant revised the draft Housing Element update to
address HCD concerns, and this document is now ready for adoption by the City Council; and

WHEREAS, Staff and consultant have analyzed the San Juan Bautista 5% Cycle Housing
Element Four-Year Update (2019-2023) and have concluded that that an addendum to the
adopted “San Juan Bautista 2015-2019 Housing Element Mitigated Negative Declaration”
adopted by the City Council on October 8, 2019 would be the appropriate level of analysis to
address the impacts of updated Housing Element; and

WHEREAS, the“2™ Addendum San Juan Bautista 2019-2023 Housing Element
Mitigated Negative Declaration,” was adopted by the City Council at its December 17,2019
meeting; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission recommended approval of the four-year housing
element update to the City Council at its December 3, 2019 meeting; and
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WHEREAS, the City Council finds the Sarn Juan Bautista 5" Cycle Housing Element
Four-Year Update (2019-2023) to be consistent with, and suitable for, incorporation into the
City’s General Plan.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the San Juan Bautista City Council
adopts the San Juan Bautista 5" Cycle Housing Element Four-Year Update (2019-2023).

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION was approved at a regular meeting of the City
Council ot the City of San Juan Bautista held on the 1/ day of December, 2019, by the
following vote:

AYES:
NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Mayor, César E. Flores

ATTEST:

Laura Cent, City Clerk

Exhibit:

A. San Juan Bautista 5" Cycle Housing Element Four-Year Update (2019-2023)
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Chapter

Introduction 1

A. Community Context

The City of San Juan Bautista is located in the northwest portion of San Benito County, near the Monterey
County and Santa Clara County borders. San Juan Bautista provides a variety of housing, shopping, jobs,
attractions, recreation opportunities, and natural resources for its residents and visitors alike. Also, as one
of 2 incorporated cities in San Benito County, San Juan Bautista is the base for much of the County’s
agriculture industry. The City is the home of Mission San Juan which is visited by thousands of people each
year. San Juan Bautista also offers other unique assets—the geography of the surrounding hills and
mountains, historic downtown, proximity to the Silicon Valley, and pleasant year-round climate—all of
which make San Juan Bautista an attractive place to live, work, and retire.

During the 1990s and into the new millennium, the County of San Benito experienced substantial growth
pressures primarily reflecting the spillover of employees from Santa Clara County and the Silicon Valley
seeking less expensive housing within commute distances. The cost of living in San Benito County remains
relatively high (particularly In relation to household incornes) due Lo ils pruximily to employment centers
in the Silicon Valley, and, as such, the residents of San Juan Bautista continue to experience increased
housing prices, overpayment, and overcrowding. Compounding this issue is the need to find ways to
upgrade existing housing and reinvest in infrastructure to serve those homes and businesses.

To address the City’s housing goals, a variety of environmental, regional, budgetary, and quality of life
issues must be addressed. These constraints include the following:

¢ Environmental and Historic Features. San Juan Bautista has many natural and historic features,
which provide for a unique quality of life for residents.

o Planned Growth. San Juan Bautista has developed in a compact fashion due, in part, to the
topography, the San Andreas Fault, and adjoining agricultural activities. This growth has been
planned to coincide with the availability of both municipal water and sanitary sewer.

o Budgetary Constraints. The availability of funds to support housing programs is uncertain, but is
expected to be more robust in this housing element period, perhaps enabling San Juan Bautista to
better address its local housing needs.

e Maintaining Community Character. San Juan Bautista residents are committed to maintaining the
rural character, historic resources, agricultural economy, environmental features, and other
unique aspects of the community.

Within this broad context, San Juan Bautista must address key housing challenges over the 2019-2023
planning period. These challenges include: (1) providing sites for additional housing; (2) providing for a
range in types and prices of housing; (3) looking at ways to address the need to improve and rehabilitate
housing and neighborhoods; (4) providing for those with special housing needs; and 5) maintaining and
improving the local environment and quality of life in San Juan Bautista. The 2019-2023 Housing Element
addresses each of these issues.

#
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B. State Policy and Authorization

The California State Legislature identifies the attainment of a decent home and suitable living
environment for every resident as the State’s major housing goal. Recognizing the important role of local
planning programs in pursuing this goal, the Legislature has mandated that all cities and counties prepare
a housing element as part of their comprehensive general plan. Section 65302(c) of the Government Code
sets forth the specific components to be contained in a community’s housing element.

State law previously required housing elements to be updated at least every 5 years. The standard cycle is
now 8 years and is tied to the region’s transportation planning. The 2009-2014 San Juan Bautista Housing
Element covered the 5-year period spanning 2009 through 2014. This 4th Cycle Housing Element was in
compliance, but the City had not adopted a housing element for the 5th Cycle, which was due on
December 15, 2015 to cover the planning period from 2015-2023. Because the City missed this deadline, it
must now adopt 2 consecutive 4-year housing elements to return to the current standard 8-year cycle.
Having adopted the 1* of these two four-year housing elements, the City is now preparing its 2" four-year
housing element.

California law requires that each city and county, when preparing its State-mandated Housing Element,
develop local housing programs to meet its “fair share” of existing and future housing needs for all income
groups, also known as the Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA). This fair share concept seeks to
ensure that each jurisdiction, to the extent feasible and appropriate, provides housing for its resident
population, and those households who might reasonably be expected to reside within the jurisdiction,
with a variety of housing appropriate to their needs.

The fair share allocation process begins with the State Department of Finance’s (DOF) population
projections for the State and regions of the State. The Department of Housing and Community
Development (HCD) uses the DOF population projections to determine housing needs by region in
California. Once this occurs, the regional planning agency (or in San Juan Bautista’s case), the San Benito
Council of Governments (SB+COG) allocates a share of the regional housing needs (RHNA) to each
jurisdiction within the region, which is separated into 4 income categories. This Housing Element will
review the City’s progress toward its RHNA from the 4" Cycle Housing Element (which was a total of 49
units) and the City’s current RHNA share (which is a total of 41 units). A breakdown of the 2015-2023
RHNA by income target is provided in Table 1-1, below.

Table 1-1: San Juan Bautista’s Share of Regional Housing Needs 2015-2023

Income Category City’s Share of Regional Housing Needs

Number of Units Percent of Total Units
Extremely Low income 5 12%
Very Low 5 12%
Low 6 15%
Moderate 8 20%
Above Moderate 17 41%
Total 41 100%

Source: California Department of Housing and Community Development, 2014-2023
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C. Role of Housing Element

Unlike other General Plan elements that typically cover a much longer planning horizon (10 to 20 years),
the Housing Element covers a core timeframe of 8 years. Within this timeframe, the Housing Element
identifies strategies and programs that focus on: (1) preserving and improving housing and
neighborhoods; (2) providing adequate housing sites; (3) assisting in the provision of affordable housing;
(4) removing governmental and other constraints to housing investment; and (5) promoting fair and equal
housing opportunities.

The Housing Elements consists of the following major components:

o An analysis of the City’s demographics, housing characteristics, and existing and future housing
needs

s A review of potential market, governments, and environmental constraints to meeting the City’s
identified housing needs

e An evaluation of the land, financial, and organizational resources available to address the City’s
identified housing needs

e A statement of the Housing Plan to address the City’s identified housing needs, including housing
goals, policies and programs

D. Data Sources

In preparing the Housing Element, the preparers consulted various sources of information. As more recent
reliable information is difficult to find in most cases, current Census data was used as the baseline for
most demographic information. Additional sources include the Census of Agriculture, the California
Department of Housing and Community Development, the Office of Policy Development and Research,
the San Benito County Housing Element 2014-2023, California Department of Finance population
projections, employment data from the State of California Employment Development Department, and
the most recent data available from service agencies and other governmental agencies. In addition, the
City’s 2019-2023 Housing Element implements the most recent changes to State Housing Element law,
including those specifying quantified results, identification of suitable sites for lower income housing, and
changes affecting the development, maintenance, and improvement of transitional housing and housing
for persons with disabilities.

E. Relationship to the General Plan

In addition to the Housing Element, the City’s other General Plan elements directly or indirectly affect the
development of housing. The Housing Element has been reviewed to ensure consistency with the other
elements of the General Plan.

The City’s General Plan, establishes a goal for the City to grow as a compact, unified city, maintaining clear
definition between rural and urban uses. The General Plan consists of a number of chapters/elements that
address both the State-mandated planning issues plus optional subjects that are of particular concern to
the City.

The City will ensure consistency between the Housing Element and the other General Plan Elements so
that policies introduced in one element are consistent with other elements. One Housing Element
program may ultimately change the land use diagram for some of the land south of State Route 156.

#
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F. Community Involvement

Public input on housing needs and strategies is critical to developing appropriate and effective City
housing programs. As part of the Housing Element update, the City undertook an effort to involve
residents, policy makers, and service providers in and around the San Juan Bautista Community. Recently,
the City developed a Housing Needs survey that was conveyed via utility billing to obtain local resident
input. The City has also conducted an outreach campaign that incorporated workshops, media releases,
public meetings, and plans to conduct public hearings before the Planning Commission and City Council in
conjunction with releasing the draft Housing Element to the Department of Housing and Community
Development.

Workshop. For this 2™ four-year update, the City conducted a fully noticed Public Workshop on August
13, 2019. The program was structured to solicit questions, comments, and discussion on the Housing
Element and potential sites for low and very low income housing and emergency shelters. Notices were
distributed to various non-profit and community organizations, housing stakeholders and other interested
parties. In addition, the event was posted on the City website, the Welcome Center, the library, at local
businesses, and on several of the City’s social media sites. The following groups were invited and noticed
of this workshop:

o California Rural Legal Assistance

s San Benito County Chamber of Commerce

o  Emmaus House

e San Benito County LULAC

e  South County Housing Corporation

o The Red Cross—San Benito County

® Aromas-San Juan Unified School District

e Community Food Bank of San Benito

¢ San Benito County Workforce Development Board
e Habitat for Humanity

e  Community Action Agency

e The Homeless Coalition of San Benito County
e Community Homeless Solutions

e Coalition of Homeless Services Providers

Approximately 20 persons attended the workshop and offered comments about ways to increase
affordable housing, the best locations for lower income housing and emergency shelters, and accessory
dwelling units. These citizen comments and recommendations were considered in preparing the housing
element. Spanish translation was available at the public workshaop.

State Review. This 2" four-year update willbewas submitted to the State Department of Housing and
Community Development's (HCD) on October 2, 2019 for its 60-day review and comment. This draft
document was posted online for public review on October 21, 2019. Onee-€Preliminary comments are-
were received back on October 21, 2019, and the draft updated document will-bewas revised to address
HCD’s comments. -and-brought-before-the-Planning-Commission-and-City-Council-for-adoption-Following
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City adoption, HCD will review and certified the Housing Element, which will be in effect through
December 31, 2023.

Adoption Hearings. The Planning Commission (recommending body) and the City Council (adopting body),
will hold public hearings prior to adoption, during which the public will have additional opportunities to
comment. Copies of the draft Housing Element will be made available for review at the City Hall and
public library prior to the hearings. [NOTE: PLAN DEVELOPMENT IS ONGOING AND HEARINGS WILL OCCUR
IN THE FUTURE]
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Community Profile

The Community Profile discusses population and household characteristics of San Juan Bautista residents,
summarizes available housing, and outlines the City’s housing needs through 2023. Later chapters of the
Housing Element discuss the various constraints, resources, and programs to address housing needs.

A. Demographic Characteristics

The amount and type of housing needed in San Juan Bautista is largely determined by population growth,
various demographic characteristics and the quality of the existing housing stock. These variables—age,
race/ethnicity, occupation, and income level—combine to influence the type of housing needed.

1. Population Trends

The City has experienced a cycle of “booms” and “busts,” with population dwindling in some decades, and
surging in others. In 1870, San Juan Bautista had more than 2,600 residents; almost 400 people more than
it has today. By 1910, the City’s population had declined to 326. It doubled between 1310 and 1930,
dropped during the 1930s, grew rapidly during the 1940s, and remained flat during the 1950s. In more
recent times, the population has continued to grow at an uneven rate with faster growth during the
1970s, 1980s, and 2000s and a slight decline during the 1990s. The 2017 population is 2,081, an increase
of 219 people from the 2010 population of 1,862

Since 1950, the City has grown much more slowly than the County as a whole. While San Benito County’s
population has increased by more than 200 percent since 1950, San Juan Bautista’s population has
increased by only about 50 percent.

2. Age Characteristics

A community’s housing needs are determined in part by the age characteristics of residents. Each age
group has distinct lifestyles, family type and size, income levels, and housing preferences. As people move
through each stage of life, their housing needs and preferences change. As a result, evaluating the age
characteristics of a community is important in addressing the housing needs of its residents.

The median age in San Juan Bautista at the last update in 2010 was 38.7 and now in 2017 it is 36.2. San
Benito County median age at the last update in 2010 was 34.3 and now in 2017 it is 35.4. Table 2-1
indicates that San Juan Bautista has a higher proportion of seniors than San Benito County as a whole.
Some 15.2 percent of all San Juan Bautista residents are over 65, compared to 11.8 percent countywide
(and 8.4 percent in Hollister). The housing needs of seniors are often significant, due to seniors’ limited
incomes and higher health care costs. Housing for seniors also may require certain physical attributes,
such as handicap ramps, grab bars, and easy access to local services.

1
U.S. Census Bureau/American Fact Finder
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At the other end of the age spectrum, 29.6 percent of all San Juan Bautista residents are 19 or under,
compared to 29.3 percent in the County as a whole. The City has a high concentration of children under 5,
suggesting a surge in elementary school enrollment during the coming years. It has an unusually low
concentration of adults aged 20-24, suggesting that there are limited housing (and job) opportunities for
persons in this age group. A larger supply of affordable rental units might allow young people to remain in
San Juan Bautista after graduating from high school or college. About a third of all San Juan Bautista
residents are in the “first-time home buyer” age cohort (25-44), which is comparable to the percentage in
the County as a whole.

Table 2-1: Age Distribution of San Juan Bautista and San Benito County, 2017

San Juan Bautista San Benito County

Age Population | Percent | Population | Percent
Under 5 years 223 10.1% 3,889 6.6%
5 to 9 years 113 5.1% 4,187 7.1%
10 to 14 years 111 5.0% 4,707 8.0%
15 to 19 years 208 9.4% 4,469 7.6%
20 to 24 years 85 3.8% 4,062 6.9%
25 to 34 years 363 16.4% 7,702 13.1%
35 to 44 years 186 8.4% 7,612 13.0%
45 to 54 years 322 14.6% 8.117 13.8%
55 to 59 years 124 5.6% 3,852 6.6%
60 to 64 years 139 6.3% 3,184 5.4%
65 to 74 years 166 7.5% 4,109 7.0%
75 to 84 years 124 5.5% 1,868 3.2%
85 years and over 48 2.2% 913 1.6%

Total population 2,212 100.00% 58,671 100.0%

Source: United States Census — American Fact Finder

3. Race and Ethnicity

Various factors affect the present race and ethnic distribution the residents of San Juan Bautista’s today.
San Juan Bautista’s rural roots, the presence of the agricultural industry, proximity to Silicon Valley and
Highway 101, and the historic availability of affordable housing all have contributed to the race and ethnic
composition of the community today. Understanding these dynamics is important in providing insight into
the City’s existing and changing housing needs.

The racial and ethnic composition of San Juan Bautista residents is shown in Table 2-2. Just fewer than 44
percent of the City’s residents are non-Hispanic whites. About 54 percent of residents are of Hispanic
origin. Less than 2 percent of San Juan Bautista’s residents belong to other racial groups. In San Juan
Bautista the Hispanic population increased slightly and White Non-Hispanic decreased. More notable was
the change the County has had, seeing an increase in about 3 percent in the Hispanic population and a
decrease of 3 percent in the non-Hispanic whites (see Table 2-2). Among San Juan Bautista’s Hispanic
residents, 83 percent were of Mexican heritage.
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Table 2-2: Racial and Ethnic Distribution of San Juan Bautista and San Benito County, 2017

Ethnicity San Juan Bautista San Benito County

% Change % Change

Number Percent | 2000-2010 | Number Percent 2000-2010
White, Non-Hispanic 940 42 50% -1.4% 20,872 35.6% -2.7%
Hispanic Origin 1,189 43.80% 5.1% 34,561 58.9% 2.5%
Black 0 0% -0.6% 437 0.7% -0.2%
Asian-Pacific Islander 48 2.2% -0.6% 1,657 2.9% 0.3%
Native American 0 0% -3.1% 1/8 0.3% -1.3%
Other Races 35 1.6% 0.7% 966 1.6% 1.4%

Total 2,212 100.00% 58,671 100.00%

Source: United States Census —American FactFinder

According to the California Department of Education in 2017-18, English Learners represented 24 percent (269)
of all students in the Aromas/San Juan Unified School District. Of this total, Spanish was the primary language
for 263 of the 269 students. Overall, the School District race and ethnicity demographics represent a higher
proportion of Hispanic than the City itself. This difference reflects higher Hispanic numbers in the Aromas area
and the higher number of Hispanic households with children under 18 years of age.

4. Household Type

According to the 2017 Census, the average household size in San Juan Bautista is 2.68 persons. As Table 2-3
indicates, this is close to the State average (2.96), and lower than the San Benito County average of
approximately 3.23 persons per household. About 27 percent of the City’s households consist of people living
alone (up from 23 percent in 2010), while 25 percent consist of large families -- defined as 4 or more persons
per household (up from 14.7 percent in 2017). The relatively broad distribution of household sizes suggests a
demand for a wide variety of housing types, from small units suitable for one person to large homes for families
with 4 or more children.

Table 2-3: Household Size in San Juan Bautista, San Benito County and California, 2017

Type San Juan Bautista San Benito County California

Household Size Number Percent! Number Percent! Number Percentt
Total Households 788 100 17,440 100 12,888,128 100

1 Person 216 27 2,479 14 3,075,683 24

2 Person 210 27 5116 29 3,890,262 30

3 Person 169 21 3,460 20 2,146,964 17

4 Person or more 193 25 6,385 37 3,775,219 29
Persons per Household 2.68 3.23 2.96

Source: United States Census — American FactFinder, California Department of Finance

Table 2-4 shows a vast majority of the City’s households are families. Married couples with children and other
families represent the largest number and percentage of households in San Juan Bautista. It is noteworthy that
approximately 27percent of all households are made up of persons living alone. Housing demands for persons
living alone can differ significantly from family households particularly as those single person households age.
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Household size and composition is a complex issue, often reflective of market conditions as well as demographic
factors. The relatively high cost of housing in San Juan Bautista, coupled with the lower incomes of many
residents, has resulted in some sharing of homes and units. In addition, cultural preferences toward the elderly
and other extended family members impacts household size. Again, it appears that future housing opportunities
will need to look at a wide range of types and sizes.

Table 2-4: Household Type and Presence of Children, 2017

Households Sub Group Within Households

Family Households | 507 | 64% Husband-wife family 321 | 63% | With related children under 18 |267| 53%
Male, no wife present 103 | 20% | With own children under 18 251] 50%

Female, no husband present | 83 16%

507 | 100%
Non-family Households| 281 | 36% Householder living alone 216 | 77% Male 65 years and older 12| 8%
Female 65 years and older 36 | 23%

Total Households 788 | 100%

Source: United States Census — American Fact Finder

5. Income

As shown in Table 2-5, in 2017, the median household income in San Juan Bautista was $66,833, compared to
$80,760 countywide (and $77,823 in Hollister). Table 2-5 indicates that 15 percent of all San Juan Bautista
households earned less than $25,000 a year, compared to 12 percent countywide. On the other hand, 66
percent of all San Juan Bautista households earned more than $50,000 a year, compared to 17 percent
countywide.

Table 2-5: Income Distribution of San Juan Bautista and San Benito County Households, 2017

San Juan Bautista Hollister San Benito County
Number Percent | Number | Percent | Number Percent
Total households 788 100 10,418 100 17,440 100
Less than $10,000 20 2.5% 256 2.5% 356 2%
$10,000 to $14,999 32 4.1% 5445 4.3% 630 3.6%
$15,000 to $24,999 67 8.5% 659 6.3% 1,076 6.2%
$25,000 to $34,999 70 8.9% 643 6.2% 1,096 6.3%
$35,000 to $49,999 76 9.6% 1,253 12% 1,930 11.1%
$50,000 to $74,999 170 21.6% 1,790 17.2% 3,100 17.8%
$75,000 to $99,999 138 17.5% 1,716 16.5% 2,523 14.5%
$100,000 to $149,999 118 15% 2,158 20.7% 3,641 20.9%
$150,000 to $199,999 31 3.9% 924 8.9% 1,627 9.3%
$200,000 or more 66 8.4% 574 5.5% 1,461 8.4%
Median household
income (dollars) 66,833 (X) 77,823 (X) 80,760 (X)

Source: United States Census — American FactFinder
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In 2017, approximately 319 San Juan Bautista residents (14 percent of the population) were classified by
the Census as living in households below the poverty level, defined as earning less than 30 percent of the
median household income for the County. See Table 2-6 below for a breakdown between the City and the
County on the distribution of residents with an income classified as very low, low and moderate.

Table 2-6: Distribution of Households per Income Level

San Juan Bautista San Benito County|
Very Low Income 142 3,850
Low income 147 2,937
Moderate Income 178 1,990
Above Moderate 321 8,663
Total 788 17,440

*Derived and interpolated from Table 2-5 above.

B. Special Needs Groups

Certain groups in San Juan Bautista and San Benito County encounter greater difficulty finding decent,
affordable housing based on their special needs and/or circumstances. Special circumstances may be
related to one’s employment and income, family characteristics, medical condition or disability, and/or
household characteristics. A major emphasis of the Housing Element, per State law, is to ensure that
persons from all walks of life have the opportunity to find suitable housing in San Juan Bautista.

State Housing Element law identifies the following “special needs” groups: senior households, disabled
persons, single-parent households, female-headed households, large households, persons and families in
need of emergency shelter, and farm workers. This section provides a discussion of housing needs for
each particular group, and identifies the major programs and services available to address their housing
and supportive service needs. San Juan Bautista is an extremely small City with relatively small disabled,
homeless and non-senior special needs populations. Data from the 2000, 2010, and 2017 U.S. Census
Bureau has been used to determine the size of special needs groups in San Juan Bautista. However, there
is no reliable count available for the City of San Juan Bautista regarding farmworkers and homeless
persons and therefore, these 2 special needs groups are not provided below. Table 2-7 summarizes special
needs groups residing in the City.

Table 2-7: Special Needs Population

2000 2010 2017
Special Needs Group Number
Senior Households(1) 51 117 188
Disabled Persons(z) 493 n 236(3)
Single-Parent Families w Children 65 126 186
Large Households4) 77 100 193(5)
Sources: 2000, 2010, 2017 U.S. Census Bureau.

Notations:

1. Households headed by persons age 65 years or older.

2. A person with a physical, mental, or emotional condition that lasts over a long period of time that makes it difficult to live
independently.

3. Totals for the 6 disability types combined.

4. Households with 5 or more members residing in a home

5. 2017 data only provides 4 or more members in a household.

*A disability is defined differently from the 2000 to 2010 Census. 2010 Census data is unavailable.
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1. Senior Households

According to 2017 Census data, 188 households in San Juan Bautista (24 percent) were headed by seniors
(persons age 65 years and older), a significant increase over the preceding decades (e.g. in 2010 senior
households were 12 percent of total households). Senior households typically have special housing needs
due to 3 primary circumstances: fixed income, high health care costs, and physical disabilities.

More senior householders in San Juan Bautista are homeowners than renters (17 percent and 7 percent,
respectively) (U.S. Census Bureau, 2017). Because of physical and/or other limitations, senior
homeowners may have difficulty perfdrming regular home maintenance or repair activities. Senior women
are especially in need of assistance. For those who rent housing, senior renters can benefit greatly from
rental assistance.

Various programs can address senior needs including congregate care, supportive services, rental
subsidies, shared housing, and housing rehabilitation assistance. For frail seniors or those with disabilities,
housing with architectural design features accommodating disabilities can help ensure continued
independent living. (Housing for disabled people is discussed in the following section.) Seniors with
mobility/self-care limitations also benefit from public transportation assistance, food services, and other
supportive services. Senior housing with supportive services can be provided to allow independent living.
There are currently no designated senior only housing facilities in the City, nor are there any State licensed
congregate care facilities.

2. Disabled Persons

Disabled persons have special housing needs because of their fixed income, the lack of accessible and
affordable housing, and higher health costs associated with their disability. A disability is defined broadly
by the Census Bureau as a physical, mental, or emotional condition that lasts over a long period of time
that makes it difficult to live independently. According to the U.S. Census Bureau, disability data comes
from the American Community Survey, the Survey of Income and Program Participation, and the Current
Population Survey; all 3 surveys ask about 6 disability types: hearing difficulty, vision difficulty, cognitive
difficulty, ambulatory difficulty, self-care difficulty, and independent living difficulty. According to U.S.
2017 Census data, San Juan Bautista has 236 disabled residents, representing 11 percent of City residents.
Of these persons, only 14 (4 percent) are seniors.

To meet the unique housing needs of the disabled, the City, through San Benito County and the State of
California, participates in various programs to assist the disabled. The County Health Services
Administration, State Department of Social Services, and the Social Security Administration provide
support services. The City’s building code also requires new residential construction comply with the
Federal Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), which requires a minimum percentage of units in new
developments to be fully accessible to the physically disabled as well as California Title 24 accessibility
requirements.

Living arrangements for disabled persons depend on the severity of the disability. Many persons live
independently with other family members. To maintain independent living, disabled persons may need
special housing design features, income support, and in-home supportive services for persons with
medical conditions. According to the California Department of Social Services, for those requiring a more
supportive setting, San Juan Bautista has no licensed care facilities. There are; however, licensed facilities
within San Benito County.
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3. Mental and Developmental Disabilities

Persons with a mental disability (defined within 2017 Census as cognitive difficulty) fall within the
definition afforded by the Americans with Disabilities Act and thus are entitled to fair housing. According
to the 2017 U.S. Census Bureau, there are approximately 67 persons (4 percent) over the age of 5 years
old with a cognitive difficulty in San Juan Bautista. The San Andreas Regional Center (local office in Gilroy)
assists persons with developmental disabilities who live in the city of San Juan Bautista. In California,
“Developmental Disability” means a disability that is attributable to mental retardation, cerebral palsy,
epilepsy, autism, or disabling conditions found to be closely related to mental retardation or to require
treatment similar to that required for individuals with mental retardation. Persons with such disorders
may have difficulty finding suitable housing due to a shortage of appropriate housing, the inability to
afford housing, or even discrimination in being considered for housing.

San Benito County works with non-profits and public agencies to address housing needs. In San Juan
Bautista, San Benito County is the primary agency developing and managing housing for persons with
psychiatric and developmental disabilities. The California Services Development Corporation of San Benito
County, a non-profit organization, works with people of developmental disabilities, who are capable of
holding jobs and affording rent, to find affordable housing within the County. The San Andreas Regional
Center provides job training, placement and life skills assistance to San Juan Bautista and San Benito
County on the whole.

4. Families

In recent years, the high cost of housing has placed an escalating burden on families, any individual or
group of 2 or more individuals, in San Juan Bautista. As moderate and lower income families increasingly
can no longer afford the median-priced home, market conditions have led to a higher prevalence of
overpayment, overcrowding, and substandard living conditions. Of all family households, single parents
with children and large families are disproportionally impacted. While the housing bubble of late has
provided some relief in terms of “for-sale” housing prices, the cost for rental housing has not reflected
this downward trend. Compounding the issue has been the extended recession with high unemployment
in both San Benito County proper as well as the region.

v Single-Parent/Female-Headed. Single-parent/female-headed households with children often
require special consideration and assistance as a result of their greater need for affordable
housing, accessible day care, health care, and a variety of other supportive services. Single-
parent/female-headed households also tend to receive unequal treatment in the rental housing
market, which is a fair housing concern. Moreover, because of their relatively lower household
incomes, single-parent/female-headed households also have limited opportunities for finding
affordable, decent, and safe housing.

The U.S. Census Bureau, 2017 Census, reported that in San Juan Bautista there are 186 single-parent
households with children under 18, of which 83 are headed by females. The Census also indicates that 11
percent of female-headed families with children less than 18 years live below the poverty level, this
percentage decreased in comparison to percentage reported in the 2010 Census.

v Large Households. Large households are defined as households having 5 or more members
residing in the home; however, the 2017 Census data only provides 4 or more members in a
household. These households constitute a special needs group because of an often limited supply
of adequately sized, affordable housing unit. Because of high housing costs, families and/or
extended families are forced to live together under one roof.
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According to the 2017 Census, San Juan Bautista has 193 large households. The housing needs of large
households could be met by larger units, or depending on household make-up, 2 or more smaller units.
Because most of the larger units in San Juan Bautista are expensive, lower-income large households
commonly reside in smaller units, frequently resulting in overcrowding. To address overcrowding, the City
will be working to develop housing opportunities for all sized households.

5. Farm Workers

Estimating the size of the agricultural labor force is challenging as farm workers are historically
undercounted by the census and other data sources. Farm workers are typically categorized into 3 groups:
(1) permanent, (2) seasonal, (3) migrant. Permanent farm workers are typically employed year round and
full-time with the same employer. A seasonal farm worker works on average less than 150 days a year and
earns at least half of his/her earned income from farm work. Seasonal farm workers include persons that
reside in the County full time but may only work during a portion of the harvest of one or more crops,
and/or migrant farm workers that utilize temporary housing only during the harvest and then leave the
area. A seasonal worker that is a resident may seek other temporary work in the off- season and may have
difficulty finding affordable housing because periods of employment are sporadic and the pay is low.
Migrant farm workers are seasonal farm workers who have to travel to do the farm work so that he/she is
unable to return to his/her permanent residence within the same day. Migrant farm workers arrive during
the cultivating or harvesting of crops and leave when work is not available. Generally, a migrant laborer
will seek housing in a labor camp, rentals, vehicles, overcrowded conditions, or substandard facilities if
there are insufficient migrant labor facilities. A portion of the farm workers may also be undocumented
foreign workers who may come to the area during the harvest season and then leave. Some
undocumented foreign workers may stay because they lack insufficient funds to return home. The areas
agricultural has transition over time from orchards to row crops, which has transitioned much of San
Benito County’s farm labor to a permanent workforce.

According to the 2012 Census of Agriculture, San Benito County reported 628 farms in 2012. This means
there was a minute increase in the total number of farms since 2007, when the county reported 625
farms. The county also has a higher number of permanent farm workers (1,118) as opposed to seasonal
farm workers (1,051), with a total of 2,169 farm workers. The needs of farm workers are unique in how
the nature of their work is often seasonal. This means their housing-needs may only be during certain
times and/or their income will be highly restricted (affecting their ability to afford housing) during part of
the year. Further, they often have a restricted income and limited English speaking skills.

Although the city does not have seasonal and permanent farmworker housing within the city limits, the
USDA provides a 2012 Census of San Benito County’s farm statistics and county data regarding migrant
seasonal farm workers. 2017 Census data lists 13 workers employed in agriculture, but it is not known
what positions these worker hold.

Due to the nature of their work and the lower income, farm workers often face difficulties with housing
affordability, overcrowding, and substandard conditions. San Juan Bautista has a High Density Residential
and a Mixed Use District that are intended to provide for a broad variety of housing choices, especially in
the lower cost ranges. There is no dedicated farmworker housing within the city limits, but there is a
farmworker housing establishment just south of the city. Hollister, which is located about 8 miles away
from San Juan Bautista, has 2 and 3 bedroom apartments dedicated specifically to farm worker families.
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Table 2-8: San Benito County Farms and Workers

Farm workers  Farms

Farm Operations with fewer than 10 Employees

Permanent 355 128
Seasonal (e.g., less than 150 days) 374 126
Total _ 729 254
Farm Operations with 10 or more Employees

Pemanent 763 29
Seasonal (e.g., less than 150 days) 677 24
Total 1,440 53
Grand Total 2,169 307

Source: 2012 Census of Agricultural Volume 1, Part 5 (Table 7, Hired Farm Labor — Workers and Payroll: 2012, p. 299)

Table 2-9: San Benito County Farm Labor Workers

Year 2007 2012
Hired farm labor (farms) 228 242
Hired farm labor (workers) 2945 2169
Hired seasonal farm labor() (workers) 1458 1051
Hired permanent farm labor(2) (workers) 1487 1118

Source: 2012 Census of Agricultural Volume 1, Part 5 (Table 7, Hired Farm Labor — Workers and Payroll: 2012, p. 299)
Notes: (1) Employees that work less than 150 days.
(2) Employees that work 150 days or more.

6. Homeless Persons

Homelessness is not one of the more pressing issues in San Benito County as a whole. Recent surveys of
the city estimate about 0 to 3 homeless persons in San Juan Bautista. The City participates in the
countywide winter shelters by the “faith-based” community.

The homeless are considered a special needs group because loss of shelter can result in a loss of a sense
of well-being. Persons and families that become homeless may lose all of their possessions. The shelter
needs for these persons vary from temporary shelter, transitional shelter, and counseling and support
services. Special facilities may be needed for substance abusers, persons suffering from AIDS, the mentally
ill and persons/families displaced by job loss and or lack of affordable housing.

There are currently no homeless facilities in San Juan Bautista, but Table 4-1 (Vacant Parcel Inventory)
presented in Chapter 4, below, includes a 0.48-acre underutilized site zoned for Public Facilities that
would be appropriate for a homeless shelter. Currently, there is no provision for transitional housing
within the City Zoning Ordinance. Pursuant to State law, the City is in the process of addressing this within
its Zoning Code through its adoption of an ordinance to amend the allowed uses within residentially zoned
areas in the City to accommodate transitional housing as allowed. There are several Emergency
Shelters/Transitional Housing services available in San Benito County.

e ———————————————_—
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C. Housing Stock Characteristics

This section of the Housing Element addresses the housing characteristics and conditions in San Juan
Bautista. Housing factors evaluated include housing stock and growth, tenure and vacancy rates, age and
condition, housing costs, and affordability.

1. Housing Growth

The City of San Juan Bautista is a small City that embraces its history and its heritage. The City has
experienced moderate housing growth over the last twenty years with the addition of both single family
and multiple family housing units. Moderate to slow growth in new housing is anticipated through 2023.
The City is within commute range of the jobs-rich Silicon Valley, and this factor places price-pressure on
the local housing market.

2. Structure Type

Table 2-10 tracks the changing mix of San Juan Bautista’s housing stock between 2009 and 2018, based on
the City’s records for new construction. According to the City’s records, 83 new housing units were added
to the City’s housing stock between 2010 and 2018; 37 of which were added in 2018.

Table 2-10: New Housing Units by Structure Type, 2009-2018

2009 - 2018
Total housing units 58
Single Family Residence 57
Accessory Dwelling Units 1
2 or more units 0
Mobile home 0

Source: DOF Table E-5 2019; City’s new housing construction counts

Table 2-11 compares the housing composition of San Juan Bautista with that of the County and Hollister.
About 72 percent of all San Juan Bautista’s units are single-family detached and attached homes, about 25
percent are in multi-unit buildings, and 3 percent are mobile homes.

Table 2-11: Housing Unit Profile: San Juan Bautista and Nearby Jurisdictions, 2019

San Juan Bautista San Benito County Hollister

Number % Number % Number %
Total housing units 803 100 18,935 100 11,259 100
1-unit, detached 501 62 14,771 78 8,333 74
1-unit, attached 77 10 747 4 327 3
2 to 4 units 130 16 1,408 7 1,242 11
5 + units 70 1,156 6 995 9
Mobile home 25 853 5 362

Source: DOF Table E-5 2019
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3. Vacancy Characteristics

In all, there were 64 vacant units at the time the Census was taken in 2010. However, only 31 of these
units were available for rent or for sale, resulting in a vacancy rate of 8.6 percent. The vacancy rate was
higher than the rate in the County as a whole (5.6 percent). The vacancy rate has increased slightly from
the 7.8 percent vacancy rate reported for San Juan Bautista in the 2000 Census. A vacancy rate of 4 or 5
percent is indicative of a fairly healthy housing market. However, because the rents or prices of the vacant
units are not provided by the Census, there is no way to know if they are affordable.

Table 2-12: Vacancy Characteristics: San Juan Bautista and San Benito County, 2010

San Juan Bautista San Benito County
Vacancy Status Number Percent Number Percent
For rent 18 28.1 315 29.6
For sale only 13 20.3 222 20.8
Rented or sold, not occupied 3 4.7 73 6.9
For seasonal, recreational, or occasional use 9 141 154 14.5
For migratory workers 0 0 13 1.2
Other vacant 21 32.8 288 27.0
Total Vacant Units 64 100 1,065 100

Source: 2010 Census

About 33 housing units in San Juan Bautista were vacant at the time of the Census but not available for
rent or sale. Most of these units are used seasonally or for recreational use. Some may be used by migrant
workers. The Statewide Housing Plan suggests that a gross vacancy rate (all vacant units, including those
not for sale or rent) of 6-8 percent is desirable in an area with a large seasonal labor force. The gross
vacancy rate in San Juan Bautista is 7.8 percent.

4. Housing Condition

The Census indicates that about 20 percent of the City’s housing stock was built before 1940. This is a
higher percentage than in most cities in California and suggests that rehabilitation needs may be higher in
San Juan Bautista than elsewhere in the region. A windshield survey conducted in early 2013 indicated
that about 7 percent of the City’s single family housing stock had some sign of exterior deterioration.
Typical conditions observed included peeling paint, sagging roofs, and disheveled outbuildings (including
sheds and detached garages). The City estimates that fewer than 5 units have deteriorated to the point
where they cannot feasibly be repaired.

5. Housing Prices

Home values and rent, according to Zillow (August 2019) are presented in Table 2-13 below. As shown,
the average monthly rate in the City is $2,447 each month and the average housing value is $614,000.
However, Zillow also states that the median home value in the City is $647,700 and the median price of
homes currently listed in the City is $784,900.

Assuming a 10 percent down payment, a 30-year fixed mortgage, and a 5 percent interest rate, the
monthly principal and interest payment on the median-priced home in San Juan Bautista would be $3,164.

m
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Property taxes, insurance, and utilities would yield an additional monthly housing cost of about $1,700 a
month. At 30 percent of gross income, the household would need to earn at least $194,560 to afford such

a home. While such house payments would be prohibitively high for most San Juan Bautista households,
they could seem very attractive to would-be homebuyers from the Santa Clara Valley or the Monterey
Peninsula.

Table 2-13: Home Value and Monthly Rent

Year Housing Value Monthly Rent

2015 $570,000 $2,149

2016 $618,000 $2,356

2017 $625,000 $2,548

2018 $601,000 $2,524

2019 $655,000 $2,656
Average $614,000 $2,447

Source: Zillow accessed in August 2019 through
https://www.zillow.com/san-juan-bautista-ca/home-values/

5. Housing Affordability

Housing affordability is influenced by a number of factors. Rising housing costs, coupled with stagnant or
declining real incomes, are making housing less affordable for an increasing number of households. This
section analyzes the ability of San Juan Bautista households to secure housing in one of the least
affordable regions in California.

Every year, the National Association of Home Builders (NAHB) tracks the ability of households to afford a
home in almost 2,000 metropolitan areas across the country. NAHB develops a Housing Opportunity Index
(HOI) for a given area that is defined as the share of homes sold in that area that would have been
affordable to a family earning the median income. In the past, less than 10 percent of the homes sold in
the neighboring Santa Cruz-Watsonville metropolitan area have been affordable to the median family.
Housing prices in San Juan Bautista have historically reflected this joining area.

The affordability of housing in San Juan Bautista can be inferred by comparing the cost of renting or
owning a home in San Juan Bautista with the income levels of different size households. The following
page shows the annual income ranges for very low, low, and moderate-income households by household
size and the maximum affordable housing payment based on the federal standard of 30 percent of
household income. Standard housing costs for utilities, taxes, and property insurance are also shown.
From these assumptions, the affordability of housing for a variety of income levels can be determined.

Affordability by Household Income

V' Extremely Low-Income Households: The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
(HUD) uses the Federal Poverty Guidelines to determine the extremely low-income limit. HUD
compares the applicable guidelines with 60 percent of the very low-income limit and chooses the
greater limit of the 2. This value may not exceed the very low-income level.

V' Very Low-Income Households: Very low-income limits reflect 50 percent of the median family
income and HUD’s median family income value generally equals 2 times HUD’s 4-person very low-
income limit. Given the expensive costs of single-family homes and also rising cost of
condominiums in San Juan Bautista, very low-income households could not afford to own a single-
family home without considerable public assistance. Very low income households are thus

_
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confined to rental housing, and some rent a room within a house. A large family (5 or more
persons), may in many cases only be able to afford to rent a studio or one-bedroom unit, which
would be too small. In practical terms, a large family would have to overpay for housing just to
live in an inadequately sized rental unit.

v Low-Income Households: Low-income limits represent the higher level of: 80 percent of the
median family income or 80 percent of state non-metropolitan median family income. According
to the Department of Housing and Community Development’s State Income Limits for 2019, the
low-income limit reflects 160 percent of the very low-income limit, with some exceptions.

v Moderate-Income Households: The moderate-income limit is equal to 120 percent of the
County’s area median income for 4-person households. One-person households and small families
may be able to afford a limited number of 2-bedroom single-family homes and some
condominiums available on the market without public assistance. Large families should be able to
afford a few 3-bedroom homes, provided that down payment and closing costs can be managed.

Table 2-14: Upper Limits for Income Brackets in San Benito County: April 2019

Persons in Extremely Very Low Low Median Moderate

Household Low Income Income Income Income Income
1 $21,450 $35,700 $57,150 $59,150 $71,000
2 $24,500 $40,800 $65,300 $67,600 $81,100
3 $27,550 $45,900 $73,450 $76,050 $91,250
4 $30,600 $51,000 $81,600 $84,500 $101,400

Source: California Department of Housing and Community Development 2019 State Income Limits

The following income range amounts are based on a median family income of $81,100 in 2015 for San
Benito County as reported in the San Benito County Housing Element (2014-2023):

e Extremely Low Income: less than $24,330
e Very Low Income: $24,331 - $40,550
e Other Low Income: $40,551 - $64,880
e Moderate Income: $64,881 - $97,320

e Above Moderate Income: $97,321 and greater

The median monthly housing cost was $1,692 (or $20,304 annually) in 2017 for an existing home and the
monthly housing cost for a new home estimates at approximately $3,280 (or $39,360 annually). In order
to pay only 30 percent of household income for existing housing, a monthly income of $14,425 ($173,100
annually) is needed to afford an existing home and $16,974 ($203,685 annually) to afford a new home.
From this calculation, only above moderate income households could afford to purchase an existing home
in San Juan Bautista. Given the price of new housing units, not even moderate income levels could afford
to become homeowners.

D. Regional Housing Needs

State law requires all regional councils of governments, including the San Benito Council of Governments
(SB+COG), to determine the existing and projected housing need for its region (Government Code Section
665580 et seq.). SB+COG is also responsible for determining the portion allocated to each jurisdiction
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within the region. This is called the Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) process. The City’s housing
targets were presented in Chapter 1.

1. Existing Housing Needs

A continuing priority of the City is enhancing or maintaining residents' quality of life. A key measure of
quality of life in a community is the extent of “housing problems.” Housing problems primarily include
overcrowding and overpayment, which are defined below:

v" Overcrowding: Refers to a housing unit that is occupied by more than one person per room,
excluding kitchens, bathrooms, hallways, and porches.

v' Overpayment: Refers to a household paying 30 percent or more of its gross income for rent
(either mortgage or rent), including costs for utilities, property insurance, and real estate taxes.

Overcrowding

Overcrowding occurs when housing costs are so high relative to income that families double or triple up to
devote income to other basic needs such as food and medical care. Overcrowding also tends to result in
accelerated deterioration of homes, a shortage of off-street parking, increased strain on public
infrastructure, and additional traffic congestion. Therefore, maintaining a reasonable level of occupancy
and alleviating overcrowding are critical to improving the quality of life in the community.

According to the California Department of Housing and Community Development’s 5" Housing Element
data package, 60 households in San Juan Bautista live in overcrowded conditions. Table 2-15 details
household sizes for San Juan Bautista. Per the U.S. Census Bureau, overcrowding is defined as households
with more than one person per room. Renters typically are more likely to live in overcrowded conditions
or overpay for housing. Renters represent 87 percent of all overcrowded housing units. in San Juan
Bautista, 45 percent of all renters overpay for housing, compared to about 16 percent of owners.

Table 2-15: Tenure and Overcrowding: San Juan Bautista and San Benito County, 2012

San Juan Bautista San Benito County

Number Percent | Number | Percent
Occupied housing units 586 100% 16,840 100%
Average household size of owner-occupied unit 2.56 (X) 3.14 (X)
Average household size of renter-occupied unit 2.93 (X) 3.48 (X)
Renter occupied: 344 59% 6,012 36%
0.50 or less occupants per room 168 49% 2,541 42%
0.51 to 1.00 occupants per room 124 36% 2,626 44%
1.01 to 1.50 occupants per room 49 14% 501 8%
1.51 to 2.00 occupants per room <) 0.9% 254 4%
2.01 or more occupants per room 0 0% 90 1%
Owner occupied: 242 41% 10,828 64%
0.50 or less occupants per room 172 71% 7,312 68%
0.51 to 1.00 occupants per room 62 26% 3,028 28%
1.01 to 1.50 occupants per room 8 3% 403 4%
1.51 to 2.00 occupants per room 0 0% 35 0%
2.01 or more occupants per room 0 0% 50 0%
Total Units with more than 1 persons per room 60 10% 1,333 8%

Source: California Department of Housing and Community Development 2012
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Overpayment

Housing overpayment occurs when housing costs increase faster than income. As is the case for many
jurisdictions in California, it is not uncommon to overpay for housing in San Juan Bautista especially in
light of the recent housing bubble and subsequent collapse. However, to the extent that overpayment is
often disproportionately concentrated among the most vulnerable members of the community,
maintaining a reasonable level of housing cost burden is an important contributor to quality of life.

Housing overpayment remains a significant problem in San Benito County, where many households pay a
substantial portion of their income for housing. The problem is particularly severe for renters. Over the
past decade, housing overpayment has increased significantly for homeowners but declined slightly for
renters. This trend has shifted somewhat as the price of “for sale” homes have declined while interest
rates have remained at historically low rates.

The following table shows that 45 percent of extremely low-income households in San Juan Bautista pay
30 percent or more of their gross income for rent.

Table 2-16: Overpayment for Housing among All San Juan Bautista Households

% of Household Income Renters Owners Totals

Spent on Housing Costs
More than 30% 155 34 189
Extremely Low Income (0-30%) 35 15 26%
Income between 30%-50% 55 15 37%
Income between 50%-80% 65 4 3%
More than 30% but less than 65 0 65
50%
Extremely Low Income (0-30%) 0 0 0%
Income between 30%-50% 15 0 23%
Income between 50%-80% 50 0 7%
More than 50% 90 34 124
Extremely Low Income (0-30%) 35 15 40%
Income between 30%-50% 40 15 A%
Income between 50%-80% 15 4 15%
Total households 345 210

Source: California Housing and Community Development Department 2007-2011 data

Within San Juan Bautista, both renters and owners of lower income households are experiencing
overpayment. Overpayment is defined as paying more than 30 percent of a household’s gross income for
housing. The following table displays the total overpaying households, and highlights how lower incomes
are particularly subjected to overpayment.
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Table 2-17: Overpayment Lower Income Households

Households Renters Owners Total
Total Households Overpaying 185 79 264

Lower Income Households
Total Lower Income Households Overpaying 190 55 245
Lower Income Households Overpaying (30% of Income) 155 34 189
Lower Income Households Overpaying (50% of Income) 90 34 124

Source: California Department of Housing and Community Development, 2007-2011

Overpayment amongst renters is the highest, with 70 percent of total overpaying households being
renters. Further, lower income renting households are more prone to overpayment, with 82 percent
paying over 30 percent of income and 73 percent paying over 50 percent of income.

2. Low Income Housing Needs

According to the California Department of Housing and Community Development’s 5" Housing Element
data package, San Juan Bautista had approximately 65 extremely low income households, representing
approximately 12 percent of the total households. Out of the 345 renters in San Juan Bautista, 68 percent
experienced a housing cost burden. Approximately 36 percent of the 210 owners had a cost burden as
well. Amongst all households overpaying, 70 percent of renters experienced housing problems and 30
percent of owners did as well. The housing cost burden was highest amongst renters in lower income
households paying more than 30 percent totaling at 82 percent while 18 percent of owners (34 percent
total occupied households) were using more than 30 percent of their income for housing. Approximately
22 percent of all occupied households (16 percent of renters and 6 percent of owners) experienced a
severe housing cost burden of greater than 50 percent of household income.

Table 2-18: Housing Needs for ELI' Households

Renters | Owners Total
Total Number of Households 465 390 855
Total Number of ELI Households 170 25 1985
Percent of ELI with any Household Problems 31 6 37
Percent of ELI with Housing Cost Burden 31 6 37
Percent of ELI with Severe Housing Cost Burden (50% of income) 29 6 35
Total Percent of Households Experiencing Severe Housing Cost Burden 37 6 43

Source: Office of Policy Development and Research - Consolidated Planning/Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy Data,
2011-2015

Notes: (1) ELI = extremely low income

Projected Need

The City currently has very low housing need allocation of 10 units. If San Juan Bautista assumes 50
percent of their very low-income regional housing need is extremely low-income households, the City has
a projected need of 5 units for extremely low income households.
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3. Future Housing Need

Future housing need refers to the share of the region’s housing need that has been allocated to a
community. In allocating the region’s future housing needs to jurisdictions, SB+COG is required to take
into account planning considerations in Section 65584 of the State Government Code. These include
market demand for housing, employment and commuting, availability of suitable sites and public facilities,
type and tenure of housing, and other factors. SB+COG calculates future housing needs based upon
regional and local forecasts of household growth, adjusted to allow for a sufficient number of units
needed for normal vacancies and the replacement of units demolished or converted during the 2014-2019
timeframe.

After construction need is determined, SB+COG applies a “fair share” formula to determine the number of
housing units to be affordable at different income levels. The fair share calculation is performed to meet
the State mandate to reduce the disproportionate concentration of lower-income households in any one
community and ensure that each city shares in the region’s need for affordable housing.

Table 1-1, presented in Section 1, summarizes San Juan Bautista’s share, 41 units, of the region’s future
housing need for the 2014-2023 planning period.

4. Assisted Housing At-Risk of Conversion

Existing housing that receives governmental assistance is often a significant source of affordable housing
in many communities. According to the San Benito County 5th Cycle Housing Element, the Santa Cruz
Housing Authority provided a total of 344 Housing Choice Voucher Program (Section 8) tenant-based
vouchers in the cities of Hollister and San Juan Bautista. The Housing Element includes a target to
conserve these vouchers through 2023.

There are no deed-restricted housing units in San Juan Bautista at this time, but the recent housing
developments will be providing inclusionary units under affordability deed restrictions, or paying an in
lieu fee that will finance the construction of deed-restricted housing units. Newly constructed ADUs that
fall within the State definitions will have restrictions regarding ownership and occupancy, and by their
nature, are expected to provide moderately priced housing.

M
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Housing Constraints

The City recognizes that adequate and affordable housing for all income groups strengthens the
community. Many factors can work to encourage or constrain the development, maintenance, and
improvement of San Juan Bautista’s housing stock. These include market mechanisms, government codes,
and physical and environmental constraints. This section addresses those potential constraints.

A. Market Constraints

Land costs, construction costs, and market financing contribute to the cost of housing reinvestment and
production. Although market conditions represent the primary driver, the City retains some leverage in
instituting policies and programs to address market factors. The following discussion highlights market
constraints to the production, maintenance, and improvement of housing.

1. Development Costs

The price of single-family housing and rents for apartments largely reflect construction costs, the cost of
land and labor costs. As housing development costs increase, so does the price of housing. In San Juan
Bautista, proximity to Silicon Valley empléyment centers coupled with limited land resulted in increasing
home prices and rents during the first part of the housing element cycle.

Construction Costs

Construction costs vary widely according to the type of development, and the presence of environmental
conditions. The International Code Council (ICC) established in 2018 that the average cost of good quality
construction is $161.95 per square foot for multi-family homes and $151.10 per square foot for single-
family homes. Costs can also fluctuate based on project specific conditions such as poor soil conditions
and/or contamination. San Juan Bautista is a historic community with a strong desire for new
development to be of quality aesthetic design. A reduction in amenities and the quality of building
materials could result in lower sales prices but not be in keeping with the community character.
Prefabricated factory-built or manufactured housing, which is permitted in San Juan Bautista, may provide
for lower priced housing by reducing construction and labor costs.

Land Costs

Another key cost component is raw land and any necessary improvements. Unlike construction costs and
labor costs, the cost of residential and commercial sites in the City is highly variable. Cost considerations
include the number of units or density of development permitted on a particular site and the location of
the site in relation to other amenities. As finished vacant land becomes scarce, developers begin to pursue
more costly underutilized sites, which may require the demolition of existing uses before a new project
can be constructed. Thus, the price of land can vary significantly even assuming the same proposed
project. Because of the limited size of the community and minimal land turnover, it is difficult to gauge
per square foot values accurately. However, based on realty websites, it can be estimated that
approximately 5 (5) acres of land within the City can cost up to $600,000 depending on its locations and
views (https://www.rea|tor.com/reaIestateandhomes-search/San-Juan-Bautista_CA/type—Iand).

Labor Costs

Historically, the cost of labor has been a fixed cost component of housing construction. Similar to the cost
of construction materials, labor costs are relatively stable throughout a metropolitan area and beyond the
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control of local governments. Thus, labor costs become a fixed cost in comparison to other more site-
specific costs, such as land. In recent years, however, labor organizations pushed for changes in State law
which affected labor costs for public works projects as well as housing.

In January 2002, Senate Bill 975 significantly expanded the definition of public works projects and the
application of the State’s prevailing wage requirements to such projects. The bill also expands the
definition of what constitutes public funds and captures significantly more projects beyond traditional
public works projects that involve public/private partnerships. SB-975 requires payment of prevailing
wages for most private projects built under an agreement with a public agency providing assistance to the
project. The breadth of the legislation substantially limits the ability of public agencies and private entities
to structure transactions to avoid prevailing wages for private construction work. While the City has not
been in the position to provide assistance to potential housing projects, any future assistance will be
affected by this legislation.

5B-972 provides some relief by exempting from prevailing wage requirements the following projects:

» self-help housing projects in which no less than 500 hours of the construction work is performed
by the homebuyers;

* the new construction, rehabilitation, or expansion of a temporary or transitional housing facility
for the homeless;

e assistance for the rehabilitation of a single-family home; and

o affordable housing projects funded by below-market rate loans that allocates at least 40 percent
of its units for at least 20 years to low income households (80 percent of median family income)

While providing some relief, SB-972 falls short of what the City and other jurisdictions desire and feel is
necessary to produce housing.

2. Mortgage and Rehabilitation Financing

The availability of financing affects a person’s ability to purchase or improve a home. As the requirements
for qualification have changed, so has the ability of individuals and families to obtain financing for home
purchase and improvement. Again, because of the limited size of San Juan Bautista, detailed information
specific to the City is difficult to locate. Housing prices have limited the ability of lower income households
to purchase in San Juan Bautista. Fixed incomes and depressed values have made refinancing for
improvement extremely difficult in the City. Combined with the City’s lack of financial resources to assist,
residents will continue to find it difficult to maintain and improve their homes. The City hopes to obtain
Community Development Block Grant Funds in the future which can be used to assist property owners
and neighborhoods.

3. Foreclosures

Although foreclosure rates increased significantly during the recession, the housing market has recovered
and foreclosure rates have returned to a normal level. It is not unusual for homes that are in the
foreclosure process to sit vacant and unmaintained for months on end. This impact destabilizes
neighborhoods, encourages vandalism and other forms of criminal activity, and contributes to lower
property values; vacant homes represent a potential detriment to existing neighborhoods. Where
problems have arisen in San Juan Bautista, the City has found enforcement through normal property
maintenance provisions to be difficult, primarily because the many homes are owned by out of area banks
with little or no tie to the community.

e
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4. Typical Development Time Frame

The ability of development companies to move from full entitlements and permits to construction can
affect housing affordability. If the typical development time frame exceeds one year, this can increase
holding costs and drive up the cost of housing construction.

According to City staff, the typical timeframe between entitlements/permits and construction is nine to 14

months in San Juan Bautista, roughly within the suggested one-year timeframe. This timeframe will be re-
evaluated in the next Housing Element update, but for now, no new housing program is provided.

B. Governmental Constraints

Local policies and regulations can impact the price and availability of housing and in particular, the
provision of affordable housing. Land use controls, site improvement requirements, and permit processing
procedures may present constraints to the maintenance, development, and improvement of housing. This
section discusses potential governmental constraints.

1. Provisions for a Variety of Housing Types

This section discusses the various types of housing that are accommodated in the City of San Juan
Bautista.

Multi-Family Housing

Multi-family housing makes up approximately 26 percent of the existing housing stock in San Juan
Bautista (2017 Census). The City’s Zoning Ordinance expressly permits multi-family projects in the R-2 and
R-3 zoning districts. In the R-3 zone, multi-family developments can be built up to a density of 21 units per
acre. In addition, multi-family housing, such as apartments and condominiums, is permitted with site
review in the Mixed Use (MU) district; residential located above commercial is also conditionally
permitted in the Commercial (C) district. The maximum density for the MU is 15 units per acre.

Typical timelines to process permits for residential development in the MU district varies greatly. More
complex projects, such as apartment, condominium or townhouse complex developments may require
approval of both the Planning Commission and City Council, and take considerably longer to gain approval
by nature of the processing required. As multi-unit projects are a significant part of how San Juan Bautista
can meet State mandated affordable housing goals, streamlining the development process through
programs and policies identified in Chapter 5. Table 3-1 summarizes housing types permitted by zoning
district.
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Table 3-1: Conventional Housing Types Permitted by Zone

Housing Types Permitted Residential Zones Commercial Zones Other
R-1 R-2 R-3 Cc MU A
Single-family dwellings P,S P.S - -- - P.S
Residential above commercial s s = C P ==
Manufactured homes P,S P.S - -- -- P.S
Co-housing/shared housing -- - C s Cc &
Multiple-family - P.S PSS " P,S -
Mobile home parks - - PS - - -
Accessory dwelling units* P.S P,S P.S -- Cc P.S
Transitional/supportive housing P P P P P P,S
Residential care facilities - small P,S P.S P.S -- = o
Residential care facilities - large - -- P,S - = =
Farmworker housing - P.S P,S - - P.S

Source: City of San Juan Bautista Municipal Code, Title 11

Notations:

P = Permitted (No Public Hearing)

C = Conditional Use Permit (CUP) issued by Planning Commission with Public Hearing

S = Site Review (note: *ADUs located within existing structures are allowed without any site review or other discretion)
Accessory Dwelling Units

Section 11-04-050 of the City’s Zoning Ordinance includes provisions allowing the development of
accessory dwelling units (ADUs), and the City recently revised these provisions to be fully compliant with
AB 2299, which became effective January 1, 2017. The revised ADU provisions in Section 11-04-050 now
require ministerial approval of ADUs if the unit complies with certain parking requirements, the maximum
allowable size of an attached ADU, and setback requirements, as follows:

e The unitis not intended for sale separate from the primary residence and may be rented;

® The lot is zoned for single-family or multifamily use and contains an existing, single-family
dwelling;

® The unitis either attached to an existing dwelling or located within the living area of the existing
dwelling or detached and on the same lot;

e Theincreased floor area of the unit does not exceed 50 percent of the existing living area, with a
maximum increase in floor area of 1,200 square feet;

® The total area of floor space for a detached accessory dwelling unit does not exceed 1,200 square
feet;

e No passageway can be required;

® No setback can be required from an existing garage that is converted to an ADU;

e Compliance with local building code requirements; and

® Approval by the local heaith officer where private sewage disposal system is being used.

The units are principally permitted on appropriately sized lots within the R-1, R-2, and R-3 zoning districts.
The purpose of permitting additional living units is to allow more efficient use of existing housing and to

%
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provide the opportunity to develop small housing units meeting the housing needs of the community
while preserving the integrity of single-family neighborhoods.

Approval of ADUs that are part of an existing structure are approved ministerially, with no site plan or
architectural review. Approval of ADUs that are to be located in new structures is subject to site plan and
design review requirements, and historic review requirements (same as single family homes). The
maximum floor area of an ADU is 1,200 square feet or 50 percent of the floor area of the main residence
on the lot, whichever is less.

In 2016, the City revised its development impact fees to correct impact and building permit fees for ADUs.
This was necessary because in 2013, when the City revised its deveiopment impact fees for residential
construction, the revision had the unintended consequence of raising fees for ADUs disproportionately.
Where the total fee per square foot of residential construction was $16.54 for a typical single family
dwelling unit, the fee for the ADU was $44.97 per square foot. The 2016 revision reduced impact fees for
the ADU to 25 percent of the fee for the typical single family dwelling unit ($23,334 x 25% = $5,834). It
also reduced building permit fees for the ADU to $810.95, from $1,075.

Factory Built Housing and Mobile Homes

The City permits manufactured and factory built housing in all districts that allow single family dwellings
(i.e., R-1, R-2, and A Districts), provided that the units are consistent with the current 2016 California
Building Code (CBC) regulations and what will soon be the updated CBC effective January 1, 2020. Mobile
homes comprise approximately 2 percent of the housing stock in San Juan Bautista. Mobile home parks
are only permitted, with site review, in the R-3 residential zone. There are two mobile home parks in the
City. Because of the limited number of tenants affected and the cost of implementing, the City has not
chosen to adopt a Mobile Home Rent Stabilization Ordinance.

Special Needs Housing

In addition to conventional housing, the City also permits various special needs housing to allow persons
with special needs equal access to housing opportunities in San Juan Bautista. These facilities include
residential care facilities, transitional housing, emergency shelters, group care facilities, and farm labor
housing. Specific zoning code provisions for these uses are detailed in Table 3-2.

Table 3-2: Special Needs Housing Types Permitted by Zone
Housing Types Permitted Residential Zones Commercial Zones Other

R-1 R-2 R-3 c MU PF A
E?eeltrgresncy Shelters, Homeless c c c X c cP X
Hemelecs-Shelter PS PSS e X c [ s
Rooming and boarding X C C X X X X
Residential care facilities - small P.S P,S P.S X X X X
Residential care facilities - large X X P.S X X X X
TransitionalHousing = BSs PSS X c & e
Farmworker housing X P.S P.S X X X P,S

Source: City of San Juan Bautista Municipal Code, Title 11

Notations:

P = Permitted (No Public Hearing)

C = Conditional Use Permit {CUP) issued by Planning Commission with Public Hearing
S = Site Review

X = Not permitted
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Residential Care Facilities

According to the Community Care Facilities Act in the California Health and Safety Code, facilities serving 6
or fewer persons (including foster care) must be permitted by right in all residential zones allowing single-
family housing. Such facilities cannot be subject to more stringent development standards, fees or other
standards than single-family homes in the same district.

The San Juan Bautista Zoning Ordinance contains provisions for both small (6 or fewer persons) and larger
residential care facilities (7 or more persons) and allows small residential care facilities in all zones where
a single family home is allowed, and the same standards apply to both. Furthermore, the Zoning
Ordinance contains no special provisions for residential care facilities that would limit the number of
facilities that could be developed in proximity to one another.

Transitional and Supportive Housing

Transitional housing is typically defined as temporary (often 6 months to 2 years) housing for an individual
or family that is transitioning to permanent housing or for youth that are moving out of the foster care
system. Supportive housing is designed for individuals facing long-term living challenges that would
otherwise be incapable of living independently. Mixed-Use zoning has the most vacant space located near
services, such as public restrooms. The Zoning Ordinance expressly addresses transitional and supportive
housing within the City.

Suppertive-housing-is-not-expressly-identified-in-thezoning-ordinance-The City-currently-permits-with-site
W—WWMﬁH—m&RMﬂMW%MWMW%

As part of this Housing Element update and in response to recent State requirements (SB-2) that mandate
transitional housing by right, the City wilkamended the Zoning Ordinance in October 2019 to explicitly
address supportive and transitional housing facilities in public facilities and residential districts by right-
{see-Housing-Program-3-6). Presently, based on the capacity analysis conducted in Chapter 4, there is
adequate capacity to provide transitional and supportive housing facilities in residential districts. The
Zoning Ordinance now permits transitional and supportive housing as a residential use, subject only to
those restrictions that apply to other residential dwellings of the same type in the same zone.

In 2018, AB 2162 was passed into law requiring permanent supportive housing by right where multifamily
and mixed use are permitted, including non-residential zones permitting multifamily uses. The City’s
Zoning Ordinance is currently out of compliance with this new law, so a housing program has been
included in this update to bring the Zoning Ordinance into compliance with the requirements of AB 2162
within one year (see Program 3.7, in Chapter 5, below).

Government Code Section 65660 et seq. requires that local jurisdictions allow low barrier navigation
centers by right in areas zoned for mixed use and non-residential zones permitting multifamily uses. A
“low barrier navigation center” is a service-enriched shelter that focuses on moving people into
permanent housing while providing temporary living facilities. The City’s Zoning Ordinance is currently out
of compliance with this law, so a housing program has been included in this update to bring the Zoning
Ordinance into compliance with the requirements of Government Code Section 65660 et seq. within one

year (see Program 3.8, in Chapter 5, below).lt-has-been determinad-that-transitional-housing-must be-
accommodated-in-any-existingresidence-and-Heusing-Rrogram-3-6-would-allow-this-use-without-
conditionalrequirements:

taeeeeeeeeeeee———
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Emergency/-and-Homeless Shelters

An emergency-shelter/homeless shelter, expressly addressed in the Zoning Ordinance, is a facility that
provides shelter to families or individuals on a limited, short-term basis. The City amended its Zoning
Ordinance to allow for emergency/homeless shelters, with no discretion by the City, within the PF District.
The City also permits emergency/homeless shelters in the R-1, R-2, R-3, and MU zoning districts as a
conditional use.

Farm Labor Housing

|lousing for migrant or short-term farmworlers, such as labor camps and specialized dormitory-style
living facilities are currently not specifically identified in the zoning ordinance. The City has determined
that Farmworker Housing is permitted in zoning districts R-2 and R-3 with Site Review. The Municipal
Code was amended in October 2014 to conform to the provisions of Sec. 17021.5 and Sec. 17021.6 of the
Health and Safety Code (The Employee Housing Act).

In addition to complying with the minimum requirements of the Employee Housing Act, the City has: (1)
removed constraints on the development of housing for farmworkers, including minimum parcel size and
requiring the farmworkers to work on the property the housing is located, (2) established procedures and
development standards to promote certainty in approval and (3) ensured density requirements permit a
variety of housing types (i.e., multifamily, dormitory, etc.) The City has also evaluated development
standards, or other factors that might place a constraint on the development of housing for farmworkers
with local stakeholders and nonprofit developers and modify zoning and development standards, to
ensure zoning encourages and facilitates housing for farmworkers. The City has considered other changes
including using its inclusionary housing program for farmworkers as a means of increasing the number of
farmworker housing units.

2. Development Standards

Adopted in 2015, the General Plan Land Use Element sets forth the City’s policies regarding local land
development. These policies, together with existing zoning regulations, establish the amount and
distribution of land allocated for different uses. The Land Use Element provides for residential land use
categories and commercial/mixed use categories, which permit residential units as a conditional use, as
summarized below in Table 3-3.

Residential Development Standards

The City regulates the type, location, density, and scale of residential development primarily through the
Zoning Ordinance. Zoning regulations are designed to protect and promote the health, safety, and general
welfare of residents, as well as implement the policies of the General Plan. The Zoning Ordinance also
serves to preserve the character and integrity of neighborhoods. The Ordinance sets forth the City’s
specific residential development standards, summarized in Table 3-4. As discussed above, in addition to
residential zones, residential uses are also permitted in the Commercial and Mixed Use Zoning District.

-
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Table 3-3: Land Use Categories Permitting Residential Use

General Plan Land Zoning Denz?t?((’lejﬁglper
Use Category District Net Acre) Typical Housing Types
Rural Residential and R-1 0.5105.00r7.0" Exclusively single-family homes in low density
Low Density Residential ‘ ' ‘ and established neighborhood settings.
. . Ciuster developments, mini-lot
Medlum De_nSIty R-2 6to 10 subdivisions, condominiums, townhomes,
Residential .
apartments, mobile homes
High Density Residential R-3 11 to 21 Multi-story apartment and condominium
complexes
051t07.0 Farmworker housing, single-family homes,
Agriculture A P ’ manufactured homes, transitional housing, and
(10% lot coverage) homeless shelters
Based on nearest . .
. : 3 Apartments, single room occupancy units and
Commercial C multi fag;lsltyrircetzsldentlal condominiums provided units are located
(R-2 or R-3) above commercial use
Apartments, single room occupancy units, and
Mixed Use MU 15 condominiums primarily in conjunction with

commercial uses on a site

Source: Land Use Element, 2035 City of San Juan Bautista General Plan, and Title 11 of the San Juan Bautista Municipal Code
Notes: (1) District R-1-5 of the City’s Municipal Code states a density range of 0.50 to 7, while Districts R-1-6 and R-1-7 both have
arange of 0.50 to 5.

Table 3-4: Residential Development Standards

Zdfiing! (| Maxtmimy (inimurm, i Maximuiim i [iMaximun st gy oo one | Vadt
District enaiy Lot Size BUIHITy Bm_ldmg Setback | Setback| Setback
(du’ac) (sq.ft) | Coverage (%) | H8Height (ft.)
R-1 7 7,000 50% 30’ (2 stories) 5' 20' 20"
R-2 10 8,000 45% 35' (2 stories) 5" 20' 10"
R-3 21 10,000 50% 35' (2 stories) 5' 20' 10’
A 7 n/a 10% 30’ (2 stories) 40 40 40
C None 5,000 85% 50’ (3 stories) ) )] (1)
MU 15 NA 85% 50’ (3 stories) (2) (2) (2)

Source: City of San Juan Bautista Municipal Code, Title 11

Notes: (1) The same as the bordering residential district.
(2) 10 percent of the depth of the lot or 10 feet, whichever is less. Planning Commission may allow deviations of the
setbacks based upon individual project site plan and building layout.

In fal-October 20189, the City revised its Zoning Ordinance to include special development standards for a_
mixed-use parcel added to the list of available sites s-re-zoned-to-R-3-after the close of the update
period,; to accommodate the City’s RHNA (see Table 4-1 in Chapter 4, below). These standards read as
follows:

%
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Special standards and conditions apply to one affordable housing site (APN 002-350-
002——) in this zoning district (MU Mixed Use) {R-3}-through the year 2024 only, as
follows:

e The allowable density for the designated affordable housing site is a minimum of 20 units per
acre and a maximum of 24 units per acre;

« Twenty (20) percent of the development on the affordable housing site must be owner-
occupied and/or rental multi-family uses that are affordable to lower-income households; and

s All development on this affordable housing sile must be permilled by right (i.e., no conditional
use permit, planned development permit, or other discretionary review or approval).

« The owner of the site has the right to develop this mixed-use site as 100 percent multi-family
housing without a Conditional Use Permit or other discretionary action,

« If the owner of the site chooses to develop the site as mixed use (commercial and residential,
combined), then at least 50 percent of floor area must be developed as a minimum of 16
multi-family dwellings; and

e Any development that takes place on APN 002-350-002 would accommodate necessary
historic preservation efforts on or off site that would be in compliance with the City of San
Juan Bautista Historic Resource Preservation Ordinance (Chp. 11-06) and the Secretary of
Interior Standards.

Except for those usual standards in conflict with the special standards and conditions above, all
usual development standards for this zoning district (as shown in the table) also apply to the
affordable housing site.

In general, development standards may limit the number of units that may be constructed on a particular
piece of property and thus increase the unit costs of development. However, as described below, there is
no direct evidence that the development standards have impeded the production of housing in the City.

The City does require that residential or mixed use projects of 6-six or more units shall not be approved in |
any area of the City unless at least one such housing unit is reserved for sale to very low- or low- income
households or reserved as rental units for very low- or low-income households for each five units of
market-rate housing. The City will continue to evaluate its development standards to ensure that the
standards do not impede housing production.

Density: The maximum density permitted, defined in terms of the number of units per acre, varies by
zone. The maximum density ranges from 5.0 units per acre in the R-1 (single family) zone to 21 units per
acre in the high-density R-3 zone (up to 24 units per care for a designated affordable housing site). The
City also permits housing in the Mixed Use zone. By permitting a range of densities, the City facilitates the
development of a variety of housing types, ranging from low-density single-family residences to
apartment and condominium complexes. The City also encourages new housing to be developed at the
highest end of the permitted density ranges to maximize the number of units available. An analysis of
actual development densities and permit times is presented in the next section.

Structural Limits: Zoning Ordinance regulations affect the size of structures by setting limits on lot
coverage and h8height. Generally, San Juan Bautista’s residential development standards are comparable
to those Hollister and San Benito County, including minimum lot area and h8height standards. For
example, the maximum building h8height (35 feet) in San Juan Bautista’s R-3 zone is the same as the 35
feet in the Hollister R-3 zoning district. Single-family lot sizes are also generally the same size as in
Hollister and San Benito County.

#

City of San Juan Bautista 5" Cycle Housing Element (4-Year Update)

Public Review Draft: December 3, 2019 Page 3-9

167



HOUSING CONSTRAINTS

Parking Requirements: The City’s parking requirements for residential districts vary by housing type and
anticipated parking needs, and increase by unit size (number of bedrooms). For single-family projects,
every dwelling shall be provided with at least 2 parking spaces, at least one space shall be covered bya
garage or carport. For multi-family projects, a minimum of one covered space is required, plus guest
parking at a ratio of one-half space per unit. The number of required uncovered spaces required varies
from zero for a studio unit to a maximum of 2 uncovered spaces for 4 or more bedroom units. The
ordinance provides the opportunity for Planning Commission waiver of the covered parking requirement.
Parking requirements may also be reduced through the use of Density Bonus per State law. The City's
parking requirements are similar to those in many jurisdictions in California and reflective of private
vehicle ownership rates in San Juan Bautista. Table 3-5 shows parking requirements for the base
residential districts.

The City requires one parking space for ADU, and that space can be provided in tandem with existing

spaces or in the front yard setback. No parking is required for ADUs if the ADU meets any of the following:

* Is within a half mile from public transit;
* s within an architecturally and historically significant historic district;
* Is part of an existing primary residence or an existing accessory structure;

* Isinan area where on-street parking permits are required, but not offered to the occupant of the
ADU; or

¢ Is located within one block of a car share area.

Table 3-5: Parking Requirements

Housing Type1 Covered Spaces | Uncovered Spaces| Guest Parking

Single-Family Dwelling 1 1 -
Multifamily Dwelling

Studio 1 - ¥ space per unit

1-Bedroom 1 - . space per unit

2-Bedroom 1 1 ¥ space per unit

3-Bedroom 1 %2 space per unit

4-Bedrrom 1 2 ¥ space per unit
Emergency Shelter 1 space per 5 beds - --
Transitional Housing 1 space per unit -- -
Affordable Housing 1 - --
ADU? - 1 -

Source: SIB Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 11-11.

Note: 'Off-Street Parking Reduction. For parcels with mixed use development within the MU district, the number of off-street
parking spaces required by this section shall be reduced by 10 spaces or 25 percent of the otherwise required number of
spaces, whichever is greater, if the parcel is within 400' of a public parking lot or garage.

2 B
See explanation above
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Flexibility in Development Standards

The City offers various mechanisms to provide relief from development standards typically required of all
residential projects, including allowing residential uses in commercial districts, density bonuses, variances,
and planned unit development.

Residential Uses in Commercial Districts: As the availability of vacant and underutilized residential land has
diminished, property owners have considered building housing in the downtown commercial area. The
City permits housing in the Mixed Use (MU) district, and conditionally in the Commercial (C) district if the
residential use is located above a commercial use. By allowing residential uses in commercial areas, the
City has identified additional areas where new housing may be built. Several units have been approved
and/or constructed in the MU district.

Density Bonus: In compliance with State law, the City offers a density bonus (up to 50 percent) in the
Mixed Use District for special needs housing and 100 percent affordable housing to developers. The City
relies on California Government Code Section 65915 for guidance on proposals.

Non-conforming Ordinance: The Non-conforming Ordinance was structured to help the City maintain its
existing housing stock. The Ordinance allows existing parcels to maintain non-conforming units based on
density, setbacks, or lot coverage. The ordinance also permits the expansion of non-conforming use by
conditional use permit and a non-conforming structure by administrative review. The non-conforming
ordinance protects existing housing by allowing residents an option to maintain and in some cases expand
existing units.

Reasonable Accommodation: State housing law requires a Housing Element to contain an analysis that
demonstrates local efforts to remove governmental constraints that hinder the locality from meeting its
share of the regional housing need and from meeting the need for housing for persons with disabilities,
including persons with developmental disabilities. This requirement came about in the 2001 legislative
session (SB 520) and supplements the provisions of the Federal Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1988. In
2010, this requirement was supplemented with Senate Bill 812 requiring housing elements to include an
analysis of persons with developmental disabilities.

Consistent with recent changes in State law, the City of San Juan Bautista amended its municipal code in
2019 to provide reasonable accommodations for individuals with disabilities to make requests for
reasonable accommodation with respect to zoning, permit processing, or building laws. A new housing
program has been added to this Housing Element update to advertise these new reasonable
accommodation provisions to the community at large (see Program 5.2, in Chapter 5, below).

On a related matter, the City has defined “Family” in its Zoning Ordinance (see Chapter 11-29 of the San
Juan Bautista Municipal Code) as follows:

“Family” means 2 or more persons living together as a single housekeeping unit in a
dwelling unit; provided, that this shall not exclude the renting of rooms in a dwelling
unit as permitted by district regulations.

As this definition makes no reference to “blood relationship,” it does not pose an unreasonable
government constraint on the price and availability of housing and in particular, the provision of
affordable housing.

3. Development Permit Procedures

The Community Development Director/City Planner is principally responsible for review and processing of
residential development applications and as appropriate, coordinating the processing of those
applications with other City functions and outside agencies. The City uses various development permits to

e ———— -
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ensure quality housing within San Juan Bautista, while minimizing the costs associated with lengthy
review. The following permits are most frequently used in San Juan Bautista.

Site Plan and Design Review (and Historic Review)

The City requires Site Plan and Design Review for new commercial and multi-family projects in the City.
Depending on the nature of the project, remodels of residential structures may be subject to review
where located within the City’s Historic District. This process is intended to ensure that development
standards are met and aesthetic qualities are maintained both in and outside the Historic District. From
the time of submittal and completeness to Planning Commission review, the processing timeline is
generally up to 2 months. The process is straight forward so long as the applicants have met all of the
applicable codes regarding building, fire, engineering, planning, etc.

Required findings for Site Plan and Design Review include:

* The project is consistent with the standards and requirements of the San Juan Bautista Municipal
Code.

* The project is consistent with the goals and policies of the General Plan and any applicable specific
or community plans.

* The project contributes to safeguarding the City’s heritage and cultural and historic resources.

e The project is compatible with the surrounding character of the environment because the
architectural design, materials and colors harmonize with the character of surrounding
development, or other improvements on the site and specific design elements (e.g., balconies,
fencing, screening of equipment and utility installations, signs, and lighting) are incorporated into
the project.

* The location and configuration of the project harmonizes with the site and with surrounding sites or
structures. Structures do not dominate their surroundings to an extent inappropriate to their use
and do not unnecessarily block significant views or solar access to adjacent properties.

* The project effectively uses architectural details to break up mass. Roof planes are varied without
being overly complex. Otherwise monotonous long or 2-story walls are well-articulated with details
such as building off-sets and window features that are compatible with the design and not overly
ornate.

» The landscape design, if any, including the location, type, size, color, texture, and coverage of plant
materials, provisions for irrigation, and protection of landscape elements have been considered to
create visual relief and complement the structures to provide an attractive and water-conserving
environment.

* The design and layout of the proposed project does not interfere with the use and enjoyment of
neighboring existing or future development, does not result in vehicular and/or pedestrian hazards,
and promotes public health, safety, and welfare.

* The existing or proposed public facilities necessary to accommodate the proposed project (e.g., fire
protection devices, public utilities, sewers, sidewalks, storm drains, street lights, traffic control
devices, width and pavement of adjoining streets, etc.) are available to serve the subject site.

These findings constitute an objective set of standards and guidelines that allow an applicant for a
residential development permit to determine what is required in order to mitigate cost impacts. Planning
Commission approval is required for Site Plan and Design Review.

-———————
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Multifamily Housing Permits

The City has an informal review opportunity allowing an interested developer to present their tentative
project plans to the Planning Commission to get input before making the building application. The City is
also available to help give guidance on what the City’s standard are for multifamily residential. The
applicant will need fill out a building permit and give the City all the required pieces of information to
review the project. Once the information is reviewed by staff it will be brought to the Planning
Commission for review. If the applicant took advantage of the informal review and addressed the
concerns of the Planning Commission then the project has a higher rate for approval the 1st time. Once
the Planning Commission approves the project then the build permil can be issued, This process time
frame can vary from between one and 3 months.

Conditional Use Permits

The City may require a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for projects requiring special attention to site
planning. Such projects currently include residential uses in commercial zones, larger community care
facilities, emergency shelters and transitional housing. Under SB-2, the City has amended the Zoning
Ordinance to allow transitional housing without requiring such conditional use permits in the R-1, R-2 and
R-3 Zoning Districts. To apply for these permits, an applicant must submit site plans, floor plans, elevation
illustrations, grading/drainage plan, soils and drainage reports, and other material. The time frames

associated with securing a discretionary permit depends on the public hearing process and staff review
process. Depending on environmental review times and public hearings, a CUP may take a few months,
with final action by the Planning Commission.

Planned Unit Development {PUD) Permits

The PUD process is an integrated development review process; meaning the application covers all
applicable planning review processes. The PUD process provides the City and developer flexibility in
design and utilization of land which yields a more cost effective and better product for both the applicant
and community. Without an EIR, PUD applications are processed from initiation to approval in 6-9
months. Developers often use the Planned Development (PUD) process to produce creative projects on
problem lots larger than one acre in size, where conventional zoning requirements and approaches would
often preclude them.

Permit Streamlining

In 2017, the California Legislature passed SB 35 to address streamlined review for affordable housing
projects. SB 35 applies to cities and counties that have not made sufficient progress toward meeting their
affordable housing goals for above-moderate and lower income levels as mandated by the State. In an
effort to meet the affordable housing goals, SB 35 requires cities and counties to streamline review and
approval of eligible affordable housing projects through a ministerial approval process, exempting such
projects from environmental review under the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”). HCD has
determined that the City of San Juan Bautista is subject to 5B 35 streamlining provisions.

A new housing program has been added to in this Housing Element update to address the provisions of SB

35 (see Program 4.4, in Chapter 5, below).

Permit Processing Summary

In summary, the City’s permit processes facilitate the construction of quality housing in a timely manner.
The timeframes are reasonable and, where applicable, well within the requirements of the Permit
Streamlining Act. To further streamline processing and reduce constraints on the production and

2 http://www.hed.ca.gov/community-development/housing-element/docs/SB35_StatewideDeterminationSummary013 12018.pdf
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improvement of housing, the PUD process uses concurrent processing. In addition, qualified affordable
housing projects receive priority processing in advance of all non-priority items. Finally, the City’s one-stop
permit center continues to provide prompt service, benefiting the City and developers by facilitating the
production of quality housing.

4. Developed Densities and Permit Times

The following is an analysis of requests to develop housing at densities below those anticipated in
compliance with Government Code §65583.2.

There were 3 housing developments approved by the City of San Juan Bautista since 2014. These include:
e Rancho Vista — 91 units
o Copperleaf — 55 units
* Hillside Vistas — 27 units

The data for each of the 3 developments is listed below.

Rancho Vista

Rancho Vista was developed by Meritage Homes (permits being pulled/construction on going)

o 85 lots, 1 unit per lot to equal 85 units, plus 6 additional Secondary Dwelling Units placed on 6
various lots within the development. Total is 91 units

e 29.43 acres
e R-1Zone (Low Density Residential)
e 3.1 units per net acre {actual)

* The project was first proposed in early 2014. City Council approved zone change and the Mitigated
Negative Declaration on December 4, 2014. The final map was approved by City Council on June 26,
2018. Building permits are currently being pulled.

This Housing Element assumes a density of 5.0 dwelling units per gross acre in the R-1 Zoning District (see
Table 4.1 below). This is roughly equivalent to 4.0 dwelling units per net acre (assuming a 20 percent
gross-to-net conversion factor). Rancho Vista achieved 3.1 dwelling units per acre.

Copperleaf
Copperleaf was developed by Edenbridge Homes (permits being pulled/construction on going).

* 45 lots, 1 unit per lot to equal 45 units, plus 10 additional Secondary Dwelling Units placed on 10
various lots within the development. The total is 55 units.

e 133 acres
e R-1Zone (Low Density Residential)
e 4.1 units per net acre (actual)

¢ The Planning Commission first reviewed the tentative map and design on March 1, 2016. The final
map was approved by City Council on April 13, 2017. Permits are currently being pulled.
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This Housing Element assumes a density of 5.0 dwelling units per gross acre in the R-1 Zoning District (see
Table 4.1 below). This is roughly equivalent to 4.0 dwelling units per net acre (assuming a 20 percent
gross-to-net conversion factor). Copperleaf achieved 4.1 dwelling units per acre.

Hillside Vistas

Hillside Vistas was developed by Elite Development (no construction has started, final map needs to be
completed).

e 27 lots. No units have been proposed or constructed. Final map approved for 8 lots as single family
resldentlal.

e 5Sacres
® R-2 Zone (Medium Density Residential)
® 5.4 units per net acre {(actual)

e Planning Commission approved the tentative Map for 27 lots on August 5, 2014. The City Council
approved the Final Map for 8 lots out of the 27 lots on October 18, 2016. The remaining 19 lots
need to be complete via Final Map. Currently, there has been discussion with the developer and
City Staff about increasing the density of the area where the remaining 19 lots are located. No
action has been taken at this time.

This Housing Element assumes a density of 8.0 dwelling units per gross acre in the R-2 Zoning District (see
Table 4.1 below). This is roughly equivalent to 6.0 dwelling units per net acre (assuming 20 percent gross-
to-net conversion factor). Hillside Vistas achieved 5.4 dwelling units per net acre.

Of the three projects undertaken since the fast Housing Element, two came in slightly under the assumed
density, and one came in slightly above. Given the minimal amount of housing construction that has
occurred since 2008, these results do not conclusively indicate that housing policies are a hindrance to the
construction of the San Juan Bautista’s share of regional housing needs. Instead, the shortfalls are more
likely a result of site conditions that resulted in an actual gross-to-net conversion factor that was greater
than 20 percent.

5. Growth Management

The City of San Juan Bautista has a history of growth control ordinances. On January 12, 2009, by Order
and Judgment of the Superior Court of San Benito County, the City’s Growth Management Ordinance was
found to be invalid, unlawful and unenforceable. Per Ordinance No. 2009-03, a new Growth Management
Ordinance was enacted with the express intent of:

1. Providing adequate opportunity for residential development in accordance with the General Plan;
and

2. Within the limitations of sewer and water capacity. The growth management ordinance, as
revised, has not impacted production of housing. The growth cap is representative of General
Plan capacity. Further, the allocation process reflects incentives for development of senior,
disabled and lower income households. The Growth Management Ordinance does not apply
beyond 2015, and a program is included to remove it from the City’s municipal code.

The City currently has no growth control ordinance in effect.

6. Building Codes and Site Improvements

-  — — —
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Section 10-1-110 of the City’s zoning ordinance states, “The Building Code for the City of San Juan Bautista
shall be the latest current edition of the Uniform Building Code and any appendices thereto as adopted by
the International Building Officials Conference.” Therefore, in essence, the City has adopted the current
2016 California Building Code (CBC) and will adopt the upcoming 2020 CBC (effective January 1, 2020),
which establishes standards and requires inspections at various stages of construction to ensure code
compliance and minimum health and safety standards. The City has adopted no amendment to the CBC.

The City’s Building Code also requires new residential construction to comply with the Federal Americans
with Disabilities Act (ADA), which specifies a minimum percentage of dwelling units in certain
developments that must be fully accessible to the physically disabled. Although these standards and the
time required for inspections increase housing production costs and may impact the viability of
rehabilitation of older properties, the codes are mandated for all jurisdictions in California.

Every 3 years, the State of California selects and adopts new construction regulations substantially based
upon uniform model codes. Local governments may incorporate local amendments to the California
Standards Building Code, provided appropriate findings are made. Most recently, the California Building
Standards Commission adopted the 2016 California Building Standards Code effective January 1, 2017.
The 2019 update will become effective on January 1, 2020.

Site improvements cover the range of water, sewer, circulation, and other services and infrastructure
needed to facilitate residential developments. To ensure adequate improvements are in place, San Juan
Bautista requires pro-rata payments for off-site extension of water, sewer and storm drain systems, and
traffic signals. Requiring developers to make site improvements, pay pro-rata shares toward infrastructure
costs, and pay for additional public services will increase the cost of housing and impact the affordability
of the homes. While site improvements increase housing costs, they are standard for most jurisdictions.
Moreover, site improvements are necessary to maintain the quality of life desired by City residents, and
ensure that public services and facilities are in place at the time of need.

7. Fees and Exactions

Housing construction imposes short- and long-term costs on communities. Short-term costs include the
cost of providing planning services and inspections. New residential developments can also result in
significant long-term costs to maintain and improve the City’s infrastructure, facilities, parks, and streets.
In response to the taxing constraints imposed by Proposition 13, many California cities have relied
increasingly on planning and development fees to fund the provision of services needed by new housing.

To help encourage development and limit government fee constraints, the City of San Juan Bautista has
streamlined and lowered its processing fees. The City collects various fees from developers to cover the
costs of processing permits. The fees are collected as a deposit by the City with hours tracked by the City.
These include fees for planning and zoning approvals, Subdivision Map Act approvals, CEQA review, plan
check services, building permits, etc. Common Planning fees (as adopted in April 2019) include:

s Conditional Use Permit (Major/Minor): $1,575/$787.50

e Site Plan and Design Review (Major/Minor): $1,575/$603.75

e Tentative Parcel Map (Major/Minor): $5,250/$2,625

e General Plan Amendment: $3,675

e Rezoning: $3,675

e Planned Unit Development Permit/Amendment: $5,250

e CEQA Review: Consultant Cost + Fish & Wildlife Fee

m
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San Juan Bautista also collects fees to cover the costs of providing the necessary services and
infrastructure related to new development projects and it collects impact fees pursuant to AB 1600. These
fees are typically assessed on a per square foot basis. City staff estimates that City impact fees for a 1,800
square foot home would be approximately $38,400 and for a 3,000 square foot 4-plex the fees per unit
would be about $9,600. The multifamily estimate is based off a 3,000 square foot 4-plex with an
estimated construction cost of $375,000. The cost of the fees would be about 10 percent of the total costs
of development.

Given the size of the community and the nature of public improvements, these fees are necessary to
insure that existing residents are not subsidizing new development. These development fees are also
assessed to commercial and industrial projects; residential uses are not being unfairly burdened. Fees
have not constrained the development of affordable housing. To ensure that fees do not constrain
affordable housing, fee reductions or waivers are sometimes granted based on project-specific findings.
Moreover, a variety of residential uses are not required to pay fees or provide units under the City’s
Inclusionary Housing Ordinance.

The practice of reducing planning and development fees in light of SB-975 has impacted construction
costs and also made private/public partnerships scant. This will have the unintended effect of reducing
the availability and affordability of housing. Although it is hoped that land costs will decrease to reflect the
increased costs associated with $B-975, the most recent housing cycle provides insufficient basis for such
a conclusion.

8. Short-Term Rental Ordinance

The City does not currently have a short-term rental ordinance that regulates the use of housing in the
city for short-term use. The City is, however, in the process of adopting an ordinance that would apply its
transient occupancy tax to short-term rentals. This ordinance is expected to be adopted in late 2019.

C. Environmental and Infrastructure Constraints

Physical environmental conditions affect the feasibility and cost of residential developments.
Environmental issues include the suitability of land for development, as well as the provision of adequate
infrastructure and services. This section addresses potential environmental and infrastructure constraints.

1. Environmental Constraints

Environmental constraints and hazards affect existing and future residential developments in varying
degrees. Discussed below are the major environmental constraints in the City. (More detailed discussion
of environmental safety issues is provided in the Safety Element of the General Plan.)

Geologic Hazards

San Juan Bautista lies adjacent to the San Andreas Fault zone. The U.S. Geological Survey has estimated
that the San Andreas Fault could produce an earthquake of 8.5-magnitude on the Richter Scale. Such
events would be expected to cause significant structural damage. The City is also subject to ground
shaking from the Calaveras Fault located 8 miles east of the City. Throughout the years, San Juan Bautista
has been impacted and structures damaged by seismic activity; the most recent occurring in 1989.

While liquefaction and ground failure are problems in areas adjacent to the City, the primary threat to San
Juan Bautista is ground shaking and fault “creep”. Ground shaking can cause major structure failure while
Fault “creep” is a serious threat to City infrastructure including wet utilities, roads and sidewalks. There is
a threat of landslides in a small portion of the City. Due to the presence of unreinforced masonry
structures in San Juan Bautista, a sizable earthquake could cause structures to fail. To mitigate the risks of
seismic activity, building costs are necessarily higher in San Juan Bautista.

——
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Flood Hazards

Floods do not represent a significant hazard to most of the City of San Juan Bautista. A small portion of the
City is affected by the San Juan Creek and its tributaries. However, some lands identified for residential
development in this housing element are not impacted by flood hazards. Refer to the map of vacant sites,
which also shows flooding constraints.

Fire Hazards

Residential fire potential is comparatively high in certain areas of the City due to the age of a significant
portion of the housing stock and the historic downtown. In 2008, a series of over 800 wildfires broke out
across the State including wildfires in Santa Cruz County. As drought conditions persist, the risk of wildfire
remains high. Wildland fires occasionally break out in the grasslands and on the dry, chaparral-covered
hills, but are normally contained long before they threaten urban areas. The California Division of Forestry
has primary responsibility for fire suppression in watershed areas. Under provisions of mutual aid
agreements, the San Juan Bautista volunteer fire provides reciprocal aid to other jurisdictions.

2. Public Facilities and Services

In planning for growth, it is important to ensure that adequate public facilities and services are available
to meet the anticipated demand. In compliance with the provision of AB 1087, the City provides a copy of
its current Housing Element to water and sewer service providers.

Discussed below are some of the public services in the City.

Water Supply

Water use in the San Juan Bautista area consists of a combination of residential, agricultural irrigation,
and water-intensive food processing/industrial uses. Agricultural uses continue to comprise between 80
to 90 percent of the water demand for the region. San Juan Bautista’s metered water supply is obtained
from City-owned groundwater wells. The water system serves the City and a small portion of
unincorporated areas of the County. The system currently consists of one storage facility, 3 wells. Two
replacement wells (Well #4 and Well #5) were recently constructed and a State Water Resources Control
Board violation noted in October 2016 resulted in a moratorium on new connections. The moratorium
was officially lifted in December 2018. According to the City’s Water Forum in January 2017, the
combination of Well #1, Well #5, and Well #6 meets or exceeds the redundancy and source capacity
requirements from the State for both current and future demand. As of 2017, the City’s water system
serves approximately 2,212 residents and the City has installed 720 water meters and 275 new meter
boxes. The new water system must have the capacity to meet the projected Maximum Day Demand of
approximately 371,091 gallons per day. Water availability is a critical planning issue for San Benito County
and the State as a whole. The City works collaboratively with the San Benito County Water District. It is
anticipated that discussion will continue regarding intertie of the City and District water systems. Most
areas of the underlying aquifer do not show significant groundwater depletion, although some agricultural
areas within the basin have been excessively pumped. As of December 2018, the connection moratorium,
previously implemented in October 2016 by the State Water Resource Control Board, had been lifted and
a new water system permit has been issued to the City in 2019.

Sewer Service

San Juan Bautista provides wastewater treatment for the incorporated City. The existing wastewater
treatment plant is located at the northerly terminus of Third Street. The present capacity of the City’s
sewer treatment plant is adequate to meet existing and future anticipated waste water flows.
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The General Plan EIR states that the City’s sewer plant has a dry capacity of 0.27 million gallons per day
and a wet capacity of 0.5 million gallons per day. The sewer plant can currently process flows greater than
the current average in the city and therefore, can accommodate the expected increase in wastewater
production. According to the City’s August 2018 reporting, the City pumped an average of approximately
0.096 million gallons of wastewater per day from pump station #1. The current sewer plant has sufficient
capacity to serve additional housing. New residential projects are required to pay water and sewer
connection and user fees to the City.

San Juan Bautista presently provides new water and sewer services to all in-City applicants who are
permitted to develop new resldentlial development. If the provision of new water and sewer services
becomes limited as the utility approaches capacity, priority for new services will be given to affordable
housing projects as required by section 65589.7 of the California Government Code.
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Chapter

Housing Resources il

This section analyzes the resources available for the development, rehabilitation, and preservation of
housing in San Juan Bautista. This includes an evaluation of the availability of land resources, the City's
ability to satisfy its share of the region's future housing needs, the financial resources available to support
housing activities, and the administrative resources available to assist in implementing the City's housing
programs.

A. Regional Housing Needs

As presented in Section 1, San Juan Bautista is allocated 41 new units for the entire 5th Cycle 2015-2023
planning period (see Table 1-1). San Juan Bautista must demonstrate that adequate sites will be available
to address its share of the regional housing need for the planning period of 2015 - 2023.

The Department of Housing and Community Development allows cities three ways to address this
requirement:

a. New Housing Production. Since the RHNA takes several years to develop prior to the Housing
Element planning period of 2015-2023, jurisdictions may count the number of new units built and
occupied from 2014 toward their RHNA requirements.

b. Rehabilitation/Preservation. Under State law, cities can also count up to 25 percent of their RHNA
for the rehabilitation of qualified substandard units. Cities may also count a portion of the
affordable units which would otherwise revert to market rents but are preserved through
committed assistance from the jurisdiction.

c. Available Land for Development. Cities may also count potential housing production on suitably
zoned vacant and underutilized sites within the community. Cities must document how zoning and
development standards on the sites facilitate housing.

The following discussion shows how the City will meet its RHNA for the 2015-2023 planning period,
including accommodation of housing for low and very low income households.

B. City Incentives towards Housing Production

This section discusses city incentives for housing production.

1. Inclusionary Housing Ordinance

in 2007, the City adopted an Inclusionary Housing Ordinance as a means to provide permanent affordable
housing for very low and low income households. For sale projects of 6 or more units and rental projects
of 5 or more units are required to either provide units affordable to very low or low income households or
pay an affordable housing in-lieu fee. The in-lieu fee is established at the time of entitlement and is based
on the amount sufficient to subsidize a median priced home in San Juan Bautista. The in-lieu fees are
estimated for multifamily and single family to be from $5,000 - $11,000. Through the development
agreement negotiation process, fee reductions or waivers are sometimes approved based on project-
specific findings.

The Ordinance does not apply to congregate care, residential care facilities, secondary dwelling units and
similar facilities. One constraint is that most lots developable in the City due to the size don’t hit the
threshold of providing mandatory affordable units. The City has found that developers fit under the
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requirement of fewer than six units. The City will continue to monitor this ordinance as part of the
Inclusionary Housing Program to make sure it does not become a constraint for any future developments.
Reservation requirements pursuant to the City’s Zoning Ordinance are as follows:

Reservation of For-Sale Units

1

No for-sale residential project of six (6) or more units subject to this Chapter shall be approved in
any area of the City unless at least one (1) such housing unit is reserved for sale to very low- or
low-income households or reserved as rental units for very low- or low-income households for
each 5 (5) units of market-rate housing.

Calculation of Reservation Requirement. The calculation of the number of housing units to be
reserved shall be made utilizing the total number of housing units in the residential project prior
to including any increase in the allowable number of such housing units authorized by any density
bonus granted pursuant to Government Code Section 65915 et seq. If the calculation of the
number of housing units to be reserved results in a fraction of a whole number, the developer
may either reserve one (1) additional housing unit or pay a partial in-lieu fee equal to the
remaining fraction. The amount of the in-lieu fee shall be determined according to SIBMC 11-09-
505.

Timing for Construction of Reserved Units. The reserved units shall be constructed either prior to
or simultaneously with the non-reserved units within the development. If the development is
being constructed in phases, the percentage of reserved units to be constructed in each phase
shall be equivalent to one (1) reserved unit for every five (5) market rate units being constructed
in that phase.

Sales Price. The initial sales price and the resale sales price of reserved units shall be limited to
ensure that the price is and remains affordable to very low- or low-income households as defined
in SIBMC 11-09-300.

Sales Restriction. Reserved units shall be sold or resold only to eligible very low- or low-income
households. A deed restriction, covenant, and/or other instrument enforceable by the City and
approved by the City Attorney limiting the resale of such units to eligible very low- or low-income
households shall be recorded against the title of all reserved units. The duration of such resale
restrictions shall be a minimum of fifty-five (55) years.

Rental Restriction. The requirements in subsection (B) of this Section shall apply if rental housing
is provided as the reserved units.

Reservation of Rental Units

1.

No rental residential project subject to this Chapter (including time extensions) shall be permitted
unless at least one (1) affordable unit is reserved for very low- or low-income households for each
five (5) units of market-rate housing.

Calculation of Reservation Requirement. The provisions of this subsection shall apply to the
calculation of the number of housing units to be reserved in any rental housing development.

Design and Construction of Reserved Units. The design and exterior appearance of the reserved
units shall be compatible with and substantially the same as the non-reserved units within the
development and shall contain proportionately the same or a larger number of bedrooms and
square footage per reserved unit as the non-reserved units.

Rental Restriction. The rent to be charged for a reserved housing unit shall be so limited as to be
affordable to very low- or low-income households.
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5. Deed Restriction. A deed of restriction, covenant, and/or other instrument enforceable by the City
and approved by the City Attorney shall be recorded against the title of the property within which
the reserved units are located limiting the rental of the reserved units as described in subsection
(B)(4) of this section. This rent restriction shall be in effect for a minimum of fifty-5 (55) years.
Additionally, the property shall be so restricted as to prohibit the conversion of the restricted
units for the term of the rent restriction to a condominium, stock cooperative, community
apartment, or such other form of ownership which would eliminate the restricted units as rental
units.

The Ordinance will help to ensure that units affordable to low and very low income households will be
produced or acquired.

2. Affordable Housing Incentives

Under the State density bonus law projects may be eligible for an additional density bonus (up to a 35
percent). Moreover, per State law, the City is obligated to offer additional regulatory and financial
incentives, including a reduction in development standards, modified parking, modified street widths,
direct financial aid or loans, etc. To date, no project proponents have sought density bonus under State
law.

3. Planned Unit Developments

The City provides other regulatory and financial incentives to encourage creative housing projects. The
Planned Unit Development permit process allows for significant modifications in lot sizes, street widths,
density, open space, and many other features in a residential project. Projects which are larger than one
acre are encouraged to file for a PUD to take advantage of design flexibility afforded the project by the
ordinance. During the planning period, one PUD application has been filed.

4. Mixed Use District

The City’s Mixed Use District allows for types of housing that would not otherwise be accommodated
within the City, such as upper floor apartments over commercial uses. This housing type is generally less
expensive than single family homes, and provides a chance to live near the downtown area.

5. Cooperation with Non Profit Organizations

The City of San Juan Bautista works with nonprofit organizations on a variety of issues and needs within
the community. The City will continue to work with non-profits to address housing needs in the City.
Limited financial capacity and land capacity limits the attractiveness of San Juan Bautista to such
partnerships.

6. Access to Persons with Disabilities

State law requires that cities analyze potential and actual constraints upon housing for persons with
disabilities, demonstrate efforts to remove government constraints, and include programs to
accommodate housing designed for disabled persons, including those with developmental disabilities. As
part of the City’s 5th Cycle Housing Element process, the City analyzed its Zoning Ordinance, permitting
procedures, development standards, and building codes to identify potential impediments. Where found,
the Program Section (Chapter 5) proposes specific actions and implementation schedules to remove such
impediments. The City will continue to review and enhance those proposed actions and implementation
schedules in this Housing Element. The following summarizes the findings from the analysis.
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City of San Juan Bautista 5" Cycle Housing Element (4-Year Update)
Public Review Draft: December 3, 2019 Page 4-3

181



HOUSING RESOURCES

1. Zoning and Land Use. State and Federal housing laws encourage an inclusive living environment,
where persons of all walks of life have the opportunity to find housing suited to their needs. The
City’s zoning code permits a range of housing types suitable to special needs groups covered
under the uses “Residential Care Facilities.” Group homes (home where a small number of
unrelated people in need of care, support, or supervision can live together) serving 6 or fewer
persons are permitted by right in all three residential zoning districts and larger facilities (seven or
more persons) are permitted in the R-3 zoning district.

2. Building Codes and Development Standards. The City enforces Title 24 of the California Code of
Regulations, which regulates the access and adaptability of buildings to accommodate persons
with disabilities. In addition, the City’s building code requires compliance with the 1988
amendments to the Fair Housing Act, which requires a minimum percentage of dwelling units in
new developments to be fully accessible to the physically disabled. The Americans with Disabilities
Act (ADA) requires new residential buildings consisting of three or more units to incorporate
design features, including: (1) adaptive design features for the interior of the unit; (2) accessible
public and common use portions; and (3) sufficiently wider doors to allow wheelchair access. The
City ensures that building plans meet ADA accessibility standards.

The City provides for modified/reduced parking for projects located within the Mixed Use District.
Additionally, the parking ordinance allows joint use of parking as well as in-lieu parking fees. Each
of these provisions could assist in the development of housing for persons with disabilities.

3. Permitting Procedures. The City does not require special building codes or additional levels of
review to build, improve, or convert housing for disabled persons. Per State law, requests for
modifications to ensure housing access, such as ramps up to 30 inches in h8height, do not require
a building permit and are processed over the counter. The City uses a standard entitlement
processes to ensure that facilities are sited and operated in a manner compatible with
surrounding land uses.

C. Availability of Sites for Housing

A critical component of the Housing Element is the identification of adequate sites to accommodate
projected future housing development, and evaluation of the adequacy of these sites in fulfilling the City's
share of regional housing needs as determined by SB+COG. The adequacy of sites is demonstrated by
analyzing the density and development standards of various parcels to determine development potential
and by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, public services, and facilities will be available to serve the
sites. Citywide constraints to development were discussed in earlier sections, specifically Chapter 3.

For this Housing Element update, a parcel-specific vacant and underutilized site inventory was performed
by updating a survey conducted for the General Plan, and using data from San Benito County’s GIS and the
County Assessor's database. Existing uses on each site were considered. City staff refined the list to
include only lots that could realistically be developed. Development capacity for sites situated in flood
plains or sensitive habitat areas was reduced. Sites selected also had or will have adequate infrastructure,
public services, and access to facilities. A 20 percent reduction was applied to larger sites to yield a net
development area to accommodate infrastructure improvements. Smaller sites (one acre or less) with
immediate street access were assumed developable at full density.
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1. Vacant and Partially Vacant Development Sites

The City has identified a number of vacant sites, and one partially vacant site, within the existing City
limits that are zoned for residential use or mixed use (that includes residential component). These sites
are adjacent to local streets and could be developed with localized |mprovements to water, sewer, and—

storm drainage lines, and dry utilities. /

sew inage Further anal SIS for the artlall vacant 5|te is
provided below.

Partially Vacant Affordable Housing Site

With regard to APN: 002-350-002 listed in Table 4-1 below (Map #2.5), the City added special
development standards to its Zoning Ordinance in October 2019 to ensure that the regulations governing
development of this late-adopted affordable housing site complied with state law. These special
development standards were inserted in the form of two new footnotes—Footnote #14 and Footnote

#15—as follows:

1 shecial standards and conditions apply to one affordable housing site (APN 002-350-002) in this
zoning district through the year 2024 only, as follows:

e The allowable density for the designated affordable housing site is a minimum of 20 units
per acre and a maximum of 24 units per acre;

e Twenty (20) percent of the residential development on the affordable housing site must be
owner-occupied and/or rental multi-family uses that are affordable to lower-income
households; and

o All development on this affordable housing site must be permitted by right (i.e., no
conditional use permit, planned development permit, or other discretionary review or

approval).

s Any development that takes place on APN 002-350-002 would accommodate necessary
historic preservation efforts on or off site that would be in compliance with the City of San
Juan Bautista Historic Resource Preservation Ordinance (Chp. 11-06) and the Secretary of
Interior Standards.

Except for those usual standards in conflict with the special standards and conditions above, all
usual development standards for this zoning district (as shown in the table) also apply to the
affordable housing site.

5 aAdditional special standards and conditions apply to one affordable housing site (APN 002-350-
002) in this zoning district, as follows:

s The owner of the site has the right to develop this mixed-use site as 100 percent multi-
family housing without a Conditional Use Permit or other discretionary action,

e |f the owner of the site chooses to develop the site as mixed use (commercial and
residential, combined), then at least 50 percent of floor area must be developed as a
minimum of 16 multi-family dwellings; and

e Any development that takes place on APN 002-350-002 would accommodate necessary
historic preservation efforts on or off site that would be in compliance with the City of San

e ———————————————————————=s
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Juan Bautista Historic Resource Preservation Ordinance (Chp. 11-06) and the Secretary of

Interior Standards.

This affordable housing site (Map #2.5) was evaluated in an addendum to the Initial Study prepared for
Housing Element adoption. This site is a partially vacant parcel comprised of 3.84 acres and zoned for
mixed use, with public utilities available to the site. The property to the west of the site is zoned for
commercial use, and property to the east is zoned for residential use. The size of this site would
accommodate a large residential project whose residents would provide ready market for neighboring
commercial and other mixed uses.

The Initial Study addendum indicated that development of this site would be constrained by four

categories of environmental impact—historical resources, biological resources, air quality, and land use.

Historical Resources: With regard to historical resources, the 3.84-acre site contains the old Chalmers
House, which is located on approximately 0.4 acres of the site and considered a locally significant
historical resource. The special MU (Mixed Use) conditions placed on this site included a requirement to
protect the potentially historic Chalmers House from any significant degradation. This condition ensures
that impacts related to historical resources would be less than significant.

Biological Resources: With regard to biological impacts, the site is also located within 0.39 miles of a
known breeding habitat for the California tiger salamander, which means that biological monitoring would

be required during ground disturbance activities.

Air Quality Impacts: With regard to air quality impacts, the site is located immediately adjacent to

Highway 156 and therefore subject to toxic air contaminants generated by vehicles operating on the

highway. This means that property developers would have to undertake a toxic air contaminants analysis
to determine what measures might be necessary to ensure future residents are not exposed to
contaminants.

Land Use Impacts: With regard to land use impacts, the site is located next to a vacant commercial
property on one side, an existing single-family development on the other side, an existing multi-family

development across the street, and Highway 156 immediately south of the site. The neighboring vacant
commercial property, once developed, would be minimally compatible with the proposed high-density

residential use. The highway use to the south would be considered a less-than-perfect neighbor.

Complete Housing Sites Inventory

in-Table 4-1 and illustrated in

A complete list of housing sites is shown in #

Figure 4-1. Table 4-2 provides a summary of the sites by income level.

e ———
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Table 4-1: Housing Sites Inventory

M: p APN Acres Ag:: 4 General Plan | Zoning | Density ‘:_f;?,'::' Capacity
1 0022200030 0.48 0.48 Public Facility PF FAR 0.7 | See note (1) | See note (1)
Subtotal 0.48 - -
2 0623200080 22 822 Medium-Density B3 45 = 3
2.5 0023500020 3.84 344 Demﬁygsl—ix_ed R-3MU 4520 LVL S 5468
Use 68 note (2)
Subtotal | 3.6644 Subtotal 5468
2 0023200090 0.22 022 | Medium Density | R-3 15 MM 3
3 0021600130 0.05 0.05 Mixed Use MU 10 M 1
4 0021500030 0.11 0.11 Mixed Use MU 10 M 1
5 0021300040 0.27 027 Mixed Use MU 10 M 3
6 0024700080 0.12 0.12 Mixed Use MU 10 M 1
7 0021900100 0.31 0.31 Mixed Use MU 10 M 3
8 0021600140 0.05 0.05 Mixed Use MU 10 M 1
9 0021600120 0.06 0.06 Mixed Use MU 10 M 1
10 0022600460 0.17 0.17 Medium Density R-2 10 M 2
Subtotal | 1.4436 Subtotal 1316
1 0024300200 0.13 0.13 Medium Density R-1 5 AM 1
12 0022900430 0.17 0.17 Medium Density R-1 5 AM 1
13 0025630020 0.15 0.15 Low Density R-1 5 AM 1
14 0024200170 0.11 0.1 Low Density R-1 5 AM 1
15 0023800130 0.11 0.11 Low Density R-1 5 AM 1
16 0022600240 0.19 0.19 Low Density R-1 5 AM 1
17 0025400070 9.72 7.78 Low Density R-1 5 AM 39
18 0022600230 0.20 0.20 Low Density R-1 5 AM 1
Subtotal 8.84 Subtotal 46
Total | 14.12 Subtotal| 43130

Source: EMC Planning Group, Inc.; City of San Juan Bautista

Notes: (1) Zoning appropriate for homeless shelter.
(2) This site is partially vacant. Approximately 0.4 acres of this site is occupied by a farmhouse that is considered historically
significant. Special development conditions that have been incorporated into the Zoning Ordinance require preservation of
this farmhouse and its 0.4-acres site. In addition, special development conditions apply to this site as required by
Government Code §65583.2(h).

e ——————
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Table 4-2: Summary of Vacant Sites by Assumed Income Level

Affordability Level A’c‘zs Capacity RHNA Unmet Need
Homeless Shelter 0.48 n/a n/a n/a
Extremely Low, Very Low, and Low 3.6644 5468 16 0
Moderate 1.4436 4316 8 0
Above Moderate 8.84 46 17 0

Source: EMC Planning Group, Inc.; City of San Juan Bautista

The development capacity estimates are based on the low-end of the allowed density range for each
district, with at least one unit per lot. As can be seen, the City has adequate sites within the city limits to
accommodate its share of low and very low income units.

2. Additional Capacity for Affordable Housing

In addition to the sites listed in Table 4-1, above, the City has mechanisms in place that will also contribute
to meeting the City’s current and future RHNA. These include the City’s Inclusionary Housing Ordinance,
mixed-use infill, and accessory dwelling units.

Inclusionary Housing Ordinance

Upon application of the City’s Inclusionary Housing Ordinance, one out of every six market-rate housing
units shall be reserved for sale to very low, low, or moderate income households or reserved as rental
units for very low, low, or moderate income households. Therefore, a portion of the homes constructed
on these sites would be required to be made available as affordable units, and would reduce the land
necessary for re-zoning to R-3.

Mixed-Use Infill

The City’s General Plan and Zoning Ordinance apply a “Mixed Use” land use category to the central
business district and the City’s two “gateway” areas. Residential uses are encouraged on the second floors
of commercial buildings on sites with this designation and live-work and artist studio development is
supported. This type of development has been an important affordable housing resource in San Juan
Bautista. A number of lower priced rental units and shop owner residences exist above stores and
restaurants on Third Street. The designation also provides places where housing, small business, and
workshop space can be combined on the same site. The City is targeting this area for attaining its
moderate income housing.

Residential development within the Mixed Use District is allowed subordinate to commercial uses at a
density up to 15 units per acre when located above or behind a commercial use with the exception of
senior and affordable housing projects. Per the City’s Inclusionary Housing Ordinance, new construction
for uses that are exclusively residential (i.e. that do not include a commercial component) on a property
that does not already contain a commercial use is only allowed if the proposed new use meets an
identified affordable housing need. Such projects would also receive an increase in allowable density of at
least 50 percent (if the project is 100 percent affordable) and flexibility in parking requirements. These
provisions provide incentive to preserve existing residential uses and construct new affordable housing.
With the residential density of 15 units per acre combined with commercial uses, each residential unit is
anticipated to be relatively small and thus deemed “affordable” by design. Having only residential without
a commercial component, the realistic capacity could reach 20 units per acre.

#
- S
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From 2000 to 2014, nine housing units were constructed within the Mixed Use District: four within a new
mixed use project and five on underdeveloped sites that contained a commercial component. Since 2014,
no additional mixed use residential units have been built.

Secondary Dwelling Units {ADUs)

In fall 2019, the City revised its Second Unit Ordinance to comply with comply with all state law regulating
ADUs. According to the City’s 2018 adopted planning fees, a use permit would cost the applicant $1,500
for major development or $750 for minor.

During the City’s initiation of changes to the Second Unit Ordinance, many property owners expressed
interest in pursuing permits for second units. Six accessory dwelling units were built during this planning
period.

3. Additional Housing Capacity within the Urban Growth Boundary

The General Plan designates an Urban Growth Boundary that encompasses about 325 acres within the
City limits and another 145 acres to be annexed and provided with urban services by the City.
Development of land outside the City limits at urban densities requires annexation to the City. City
Annexations are subject to review and approval by the Local Agency Formation Commission of San Benito
County (LAFCO).

The City annexed 6 different portions of land within the urban growth boundary between 2015 and 2017.
The City’s approximately 13-acre Copperleaf residential subdivision project was annexed into the City in
2016 (Document ID 2016-0009779). The remaining annexations were of non-residential land: a 32-acre
piece of land on the southeastern-end of the City was annexed in 2015 for industrial development
(Document ID 2015-0010254); an approximately one-acre piece of land on the western side of the City
was annexed in 2015 (Document ID 2015-0010253); an approximately two-acre and three-acre piece of
land were annexed in 2017 and 2015, respectively (Document IDs 2017-0009704 and 2015-0010258); and
another two-acre piece of land to the north of the City was annexed in 2015 (Document ID 2015-
0010256).

D. Progress toward RHNA

San Juan Bautista has made some progress towards meeting its share of the regional housing needs
during the first four-year segment of the 2015-2023 planning period. According to the California
Department of Finance, San Juan Bautista added 53 units between 2015 and 2019. Six of these units were
accessory dwelling units built on lots containing single family dwellings. Table 4-6 below illustrates the
number of housing units by income level that have been built during this planning period.

Table 4-6: Housing Units Built During Current Planning Period (2015-2019)

Affordability Distribution Housing U::\t’selby iy el
Very Low 0
Low 0
Moderate 0
Above Moderate 53
Total Units 53

Source: DOF Table E-5 2019; City of San Juan Bautista
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As summarized in Table 4-7, the City can fully address its RHNA through a combination of past housing
production during this planning period, remaining capacity in residential and commercial areas, and a

combination of second units and infill development.

Table 4-7: Remaining Need Based on Units Approved/Under Construction

Credits Toward RHNA
Affordability Distribution RHNA
Units Approved Remaining Need
Very Low 10 0 10
Low 6 0 6
Moderate 8 0 8
Above Moderate 17 53 0
Total Units 41 53 24

Source: City of San Juan Bautista

E. Financial Resources

San Juan Bautista currently has no staff or financial resources to develop a “stand alone” housing
development program. As such, the City will need to partner with non-profit agencies, San Benito County
and other parties to address housing needs in the City. While the City currently does not access many of
the programs and funds available, the City may in the future choose to avail itself to the affordable
housing funds provided via local, State, Federal and private resources. The following section describes the
5 largest housing funding sources the City can use for housing production, rehabilitation, or preservation:
CDBG grants, HOME funds, redevelopment set-aside funds, affordable housing in-lieu fees, the Housing
Choice Voucher Program, and Proposition 46 funds. Table 4-8 provides an inventory of financial resources

available.

Table 4-8: Financial Resources for Housing Activities

Program Name Description Eligible Activities

1. Federal Programs

Community Grants awarded to the City on a formula basis -Acquisition

Development for housing and community development -Rehabilitation

Block Grant activities. The City is currently not eligible for -Home Buyer Assistance

(CDBG) CDBG due to non-certification of Housing -Economic Development
Element. -Homeless Assistance

-Public Services

Emergency Grants potentially available to the City through -Shelter Construction

Shelter Grants the County to implement a broad range of -Shelter Operation

(ESG) activities that serve homeless persons. Funding -Social Services
availability is uncertain for the current year. -Homeless Prevention

HOME Grant program available to the City on a -Acquisition

competitive basis for housing activities. City
competes for funds through the State’s
allocation process.

-Rehabilitation
-Home Buyer Assistance
-Rental Assistance

——— — — — —
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Credits (LIHTC)

housing. Proceeds from the sales are typically

used to create housing.

Program Name Description Eligible Activities
Low-Income Tax credits available to persons and -New Construction
Housing Tax corporations that invest in low-income rental -Acquisition

-Rehabilitation

Mortgage
Credit
Certificate
(MCC) Program

Income tax credits available to first-time
homebuyers to buy new or existing single-
family housing. Santa Cruz County Housing
Authority makes certificates available.

-Home Buyer Assistance

Housing Choice
Voucher Program

Rental assistance payments through Santa

County Housing Authority to owners of private
market rate units on behalf of very low-income

tenants.

Cruz | -Rental Assistance
-Home Buyer Assistance

Section 202

Grants to non-profit developers of supportive

housing for the elderly.

-Acquisition
-Rehabilitation
-New Construction

Section 203(k)

Provides long-term low interest loans at fixed
rate to finance acquisition and rehabilitation of

eligible property.

-Land Acquisition

-Rehabilitation

-Relocation of Unit

-Refinance Existing Indebtedness

Section 811

Grants to non-profit developers of supportive
housing for persons with disabilities, including
group homes, independent living facilities and

intermediate care facilities

-Acquisition
-Rehabilitation
-New Construction
-Rental Assistance

U.S. Department
of Agriculture
(USDA) Housing
Programs
(Sections 514/516

Below market-rate loans and grants for
farmworkers rental housing.

-New Construction
-Rehabilitation

2. State Programs

SB 2 Planning
Grants Program

Provides funding and technical assistance
to all local governments to prepare, adopt,
and implement plans and process
improvements that streamline housing
approvals and  accelerate  housing
production.

- Updates to general plans,
community plans, specific plans,
local planning related to
implementation of sustainable
communities strategies, or local
coastal plans.

-Updates to zoning ordinances.

-Environmental analyses that
eliminate the need for project-
specific review.

-Local process improvements that
expedite local planning and
permitting.

Affordable
Housing
Partnership

Program (AHPP)

Provides lower interest rate CHFA loans to
home buyers who receive local secondary
financing.

-Home Buyer Assistance

_ e e —————— ey
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Program Name

Description

Eligible Activities

CalHOME

Provides grants to local governments and non-
profit agencies for local home buyer assistance
and owner-occupied rehabilitation program and
new home development projects. Will finance
the acquisition, rehabilitation, and replacement
of manufactured homes.

-Home Buyer Assistance
-Rehabilitation
-New Construction

California Housing
Assistance
Program

Provides 3 percent silent second loans in
conjunction with 97 percent CHFA first loans to
give eligible buyers 100 percent financing.

-Home Buyer Assistance

California Housing
Finance Agency
(CHFA) Rental
Housing Programs

Below market rate financing offered to builders
and developers of multi-family and elderly
rental housing. Tax exempt bonds provide
below-market mortgages.

-New Construction
-Rehabilitation
-Acquisition

California Housing
Finance Agency
(CHFA) Home
Mortgage
Purchase Program

CHFA sells tax-exempt bonds to make below-
market loans to first-time buyers. Program
operates through participating lenders who
originate loans for CHFA.

-Home Buyer Assistance

California Self-

Provides grants for the administration of mutual

-Home Buyer Assistance

Help Housing self-help housing projects. -New Construction
Program (CSHHP)
Downtown Funding to facilitate infill development and -Rehabilitation
Rebound conversion of commercial buildings for “live-

work” spaces.
Emergency Provides grants to support emergency housing. -Shelters & Transitional Housing
Housing and
Assistance
Emergency Grants awarded to non-profit organizations for -Support Services
Shelter shelter support services.
Extra Credit Provides $7,500 silent second loans with -Home Buyer Assistance
Teacher forgivable interest in conjunction with lower
Program interest rate CHFA first loans to assist eligible

teachers to buy homes.
Farmworker Provides State tax credits for farmworker -New Construction
Housing housing projects. -Rehabilitation
Housing Provides 3 percent interest rate loans, with -New Construction
Enabled by repayment terms up to 10 years, to local -Rehabilitation
Local government entities for locally-determined -Acquisition
Partnerships affordable housing priorities. -Home Buyer Assistance
(HELP) -Site Acquisition

-Site Development

Joe Sernalr.
Farmworker
Housing Grant
Program (FWHG)

Provide recoverable grants for the acquisition,
development and financing of ownership and
rental housing for farmworkers.

-Home Buyer Assistance
-Rehabilitation
-New Construction

Multi-Family
Housing
Program (MHP)

Deferred payment loans for the new
construction, rehabilitation and preservation of
rental housing.

-New Construction
-Rehabilitation
-Preservation
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Pragram Name

Description

Eligible Activities

Foster Care

Self-help Provides lower interest rate CHFA loans to -Home Buyer Assistance
Builder owner-builders who participate in self-help -New Construction
Assistance housing projects. Also provides site acquisition, -Site Acquisition
Program development and construction financing for -Site Development
(SHBAP) self-help housing projects.

Supportive Funding for housing and services for mentally -Supportive Housing
Housing/Mino ill, disabled and persons needing support -Foster Care

rs Leaving services to live independently.

3. Local Programs

Affordable
Housing In- Lieu
Fees

The City collects in-lieu fee contributions from
residential, commercial, and industrial
development under the provisions of the
Inclusionary Housing Ordinance.

-Acquisition
-Rehabilitation
-New Construction

Revenue Bond

requiring the developer to lease a fixed
percentage of the units to low-income families
at specified rental rates.

Financial The City’s Density Bonus Ordinance offers -New Construction
Incentives financial incentives. The City uses the State

under the provisions for density bonuses.

Tax Exempt The City can support low-income housing by -New Construction
Housing issuing housing mortgage revenue bonds -Acquisition

-Rehabilitation

4. Private Resources/Financing Programs

California
Community
Reinvestment
Corporation

Non-profit mortgage banking consortium
designed to provide long term debt financing for
affordable multi-family rental housing. Non-
profit and for profit developers contact member

-New Construction
-Rehabilitation
-Acquisition

(Fannie Mae)

rehabilitation of a home.

(CCRC) banks.

Federal National -Fixed rate mortgages issued by private -Home Buyer Assistance
Mortgage mortgage insurers.

Association -Mortgages which fund the purchase and -Home Buyer Assistance

-Rehabilitation

-Low Down-Payment Mortgages for Single-
Family Homes in underserved low-income and
minority cities.

-Home Buyer Assistance

Company Inc.

institutions.

Freddie Mac Provides first and second mortgages that -Home Buyer Assistance
Home Works include rehabilitation loan. City provides gap

financing for rehabilitation component.

Households earning up to 80% MFI qualify.
Savings Pooling process to fund loans for affordable -New construction of rentals,
Association ownership and rental housing projects. Non- cooperatives, self-help housing,
Mortgage profit and for profit developers contact member homeless shelters, and group

homes

Source: Compiled by Cotton/Bridges/Associates, November 2002.
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1. Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funds

The CDBG program provides funds for a range of community development activities. The program is
flexible in that the funds can be used for a range of activities including, but not limited to: acquisition
and/or disposition of real estate or property, public facilities and improvements, relocation, rehabilitation
and construction (under certain limitations) of housing, homeownership assistance, and also clearance
activities. Currently, the City is not a recipient of funds. The City may choose, upon Housing Element
Certification, to pursue CDBG funds on a competitive basis. CDBG funds are currently being targeted in
federal budget reductions. It is unknown to what extent CDBG will be available to assist the City.

2. HOME Investment Partnership Program Funds

Federal HOME funds can be used for activities that promote housing and homeownership for lower-
income households. Such activities include the following: building acquisition, new construction,
moderate or substantial rehabilitation, first-time homebuyer assistance and tenant-based assistance. A
federal priority for use of these funds is preservation of at-risk housing stock. The State HOME Income
Limits for San Benito County were updated in 2019 and became effective in June 28, 2019.

San Juan Bautista has not applied for or secured HOME funds through the State HCD (through a
competitive process). Administrative costs of the program and the limited size of San Juan Bautista may
fimit the utility of this program. The City currently does not receive any HOME funds.

3. Affordable Housing In-Lieu Fee

The City collects in-lieu fee contributions from residential projects if housing is not provided onsite, under
the provisions of the Inclusionary Housing Ordinance. These fees, by ordinance, are required to be used to
address affordable housing needs in the City. The City’s Municipal Code Chapters 11-09-500 through 11-
09-510 provide descriptions of the in-lieu fees.

4. Housing Choice Voucher Program

The Housing Choice Voucher Program is a Federal program that provides rental assistance to very low-
income persons in need of affordable housing. The Housing Choice Voucher Program offers a voucher. A
voucher pays the difference between the payment standard (an exception to fair market rent) and what a
tenant can afford to pay (e.g. 30 percent of their income). A voucher allows a tenant to choose housing
that may cost above the payment standard, with the tenant paying the extra cost. The County of San
Benito contracts with the Housing Authority of Santa Cruz County to administer the Housing Choice
Voucher Program in San Benito County (San Juan Bautista). The Housing Choice Voucher Program may
now be used to assist certificate holders to buy a home as well. According to the Housing Authority of
Santa Cruz County’s data for 2018, a total of 15 households in the City are receiving vouchers.

5. Proposition 1C: Housing and Emergency Shelter Trust Fund Act of 2006

Due to the State’s budget deficit, only limited State funds have been available for affordable housing
activities. However, California voters in 2006 approved a $2.9 billion bond (Proposition 1c) to address the
State's affordable housing challenges. According to the Department of Housing and Community
Development (HCD), the housing bond will establish funding for housing and infrastructure programs to
produce an estimated 118,000 housing units, 2,350 homeless shelter spaces, and infrastructure projects
that help infill housing development such as water, sewer, parks, and transportation improvements.
Specifically, the bond will be allocated according to Figure 4-2 as shown below.
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Figure 4-2: Prop 1C Bond Allocation

Other Housing Homeownership

Programs, $285

$625
Transit Orlented
Davalopment,
$300
Affordable Rental
Housing, $590
Infrastructure and e
Parks, $1,050 (dollars are in millions}

Source: State Department of Housing and Community Development

These bond funds will be available on a competitive basis for the entire state and represent a major
opportunity for the City to leverage local monies in support of affordable housing.

F. Administrative Resources

Described below is a sample of public and non-profit agencies that have been involved in housing
activities in the San Juan Bautista area. These and other agencies play important roles in meeting the
housing needs of the community. In particular, they are or can be involved in the improvement of housing
stock, expansion of affordable housing opportunities, preservation of existing affordable housing, and/or
provision of housing assistance to households in need.

1. San Benito County/Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz

The Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz was created to provide housing assistance for Santa
Cruz County's lower- and moderate-income residents. The Housing Authority administers the Housing
Choice Voucher Program and manages public housing developments. The Housing Authority also
administers various programs, including the Mortgage Credit Certificate and Mobile Home Resident
Ownership Programs. In addition, the Authority issues mortgage-backed revenue bonds to assist
developers in providing affordable rental housing and single-family bonds for homeownership assistance.
San Benito County contracts with the Housing Authority.

2. South County Housing (SCH)

SCH is a private non-profit organization that provides housing for low- income families living in coastal,
mid-California. SCH has achieved distinction through the creation of 1,300 single-and multifamily units for
farmworker families, seniors, seasonal laborers, single parents, low-income families and the homeless.
SCH is also the owner/manager of more than 700 rental units affordably priced for low-income individuals
and families. These properties, housing more than 3,000 residents, are maintained under the auspices of
South County Housing Property Management Corporation.'

3. Mid-Peninsula Housing Coalition (MPHC)

Mid-Peninsula is an established regional nonprofit organization involved in the development,
management, acquisition and rehabilitation of affordable rental housing. MPHC primarily develops
affordable family and senior rental apartments. Since it was founded in 1971, MPHC has developed over

h
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3,700 affordable housing units in 6 Northern California counties. MPHC has also rehabilitated over 300
units in blighted neighborhoods. In addition, MPHC has been involved in the preservation of affordable
housing units that are at risk of converting to market rate uses.

4. Community Housing Improvement Systems and Planning Association, Inc. (CHISPA)

CHISPA is one of the largest private non-profit developers in Monterey and Santa Cruz County. To date,
CHISPA has produced more than 1,000 units of very low, low, and moderate-income housing throughout
Monterey County. Most of CHISPA's rental, homeownership, and cooperative projects serve large families
and include 3- and 4-bedroom townhouse-style units with open space and tot lots, CHISPA remains a

resource and a potential partner for San Juan Bautista.

5. Habitat for Humanity

Habitat for Humanity is a non-profit, Christian organization dedicated to building affordable housing and
rehabilitating homes for lower income families. Habitat builds and repairs homes with the help of
volunteers and partner families. Habitat homes are sold to partner families at no profit with affordable,
no-interest loans. Volunteers, churches, businesses, and other groups provide most of the labor for the
homes. Government agencies or individuals typically donate land for new homes.

6. Salvation Army

The Salvation Army is a Christian non-profit organization that offers a variety of services, including:
services for youth and seniors; a transitional housing program for persons in need, including those
recovering from addictive behaviors; human services; and emergency/disaster relief. When a natural
disaster or civil disorder occurs, the Salvation Army provides various recovery services, including shelter,
counseling, congregate feeding, financial assistance, and reconstruction. Shelters may be established in
Salvation Army facilities or other sites.

7. Housing Choices Coalition (HCC)

Housing Choices Coalition is a local nonprofit organization that creates and implements innovative
strategies to provide quality living options for people with developmental disabilities in Santa Clara
County, Monterey County, and Santa Cruz County. The Coalition aims to ensure that a variety of housing
options are available to people with developmental disabilities, including rental housing, home ownership

and cooperative and/or shared housing. The Coalition works in partnership with developers, funders, and
others in the planning and development of new affordable housing and the securing of housing units for
use by people with developmental disabilities.

8. Project WeHOPE / Dignity on Wheels
WeHOPE offers 4 main programs to help homeless individuals:

a. Transitional/Supportive Housing Program. This is a 120-day program that is intended to deal with
the systemic issues related to homelessness. Clients entering this program take a series of classes,
set weekly goals, meet weekly with his or her case manager, participate in a mandatory savings
program, do daily housing searches, and are a positive role model for emergency clients also staying
at the WeHOPE Shelter.

b. Dignity on Wheels Mobile Hygiene Outreach Program. Dignity on Wheels is a mobile hygiene
outreach program that provides free showers and laundry service for the homeless living in
encampments, rotating shelters, in their vehicles or other temporary spaces where they do not
have access to such amenities.
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¢. H.O.P.E.Jobs H.O.P.E. Jobs is a program that offers WeHOPE clients and the general community
with free certification courses to become a Security Guard or Custodial Technician. The classes are
taught by nationally certified instructors within their professional industry. Each individual who
successfully receives a certificate of completion for either class are able to apply for hundreds of
qualified jobs throughout California.

d. Dignity @ Work This program is offered to support formerly incarcerated individuals to become
successful in all aspects of their lives. We offer comprehensive training in diverse related disciplines
that provide life, communication, problem solving and financial management skills followed by job
and entrepreneurship training to set the stage for successful employment either as a business
owner or employee in a high-demand, low barrier to entry fields.

9. Schools/Social Services

San Juan Bautista’s local high school, Anzar High School, has programs that work with migrant household’s
children to help them pass the California High School Exit Exam (CHASEE). English learners, who have not
passed one or both parts of the CHASEE are entitled to receive “intensive instruction and services” for up
to 2 consecutive academic years after their completion of grade 12 or until they pass both parts of the
CAHSEE. Because many migrant households experience language barriers, this program works with
children, who claim English as their second language, to help them receive a high school diploma. The
Aromas-San Juan Unified School District also operates bus systems which have designated stops in rural
areas of Aromas and San Juan Bautista. These bus routes help ensure migrant children, who may live in
more remote locations and have parents who leave for work in the fields early, still have access to
attending school.

G. Opportunities for Energy Conservation

Not since the 1970s has energy conservation been a more important issue in California. With the
escalation in energy prices during the past few years, consumers and builders have once again become
more aware of energy costs. The City of San Juan Bautista recognizes that prosperity and economic
development cannot be achieved at the expense of our environment. The City must strike a balance
between development and environmental stewardship to keep our economy strong and, at the same
time, protect our environment. The following section highlights building standards and conservation
codes contributing to that success.

Title 24 of the California Administrative Code sets forth mandatory energy standards for new
development, and requires adoption of an "energy budget." In turn, the home building industry must
comply with these standards while localities are responsible for enforcing the energy conservation
regulations. In February 2015, San Juan Bautista worked with the Monterey Bay SEED Fund to analyze
several sites within the City (City Hall, City Yard, Community Center, Wastewater Treatment Plant, and the
Pellet Plant) to determine any potential technical issues with implementing solar installation and in March
2015, each signed an agreement for cooperative purchasing of renewable energy. Since this agreement in
2015, the City has not adopted a Solar Energy Code for the purpose of reducing energy costs for new
residential developments nor has the City adopted an energy budget. However, State law (both the
Residential Building Code and CalGreen) have standards that significantly reduce energy use in new
residential construction.

The following are among the alternative ways to meet these energy standards. Alternative 1 is a passive
solar approach which requires proper solar orientation, appropriate levels of thermal mass, south facing
windows, and moderate insulation levels. Alternative 2 generally requires higher levels of insulation than
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Alternative 1, but has no thermal mass or window orientation requirements. Alternative 3 is without
passive solar design but requires active solar water heating in exchange for less stringent insulation
and/or glazing requirements.

Increasing energy costs, persistent drought and climate change have reshaped how Californians think
when it comes to buying new homes. Solar roof panels have become increasingly commonplace over the
past several decades, with both State and federal tax credits available. Energy-efficient appliances and
landscaping have become amenities of choice for this class of homebuyer. Developers can make the most
of this paradigm shift by embracing “green” building practices that incorporate the energy and water
efficiencies that consumers desire as well as environmentally friendly construction that minimizes waste
and maximizes the use of resources.

1. Monterey Bay Community Power and Pacific Gas & Electric (PG&E)

Monterey Bay Community Power, the new community choice aggregation agency in the 3-county region,
opened its doors in 2018, providing 100 percent carbon-free electric power to its customers. In addition,
Pacific Gas & Electric provides both natural gas and electricity to residential consumers in San Benito

County, including the City of San Juan Bautista. PG&E also participates in several other energy assistance

programs which help qualified homeowners and renters conserve energy and control costs. These include:

a. The California Alternate Rates for Energy Program (CARE) provides a 15 percent monthly discount
on energy rates to income-qualified households, agricultural employee housing, shelters, hospices
and other qualified non-profit group living facilities.

b. The Relief for Energy Assistance through Community Help (REACH) Program provides one-time
energy assistance to low-income customers who have experienced severe hardships and have no
other way to pay their energy bill.

¢. The Balanced Payment Plan (BPP) is designed to eliminate big swings in a customer's monthly
payments by averaging energy costs over the year.

d. The Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) provides eligible low- income persons,
via local governmental and nonprofits, financial assistance to offset energy costs and weatherize
homes to improve efficiency.

Beyond the savings involved with making intelligent efficiency investments there are a variety of funds
available to the community that can help absorb some of the initial cost. PG&E Rebates are available at:
http://www.pge.com/myhome/saveenergymoney/rebates/index.shtml.

2. AMBAG EnergyWatch

The City of San Juan Bautista is a member of the Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments
(AMBAG). AMBAG operates a PG&E funded EnergyWatch Program that provides energy saving assistance
to local governments, non-profits, schools and low to moderate income households.
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Chapter

Housing Plan S

Sections 2, 3, and 4 of the Housing Element establish the housing needs, constraints, and
resources in San Juan Bautista. This section of the Housing Plan sets forth the City’s goals, policies,
programs, and quantified objectives to address the identified housing needs for the 2019-2023

1 d
planning period, and reviews progress made during the prior planning perlod.

A. Housing Goals

The goals and policies contained in the Housing Element address San Juan Bautista’s housing
needs and are implemented through the programs, policies, and staff of the City. In drafting these
goals and policies, Section 65583 of the Government Code requires the housing element to
address 5 major areas:

¢ Housing and Neighborhood Conservation
e Provision of Housing Assistance

e Housing Production

e Removal of Governmental Constraints

e Equal Housing Opportunity

1. Housing and Neighborhood Conservation

Conserving and improving the housing stock is an important goal. Approximately 64 percent of the
occupied housing units in San Juan Bautista are 50 years old or older, an age when most homes
begin to have major rehabilitation needs. The City supports neighborhood preservation and
upgrading through provisions of the building code and code enforcement.

2. Housing Assistance

San Juan Bautista is a small community of just over 2,000 residents. As such, the number of
persons with special housing needs, including seniors, large families, disabled persons, homeless
persons, single parent families, and students, among others is relatively small. Nevertheless, these
groups may face greater difficulty in finding decent and affordable housing due to special
circumstances. Special circumstances may be related to one’s income, family characteristics,
disability, or health issues. The City remains committed to addressing the special needs of San
Juan Bautista residents.

3. Housing Production

Housing diversity is important to ensure that all households, regardless of age, income level, and
household type, have the opportunity to find housing suited to their lifestyle. Part of this diversity
is addressed through the regional housing needs assessment process, which encourages the
provision of housing for all economic segments in the community. However, housing diversity is
also addressed by supporting alternative housing options for residents with special housing needs.

The City has an Inclusionary Housing ordinance to promote the development of housing for lower income
households in San Juan Bautista.

— - —  —
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4., Removal of Government Constraints

Under State law, the Housing Element must address, and where legally possible, remove
governmental constraints affecting the maintenance, improvement, and development of housing.
The City’s programs are designed to mitigate government constraints on housing and facilitate
development of housing affordable to lower-and moderate-income households, including families,
seniors, and persons with special needs.

5. Fair and Equal Housing Opportunity

Ensuring fair and equal housing opportunity is an important goal. Whether through mediating
disputes, investigating bona fide complaints of discrimination, or through the provision of
education services, the provision of fair housing services is important to ensuring fair and equal
access to housing. San Juan Bautista supports the provision of fair housing opportunity through its
housing element policies.

The following are the 5 overarching goals of the City for the 2019-2023 housing planning period:

GOAL 1.0 SAFE AFFORDABLE HOUSING MEETING THE NEEDS OF ALL RESIDENTS

GOAL 2.0 HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES FOR ALL ECONOMIC SEGMENTS AND SPECIAL
NEEDS GROUPS

GOAL 3.0 AVAILABLE HOUSING FOR ALL INCOME GROUPS

GOAL4.0 REASONABLE GOVERNMENTAL CONSTRAINTS ON THE DEVELOPMENT
OF HOUSING

GOAL 5.0 FAIR AND EQUAL HOUSING OPPORTUNITY FOR ALL PERSONS

B. Policies and Programs

The housing programs described under this section contain existing programs as well as future
programs needed to address identified housing needs. It is important to note that the current
State budget crisis, withholding of housing funds, and unfunded mandates may restrict the ability
of the City to implement these programs.

GOAL1.0: SAFE AFFORDABLE HOUSING MEETING THE NEEDS OF ALL RESIDENTS

Policy 1.1 Encourage homeowners and landlords to maintain properties in sound
condition through the City’s residential rehabilitation assistance programs and
code enforcement efforts.

Policy 1.2 Encourage citizen involvement to preserve, maintain, and revitalize the City's
housing stock and neighborhoods including historical and architecturally
significant buildings and neighborhoods.

Policy 1.3 Support housing builders in the acquisition, rehabilitation, and maintenance of
older residential properties, and development of new projects, as long-term
affordable housing.
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Policy 1.4 Preserve the existing stock of affordable housing, including mobile homes,
through City regulations and financial and other forms of assistance.

Policy 1.5 Invest in public infrastructure and provide appropriate public services and
facilities as financially practicable.

1.1. Code Enforcement Program

Code enforcement is a means to ensure that the character and quality of neighborhoods is
enhanced and maintained, and safety hazards resolved. Code enforcement efforts in San Juan
Bautista focus on bringing substandard units into compliance with City building, housing, and
property maintenance codes.

Program Objective:
The City will continue to carry out code enforcement activities, including performing property
inspections and citing code violations, when necessary.

ONGOING
General Fund Building Official and City Manager

1.2. Housing Rehabilitation Program

Housing rehabilitation is critical to improve neighborhoods. The City does not currently have
financial resources to develop a housing rehabilitation program. The City may choose to seek
CDBG funds which could be used, in part, to assist lower income households in weatherization and
other rehabilitation. The City also anticipates partnerships with non-profits in the area that may
provide these types of services and opportunities for City residents.

Program Objective:

The City anticipates, upon certification, seeking CDBG funds. As part of that process, the City will
determine the amount requested and the percentage that might go to housing rehabilitation
and authorizations. Additionally, the City will annually contact area non-profits that provide
assistance to low and moderate income households continue to seek out partnerships. The City
will advertise the availability of any funding/programs through brochures at City Hall, and
posting on the City’s website.

Quantified Object 2 units per year
Annually
CDBG Building Official and City Manager

1.3. Lead and Asbestos Abatement Education Program

As an older and established community, San Juan Bautista has a significant stock of older homes,
many of which are historically significant, located in and around the downtown as well as recently
annexed areas. Some of these units are in poor condition and are predominantly occupied by
lower-income households. Because of their age, many of these units are likely to contain lead-
based paint and/or asbestos hazards.
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Program Objective:

The City will offer brochures on lead and asbestos containment and abatement. The City will
also, in conjunction with the air quality district, implement applicable State and/or federally
mandated containment and abatement procedures for remodels and demolitions. Information
will be made available at City Hall and posting on the City’s website.

ONGOING
General Fund Building Official and City Manager

1.4. Preservation of Affordable Housing Program

San Juan Bautista has a limited stock of affordable housing units receiving public subsidies or
regulated by the City’s Inclusionary Housing Ordinance. The Inclusionary Housing Ordinance units
have a 55-year affordability restriction, and all are new units. None of the Community Choice
vouchers have been identified to be at risk during this cycle. If ane or more affordable housing
units are lost, the City will actively work to replace the lost affordable housing.

Program Objective:

The City will continue to monitor affordable housing units through establishment of a database.
The City will work with San Benito County to ensure Housing Choice Voucher Program vouchers
remain available to San Juan Bautista residents.

ONGOING
General Fund and Housing In-lieu fees City Planner and City Manager

GOAL 2.0 HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES FOR ALL ECONOMIC SEGMENTS AND SPECIAL NEEDS
GROUPS.

Policy 2.1 Encourage the provision of jobs and housing by annexing areas for new
employment opportunities and promoting the City’s programs with current and
future business owners.

Policy 2.2 Continue to support the provision of rental assistance to lower-income
households, and encourage property owners to list units with the Housing
Authority of the County of Santa Cruz.

Policy 2.4 Continue to enforce notification requirements for lower income persons
displaced due to demolition, reuse, or rehabilitation as a result of code
enforcement.

Policy 2.5 Support efforts by non-profits to evaluate the needs for transitional and

emergency housing in San Juan Bautista, including support of grant applications
and assistance in identification of suitable sites.

Policy 2.6 Encourage and support, as feasible, non-profit and for-profit agencies who
provide supportive services and alternative housing options for persons with
special housing needs in San Juan Bautista and San Benito County.

Policy 2.7 Support the provision of child care facilities throughout the community.

_----—— -
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Policy 2.8 Allow emergency shelters in at least one zone by right, allowing residential uses
in order to provide housing for families or individuals on a limited, short-term
basis.

Policy 2.9 Recognize transitional housing as a residential use and allow this use in all zones

that allow residential uses.

Policy 2.10 Support the development of housing for special needs populations by
continuing to allow residential care facilities, manufactured housing, and
transition/supportive housing in all zones where single family development is
allowed.

2.1. Housing Choice Voucher Program

The County of Santa Cruz Housing Authority administers the Housing Choice Voucher Program on
behalf of San Benito County (San Juan Bautista). The Housing Choice Voucher Program extends
rental subsidies to very low-income households, including families, seniors, the disabled, and
farmworkers. The Housing Choice Voucher Program offers a voucher that pays the difference
between the current fair market rent (FMR) and what a tenant can afford to pay (i.e. 30 percent of
household income). The voucher allows a tenant to choose housing that costs above the payment
standard, provided that the tenant pays the extra cost. According to the Housing Authority of the
County of Santa Cruz, a total of 15 households in San Juan Bautista as of 2018 receive vouchers.
Housing Choice Voucher Program may now be used to assist certificate holders to purchase a
home as well.

Program Objective:

The City will continue to support San Benito County’s efforts to provide rental vouchers to needy
residents. The City will continue to encourage San Benito County, the Housing Authority or other
agencies to list available rentals for the San Juan Bautista area.

ONGOING
Federal City Manager in liaison with County

2.2. Child Care Facilities Program

Most San Juan Bautista residents commute to work outside the City. As such, there is and likely
will continue to be, a need for child care facilities.

Program Objective:

The City will continue to allow child care facilities in residential districts, and facilitate the
development child care component with larger developments. The City will also evaluate Title 11
to ensure that it meets applicable State laws relative to child care facilities.

ONGOING
General Fund City Planner and City Manager

2.3. Grants Program

Over the years, California voters and legislators have authorize the issuance of bonds to support
new and continued affordable or special needs housing programs, emergency shelters,
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neighborhood and downtown revitalization efforts, supportive services, mobility improvements,
and a variety of other programs that help meet the housing needs of communities across the
State. The Federal Housing and Urban Development Department offers a large number of grants,
including Community Development Block Grants, Continuum of Care, and Choice Neighborhood
Grants.

Program Objective:

The City will investigate funds available under a variety of programs, and where staffing and
other limitations allow, pursue those funds bi- annually until the funds expire with a designated
nonprofit partner in order to meet the housing needs of San Juan Bautista residents.

ONGOING
General Fund/Grants City Planner and City Manager

GOAL 3.0 AVAILABLE HOUSING FOR ALL INCOME GROUPS.

Policy 3.1 Encourage the production of housing that meets the needs of all economic
segments, including lower-, moderate-, and above moderate-income
households, to achieve a balanced community.

Policy 3.2 Provide high quality rental and ownership housing opportunities for current and
future residents that are affordable to a diverse range of income levels.

Policy 3.3 Encourage a variety of housing types to address the needs of farmworkers,
including affordable rentals, mobile homes, single room occupancy hotels,
manufactured and factory-built housing, and group housing.

Policy 3.4 Continue to implement the Inclusionary Housing Ordinance, Density Bonus
Ordinance, and other programs as a means of integrating affordable units
within new residential development.

Policy 3.5 Pursue State, Federal, and other funding sources for housing activities as a
means to leverage local funds and maximize assistance.

Policy 3.6 Encourage and support the efforts of non-profit organizations that develop
housing affordable to very low- low-, and moderate-income households.

Policy 3.7 Examine the feasibility of developing quality live/work housing, as appropriate,
as a means to provide affordable housing.

Policy 3.8 Ensure that adequate infrastructure, public facilities, water and services are
available or in place to support the development of new housing.

3.1. Adequate Sites Program

A key component of the Housing Element is maintaining adequate sites to accommodate the City’s
RHNA share. The City currently has identified sufficient sites to meets its RHNA. Nonetheless, in
anticipation of a higher affordable housing allocation in the next housing element cycle, the City is
working prepare a specific plan for a new growth area.
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Program Objective:
The City will pursue an SB 2 Planning Grant to fund the development of a specific plan for an
area located south of State Route 156.

2020
General Fund City Planner and City Manager

Program Objective:
The City will prepare a specific plan for an area located south of State Route 156 to accelerate
the development of housing in the City.

2020
SB 2 Grant City Planner and City Manager

Program Objective:
The City will initiate annexation of the area for which a specific plan was prepared with SB 2
grant funds.

2022
General Fund City Planner and City Manager

3.2. Inclusionary Housing Ordinance Program

Under the Inclusionary Housing Ordinance (Chapter 11-09), developers are required to set aside a
certain portion of units in projects of six or more units for targeted income level groups. The term
of affordability is a minimum of 55 years. Developers who exceed the minimum number of
affordable units may be eligible for density bonuses per State law. The Inclusionary Housing
Ordinance also allows for an in-lieu fee, but this fee is insufficient to fund affordable housing that
is not built under the Inclusionary Housing Ordinance.

Program Objective:

The City will review and revise its Inclusionary Housing Ordinance to ensure that the private
sector assists in meeting the housing needs of all income groups in San Juan Bautista through
direct construction of affordable units. Part of this revision will include an assessment of raising
the in-lieu fees.

ONGOING
General Fund City Planner and Finance Manager

Program Objective:

The City will identify suitable affordable housing projects and fund direct financial assistance,
land write-downs, regulatory incentives, and other forms of assistance from its accumulated
Inclusionary Housing Program account. It will also pursue SB 2 Grant Funds that after the initial
year will be devoted to activities that directly reduce the cost of affordable housing.

ONGOING
General Fund City Planner and Finance Manager

3.3. Non-Profit Housing Partnership Program

Non-profit housing developers play an important role in providing affordable housing in the State.
The City has the authority to grant direct financial assistance, land write-downs, regulatory
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incentives, and other forms of assistance to a number of developers to provide both ownership
and rental housing to extremely low income, lower- and moderate-income households.

Program Objective:

The City will continue to form relationships with non-profit organizations and look at
opportunities in forming partnerships. As funds are available, the City will grant financial
assistance, land write-downs, regulatory incentives, and/or other forms of assistance to non-
profit developers of affordable and special needs housing.

ONGOING
General Fund/Grants City Planner and City Manager

3.4. Mixed-Use Development Program

San Juan Bautista has zoned a large portion of the downtown area as Mixed Use. These areas have
been historically commercial with some residential uses. Adding additional residential
development in these areas will create more activity within the downtown, provide a variety of
housing types near work and shopping, and enhance public safety. Inclusion of residential uses in
the mixed-use area is encouraged through the use of incentives such as reduced parking
requirements and shared parking (between commercial and residential uses). The City has several
incentives for the provision of special needs and affordable housing in the Mixed Use District,
including a density bonus of up to 50 percent (for a maximum density of 22.5 units per acre for
100 percent affordable housing projects).

Program Objective:

The City will continue to promote residential uses in the Mixed Use District. Whenever feasible,
the City will encourage the highest allowable residential densities in MU zone through the
Density Bonus and Planned Unit Development.

ONGOING
General Fund City Planner and City Manager

3.5. Single Room Occupancy

To ensure zoning flexibility that allows for the development of single-room occupancy units
(SROs), the City will update its zoning ordinance to allow SROs by conditional use permit in the

Mixed Use zones near services and the Abbe Park transit station. In addition, to help meet the
needs of extremely low-income households, the City will prioritize funding and/or offer financial
incentives or regulatory concessions to encourage the development of SROs.

Program Objective:

The City will amend the zoning ordinance to comply with statutory requirements for single-room
occupancy residences.

2020

General Fund City Planner and City Manager

3.6. Small and Nonconforming Lot Consolidation

The City will provide technical assistance to property owners and developers in support of lot
consolidation through a variety of actions. Such actions include identifying and publicizing
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opportunities for potential consolidation. In addition, these opportunities will be flexibly paired
with Planned Unit Development (PUD) and density bonus options to allow the greatest amount of
flexibility possible. This could include permit streamlining, reduction in setbacks, parking
requirements or fees for parking district impacts and other impact fees. The ultimate goal of this
policy is to encourage and incentivize more intense residential development in areas that are
historically underutilized and nonconforming when 2 adjacent lots are vacant or underutilized.

Program Objective:

The City will facilitate cansalidatian af smaller parcels in the Mixed Use District and other
residential districts by publicizing the underutilized sites inventory on the City’s website and
making it available at the planning counter, providing technical assistance to property owners
and developers in support of lot consolidation. The Council will also evaluate the deferral or
lowering of development fees as appropriate.

Annually
General Fund City Planner and City Manager

3.7. Supportive Housing by Right

The City will streamline and expedite the approval of supportive housing to better address the
need of its residents experiencing homelessness, as required by AB 2162 adopted in 2018.

Program Objective:

The City will revise its Zoning Ordinance to allow supportive housing by right in zones where
multifamily and mixed uses are permitted, including nonresidential zones permitting multifamily
uses. This revision will also address any other changes to the Zoning Ordinance required by AB
2162.

December 2020
General Fund City Planner and City Manager

3.8. Low Barrier Navigation Centers

The City will accommodate the approval of low barrier navigation centers to better address the
need of its residents experiencing homelessness, as required by Government Code 65660 et seq.

Program Objective:

The City will revise its Zoning Ordinance to allow low barrier navigation centers by right in zones
where multifamily and mixed uses are permitted, including nonresidential zones permitting
multifamily uses. This revision will also address any other changes to the Zoning Ordinance
required by Government Code 65660 et seq.

December 2020
General Fund City Planner and City Manager

GOAL4.0: REASONABLE GOVERNMENTAL CONSTRAINTS ON THE DEVELOPMENT OF
HOUSING.

Policy 4.1 Provide regulatory and/or financial incentives, where appropriate, to offset or
reduce the costs of affordable housing development, including density bonuses
and flexibility in site development standards.
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Policy 4.2 Implement and enforce residential design guidelines to ensure that the
community’s expectations are met with respect to the quality and style of
housing projects.

Policy 4.3 Provide priority processing to affordable housing projects

Policy 4.4 Expressly permit and educate the public about secondary units as a means to
provide additional affordable housing opportunities.

Policy 4.5 Periodically review City regulations, ordinances, departmental processing
procedures and residential fees related to rehabilitations and/or construction to
assess their impact on housing costs, and revise as appropriate.

Policy 4.6 Provide regulatory and financial incentives, as appropriate and financially
practicable, to facilitate the development of supportive housing for families
with children, and other special needs groups

Policy 4.7 Review and update Title 11, Zoning Ordinance, of the San Juan Bautista
Municipal Code, to achieve community-wide objectives.

Policy 4.8 Continue to support the incorporation of energy efficient devices in existing
housing and utilization of energy efficient designs for new housing

Policy 4.9 Revise the land use map within the General Plan and rezone several parcels of
land on the outer boundaries of the City limits to help facilitate low income
housing development consistent with State requirements

4.1. Planned Unit Development District (PUD) Program

A PUD designation allows the regulations of the underlying zoning district to be superseded,
modified, or amended, to create a superior housing development design. The City will continue to
use this tool to allow a PUD to, among other things, permit higher densities through smaller than
standard lots, reduced set-backs, narrower streets, and other deviations from conventional zoning
regulations.

Program Objective:
The City will continue to allow PUDs in order to provide flexibility in developments and facilitate
creative housing options.

ONGOING
General Fund City Planner and City Manager

4.2. Site Plan and Design Review Process Program

The City requires site plan and design review (or Historic Review) for new development and
substantial remodels. Within the designated Historic Districts, the City bases its decisions on the
City’s Historic District Ordinance. The Planning Commission, meeting as a separate body, serves as

“
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the Historic Board. This action has served to streamline processes for the City and applicant alike.
Site Plan and Review approvals outside the Hillside area, are administrative.

Program Objective:

The City will continue to utilize the Site Plan and Design Review processes as a means to reduce
processing times and reduce the potential impact the design review process may have on
housing supply.

ONGOING
General Fund City Plunner and City Manager

4.3. Accessory Dwelling Unit Ordinance Program

Accessory Dwelling Units provide an important housing opportunity for seniors, college students,
and other lower income or special needs groups. Given the limited supply of developable land in
San Juan Bautista, integrating accessory dwelling units in existing residential neighborhoods
presents an opportunity for the City to accommodate needed rental housing. In 2013, the City
Council adopted Chapter 11-02-050 of the Zoning Code, regulating (formerly called) Secondary
Dwelling Units, in compliance with new State law, which required all jurisdictions to permit such
uses by right in residential zones. Since adoption of the Ordinance, a minimal number of accessory
dwelling units have been constructed in the City. The City has not adopted the more recent
assessor dwelling unit provisions from AB-1069 and AB-2299.

Program Objective:

The City will continue to use the Accessory Dwelling Unit Ordinance to provide in-fill residential
housing throughout the City. The City will consider potential additional approaches to encourage
accessory unit development including establishing pre- approved design prototypes to encourage
and stimulate the development of accessory units.

QUANTIFIED OBJECTIVE 2 units per year
SEPTEMBER 2020 (consider additional approaches)
General Fund City Planner and City Manager

4.4. SB 35 Permit Streamlining

SB 35 requires cities and counties to streamline review and approval of eligible affordable housing
projects through a ministerial approval process, exempting such projects from environmental
review under the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”). This process does not allow
public hearings to consider the merits of the project; rather, only design review or public oversight
of the development is allowed, which must be objective and strictly focused on assessing
compliance with criteria required for streamlined projects as well as objective design review of the
project.

Program Objective:
The City will revise its zoning ordinance to provide a streamlined development review process for
affordable housing projects in the city, consistent with the provisions of SB 35.

December 2020
General Fund City Planner and City Manager

ﬁ
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GOALS.0 FAIR AND EQUAL HOUSING OPPORTUNITY FOR ALL PERSONS.

Policy 5.1 Continue to enforce fair housing laws prohibiting arbitrary discrimination in the
building, financing, selling or renting of housing on the basis of race, religion,
family status, national origin, disability, or other such factors.

Policy 5.2 Continue to support organizations that offer fair housing and mediation services
to San Juan Bautista residents.

Policy 5.3 Promote and support, as feasible, housing that meets the special needs of large
families, single-parent/female-headed households, families with children,
students, elderly persons, homeless persons, farm workers, and the disabled.

Policy 5.4 Encourage the provision of housing adaptable to the physically disabled through
integration of universal design features in new development, and compliance
with Title 24 of the California Health and Safety Code.

5.1. Fair Housing Program

The City supports fair housing and refers all alleged cases of discrimination to the State Office of
Fair Employment and Housing and the California Rural Legal Assistance (CRLA). The City supports
equal opportunity lending programs and non-discriminatory practices.

Program Objective:

The City will continue to support the State Office of Fair Employment and Housing, California
Rural Legal Assistance, and equal opportunity lending programs. The City will support efforts by
the Housing Authority or other agency to list units accessible to disabled persons. The City will
also make available at City Hall copies of the Consumer Affairs “Tenant Rights and
Responsibilities” booklet, and Fannie-Mae’s “Your Credit Rights.”

ONGOING
General Fund City Planner and City Manager

5.2. Advertise Reasonable Accommodations

In 2019, the City revised its Municipal Code to provide a procedure wherein reasonable
accommodations in the application of building and planning regulations are provided to persons
with disabilities. To ensure that residents are aware of these new provisions, the City intends to
advertise the new provisions.

Program Objective:
The City will publish, post, and distribute informational flyers advertising and explaining new
pravisions in the San Juan Bautista Municipal Code related to reasonable accommodations.

January 2020
General Fund City Planner and City Manager

_-_————,_e————
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C. 5th Cycle (Part 2) Quantified Objectives

Table 5-1 summarizes San Juan Bautista’s Quantified Objectives for the 5th Housing Element Cycle.

Table 5-1 Quantified Objectives

Income Level New Construction Rehabilitation Pcr ::::vr;;g:'; 1’ )
Extrgingly Low 2 1 n/a
Very Low 7 1 n/a
Low 7 0 n/a
Moderate 20 0 n/a
Above Moderate 94 0 n/a
Total 130 2 n/a

Note: (1) The City has no units at risk of conversion in the current Housing Element period

D. General Plan Consistency

According to Government Code Section 65300.5, the California Legislature intends that the General Plan
and its elements comprise an integrated, internally consistent and compatible statement of policies for
the local jurisdiction. Accordingly, it is necessary during the course of the Housing Element update to
evaluate any impact new policies, objectives, or programs may have on other elements of the General
Plan.

At this time, the Housing Element does not necessitate or propose significant changes to any other
element of San Juan Bautista’s General Plan. However, if it becomes apparent that changes to any
element are needed, the Planning Commission and City Council will propose such changes for
consideration. The City will also review the Housing Element for internal consistency when any
amendments are made to safety, conservation, and land use elements, based on the requirements of
Government Code Section 65302.

D-E, Review of 5th Cycle Programs (1" 4-Year Update)

To address community conditions and housing needs identified in the adopted 2015-2019 Housing
Element, the City took action to facilitate the development of housing. The actions sought to
accommodate the City's regional housing needs allocation, assist in the production and
rehabilitation of a wide range of housing and shelter, and establish supportive services for all
income levels and special interest groups. The goals and programs have been evaluated in light of
what the City has done or what other agencies or groups have completed during 2015-2019.

Overall, the goals, policies, and programs in the 2015-2019 Housing Element assisted in providing
housing opportunities for all income categories, as well as meeting a diversity of housing needs.
According to California Department of Finance data, a total of 53 new housing units were built
within the City of San Juan Bautista between the years 2015-2019. Table 5-2 reviews progress
made on implementation of housing programs from the previous Housing Element.

ﬁ
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Table 5-2 Review of Adopted Programs from 4th Cycle Housing Element

Program Review for 2015-2019 planning period
Code The City has continued to carry out code enforcement activities.
Enforcement
Housing The City did not implement this program during this planning period.
Rehabilitation
Lead and The City has continued to carry out these activities in conjunction with the
Asbestos air quality district.
Containment and
Abatement
Education
Preservation of The City did not have any deed-restricted or other program-driven
Affordable affordable housing units to conserve during this planning period.
Housing

Section 8 Rental
Assistance

The City has continued to support San Benito County's efforts to provide
rental vouchers to needy residents during this planning period.

Child Care

The City did not implement this program with regard to facilitating the
development of child care components with larger developments during
this planning period.

Application for
Grants and Loans

The City applied for SB 2 Planning Grant funds to support the preparation
of a specific plan for an area south of State Route 156 that is within the
City General Plan planning area and Sphere of Influence, but outside of
the current city limits.

Adequate Sites
Program

The City added special development conditions to APN 002-350-002 to
High Density/R-3 and thereby completed its efforts to ensure that
sufficient sites are available to meet San Juan Bautista's RHNA. The City
also adopted special development standards for this site in compliance
with Government Code §65583.2(h). This program has been modified to
focus on preparation of a specific plan for a development area south of
State Route 156.

Inclusionary
Housing
Ordinance

In fall 2019, the City adopted a local density bonus ordinance consistent
with current state law governing density bonus. This program has been re-
written for the 2019-2023 period to acknowledge the revised code, plus
devote time to re-tooling the Inclusionary Housing Ordinance to make it
more effective. This includes evaluating the in-lieu fee structure to ensure
that such fees actually cover the costs of providing affordable housing.

Partnership with

The City has continued to form relationships with non-profit housing

Non-Profit agencies during this planning period.

Housing

Agencies

Mixed-Use The City has continued to promote mixed-use development in Downtown

Development

San Juan Bautista. The City is currently (fall 2019) working with a private
property owner to develop new mixed housing and commercial use in
Downtown.

Transitional In fall 2019, the City adopted an ordinance correcting deficiencies in the
Housing, San Juan Bautista's Municipal Code addressing transitional and
Supportive supportive housing and emergency shelters in its zoning regulations. This
Housing and program has been deleted in this 2019-2023 update.

Emergency

Shelters

Small and The City did not implement this program during this planning period.

Nonconforming

m
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Program

Review for 2015-2019 planning period

Lot Consolidation

Density Bonuses

In fall 2019, the City adopted a local density bonus ordinance consistent
with current state law governing density bonus. This program has been
deleted in this 2019-2023 update.

Planned Unit The City has continued to allow Planned Unit Development designations
Development in order to provide flexibility in developments and facilitate creative

District (PUD) housing options.

Site Plan and The City has continued to utilize the Site Plan and Design Review process
Design Review during this planning period.

Process

Accessory In fall 2019, the City began work on a local accessory dwelling unit
Dwelling Unit ordinance. Planning Commission considered the revised code at its
Ordinance September 3 and October 1, 2019 meetings. This effort was put on hold

pending new legislation that may come into effect in January 2020.

Zoning Ordinance
Update

In fall 2019, the City adopted an ordinance making various changes to the
San Juan Bautista Municipal Code. The work addressed transitional and
supportive housing, emergency shelters, and special development
standards for affordable housing sites, consistent with Government Code
§65583.2(h). This program has been deleted in this 2019-2023 update.

Fair Housing The City has continued to support the State Office of Fair Employment

Program and Housing, California Rural Legal Assistance, and equal opportunity
lending programs.

Housing for Completed. See report on Zoning Ordinance Update above. This program

Disabled Persons

has been deleted in this 2019-2023 update.

Reasonable
Accommodations

In fall 2019, the City adopted an ordinance addressing transitional and
supportive housing. This program has been deleted in this 2019-2023
update.

Special Needs
Housing

Completed. See report on Zoning Ordinance Update above. This program
has been deleted in this 2019-2023 update.

Water Service
Priority

In fall 2019, the City adopted an ordinance addressing water and sewer
service priority for affordable housing projects. This program has been
deleted in this 2019-2023 update.

Farmworker
Housing

The City did not implement this program during this planning period.

SOURCE: EMC Planning Group 2019

Housing production during the planning period is compared to the 2015-2019 RHNA in Table 5-3
below:

T ———————————— e ———————
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Table 5-3: Comparison of Housing Needs to Production 2015-2019

Income Category

City’s Share of Regional Housing Needs

Number of Units Constructed
Very Low 1044 0
Low 68 20
Moderate 810 10
Above Moderate 1720 533
Total 4149 653

Saurce: City of San Juan Bautista 2019

%
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N CITY COUNCIL REPORT

AGENDA TITLE: RESCIND ORDINANCES PROHIBITING MARAJUANA

ACTIVITIES
DATE: DECEMBER 17, 2019
FROM: DON REYNOLDS, CITY MANAGER
RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that the City Council approve for first reading the attached Ordinance that
rescinds Ordinance Number 2011-01 and Section 5-14.5, prohibiting certain activities related to
medical marijuana, and Ordinance 2017-6 and Section 5-14.6 prohibiting certain marijuana
activities (also referred to as “cannabis™).

BACKGROUND:

Between 2011 and 2017, the City reacted to changes in State laws as they relaxed the use and
activities related to cannabis, by prohibiting these activities from 2011-2017. At the time, some
cities acted quickly and enacted a moratorium, but San Juan Bautista enacted a more permanent
prohibition as codified in Sections 5-14.5 and 5-14.6 of the Municipal Code.

In June 2018, the City adopted Ordinance 2018-05 after studying the positive and negative
impacts of cannabis businesses in the community. This ordinance was codified as Section 5-31
and approved by ballot measure November 6, 2018. The cannabis policy is relatively
conservative and based upon the Hollister program. All cannabis activities are restricted to the
properties zoned for industrial use. Adding this section to the Municipal Code did not change the
two sections prohibiting cannabis activities in the City, so the City’s code has a conflict that
needs to be fixed.

DISCUSSION:

During the past year, the City has taken several steps to establish a cannabis program consistent
with the strict provisions within Code Section 5.31. In June the Industrial Zoning Code was
amended, and in November, the City Council adopted the “Rules and Regulations.” The next
step is to adopt a resolution establishing a tax rate, and this will come forward in January. The
only detail left is to illuminate the conflict in the City’s code and rescind the older Ordinances
that prohibited cannabis activities. That is the intention of the attached Ordinance.
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ORDINANCE NO. 20XX- XX

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA
RESCINDING THE PROHIBITION OF MARIJUANA DISPENSARIES, SALES,
PRIVATE OUTDOOR CULTIVATION, AND DELIVERIES
(REMOVING SECTIONS 5-14.5 AND 5-14.6 FROM THE MUNICPAL CODE)

WHEREAS, on February 15, 2011, the City Council adopted Ordinance 2011-01,
establishing within Title 5, Chapter 14, Section 5-14.5 Articles 1- 4, of the Municipal Code, and
prohibited medical marijuana dispensaries in the City; and

WHEREAS, on November 21, 2017, the City Council adopted Ordinance 2017-6,
establishing within Title 5, Chapter 14, Section 5-14.6 Articles 1- 4, of the Municipal Code, and
prohibited marijuana (included in the definition of “cannabis” as referenced below), dispensaries
(Article 2), the cultivation of marijuana (Article 3) and marijuana deliveries (Article 4); and

WHEREAS, on November 6, 2018, voters in San Juan Bautista approved a ballot
measure implementing reasonable regulations permitting commercial medicinal and recreational
cannabis activities in the City, as specifically defined in Ordinance 2018-05, enacting within
Title 5, Chapter 31 of the Municipal Code Section 5-31, Articles 1-30; and

WHEREAS, over the past year the City has amended its zoning code, adopted a tax
structure for various Cannabis activities, and adopted reasonable rules and regulations, and has
taken other actions to implement a cannabis program; and

WHEREAS, one of the final steps toward the implementation of these reasonable
cannabis regulations, is removing the conflicting language that now exists in the City’s code by
rescinding a portion all of Sections 5-14. 5 and 5-14.6, that prohibit various cannabis activities in
the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN JUAN
BAUTISTA HEREBY ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Rescinds Ordinance number 2011-01, pertaining to Municipal Code Section 5-
14.5, and Ordinance 2017-06 Section 5-14.6, pertaining to the prohibition of certain specific

cannabis activities and conflict with City Ordinance 2018-05 Section 5-31, approved by voters
November 6, 2018.

SECTION 2. If any section, subdivision, sentence, clause, portion, or phrase of this Ordinance is
for any reason held illegal, invalid, or unconstitutional by the decision of any court of competent
jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions hereof. The City
Council hereby declares that it would have passed this chapter and each section, subdivision,



sentence, clause, portion, or phrase hereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections,
subdivisions, sentences, clauses, or phrases be declared illegal, invalid or unconstitutional.

SECTION 3. The City Council hereby finds that this Ordinance is not subject to review under
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) because the City Council has already adopted
an Ordinance permitting Cannabis Activities and a Cannabis Business Activities Tax, which has
received environmental review and addressed any physical change to the environment which
may be caused by increased cross-City travel, additional user cultivation, and other urban
development impacts associated with new dispensaries. This action is the last step of a long
process, where upon a previously enacted ordinance to ban all activities associated with
Cannabis is lifted. The lifting of a ban, alone, will not cause either a direct physical change in
the environment, or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment and
therefore it is not a “project” pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15378, subdivision (b)(4)
and is exempt. The action is statutorily exempt from CEQA as a commercial cannabis regulation
pursuant to Business and Professions Code Sec. 26055.

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE. This ordinance shall go into effect thirty days after the date
of its signing.

THE FOREGOING ORDINANCE was introduced at a regular meeting of the city council of
the city of San Juan Bautista duly held on December 17, 2019, and was passed and adopted at a
regular meeting duly held on , 2020 by the following vote.

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Mayor Cesar Flores

ATTEST:

City Clerk Laura Cent
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RESOLUTION 2019-XX

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN JUAN
BAUTISTA ACCEPTING THE SAN JUAN BAUTISTA MUNICIPAL
AUDIT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019

WHEREAS, the City of San Juan Bautista is required under the laws of the State
of California to have their financial statements audited annually, and

WHEREAS, an audit of the City’s financial statements was conducted by
Independent Auditor Bryant L. Jolley, CPA, and

WHEREAS, the City Council held a meeting on December 17, 2019 where, in
accordance with all State and Municipal Code requirements, they reviewed the

audit.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of
San Juan Bautista accepts the FY 2018-2019 San Juan Bautista Municipal Audit.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of San Juan Bautista
at a regular meeting held on the 17 day of December 2019, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Mayor

ATTEST:

Laura Cent, City Clerk
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CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA
CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT

AGENDA TITLE: MEMBERSHIP AND BY-LAWS REVISION FOR THE
STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE: DECEMBER 17, 2019

SUBMITTED BY: DON REYNOLDS, CITY MANAGER

STAFF RECOMMENDS:

Discuss and clarify the intentions of the City Council and the role of the Strategic Planning
Committee, appoint an Ad-Hoc Committee to review and recommend amendments to the by-
laws in regards to membership, and consider possible candidates to become new members once
the by-laws are revised.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

On January 15, 2013, the City Council adopted Resolution 2013-03, (attachment 1) creating a
Strategic Planning Committee (“SPC”) and appointing members thereto. The mission described
in this Resolution

“shall be to identify, consider, analyze, and prepare appropriate recommendations and
documentation regarding issues critical to the advancement of the City of San Juan Bautista,
issues not otherwise covered by other studies and documents such as the required and optional
subjects in the City’s state mandated General Plan.”

The Resolution appoints 23 members to the SPC. At their May 14, 2013, the SPC adopted the by-
laws provided in Attachment 2. During 2014, the SPC worked hard to convene more than 13-
different stakeholder groups to form a comprehensive plan for preservation, growth and resilient
future for San Juan Bautista. Section 18 of the 2015 General Plan update is referred to as the
“Strategic Plan.” It formalizes and defines the role of the SPC. It spans 12-different sections of
the General Plan.

The Committee is divided into sub-committees. The sub-committees receive input from the
community, research ideas and help the City Council put those plans into action.

The sub-committees are:
1. Government & Communications
2. Arts, Culture, Recreation, & Wellness

3. Agriculture, Environment, & Land Use
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4. Business, Development, & Tourism
5.Historic Preservation & Community Design

The Strategic Planning Committee has had several successes including formation of a Youth
Commission, development of volunteer clean-up events, Council adoption of an Emergency
Organization and Functions Ordinance, the drafting the City Parks Master Plan, Community Art
efforts and events, support in the creation of a Historic Walking Trail, and overall implementation
of the City General Plan. It is desired to continue and increase these efforts. The Strategic
Planning Committee has a great deal to offer the community. As membership is increased, input
is diversified and energy and excitement can be increased. With an increased membership, a
revised work plan can be initiated to the committee.

DISCUSSION

This report is being drafted per an agenda item reviewed at the Strategic Planning Committee
Meeting held on December 5, 2019. The SPC agenda item was under “Future Agenda Items” to
ask City Council for an official recruitment effort for the committee and to confirm current
membership. The reason for this item coming before the Council is because membership has been
shrinking. Current Committee Members are concerned and are seeking Council assistance to
increase the membership. But first, staff recommends appointing an Ad-Hoc Committee to
recommend changes to the by-laws that clarify the role and term limit of the membership.

The Strategic Plan’s program descriptions are intense in nature and numerous. The descriptions
vary greatly from capital improvements, concisely defined guides or “plans,” and general
operations. Action words like “encourage” “promote,” “maintain adequate facilities” are routine
and some are State mandated City functions. For example, program PS6.1.1.1: “Develop a City-
wide Emergency Response Plan.” This is State required, and a very sophisticated document that
also requires testing, table top exercises, multi-jurisdictional coordination, formal training, annual
updates and continuous management. A volunteer committee is a vital part of this Plan, but would
be hard pressed to fulfill this role.

With an understanding of the tasks described in the Strategic Plans, the by-laws leave a few
important matters undefined or vaguely described. Once the Strategic Plan is written, the “Powers
and Duties” become “advise and assist the City Council in its implementation.” Interpreting this
definition can vary greatly depending on the task at hand.

The “Term” of membership expires “once the functions of the committee have been completed.”
Several current members have been serving the Committee since its establishment (more than 6-
years). Does “advising and implementing” ever end? It is suggested that a term of four years
matching the City Council’s be considered.

The number of SPC members is not defined: “Membership shall be representative of the whole
community.” These are otherwise known as stakeholders. Each category in the matrix may include
different stakeholders, hence the SPC is comprised of various subcommittees. Originally there
were 23 SPC members and now there are 9. The membership needs to be quantified in order to
define a quorum. It is recommended that it be inclusive and that it be an odd-number, but not so
large that a quorum is difficult to field.
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Officers are described in the by-laws as Chairperson and Vice Chairperson. There is currently a
Chair, Vice Chair and Secretary. The Secretary position is filled by City staff. New officers are to
be appointed each May, but no changes were made in May 2019. It is not clear if a meeting can
occur without either the Chair or Vice Chair present. The September meeting occurred without
either being present.

It is recommended that the Ad-Hoc Committee consist of 5S-members, meet several times before
the budget deliberations begin in the spring of 2020; 2 City Council representatives, 2 SPC
representatives and the City Manager. A project list will be generated form the General Plan that
refines the list of work to be completed and estimates when that work might be completed. It will
define what inclusive representation looks like, and the term of the members.

In the mean-time, there are currently 9-members and their continued service to the SPC needs to
confirmed. The Council can provide guidance regarding continuing with the existing officers, or
suggesting a new chair and vice chair.

In summary, staff and the SPC are asking the City Council to;

1 Appoint an Ad-Hoc Committee to review the by-laws,
2 Confirm that existing members wish to continue their service to the SPC, and
3 Determine if the existing officers should continue to serve in this capacity until the by-
laws are amended, or elect new officers.
ATTACHMENTS:

1. Resolution 2013-03
2. Strategic Planning Committee Bylaws






RESOLUTION NO. 2013-03

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA CREATING A
STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE AND
APPOINTING MEMBERS THERETO

-00o-

WHEREAS, this Council desires to create a committee to address City’s
strategic planning issues, more specifically issues not otherwise covered by other
studies and documents, including without limitation the General Plan of the City
of San Juan Bautista; and

WHEREAS, Council Member Edge has brought to this Council a list of
people willing and able to become members of such a committee;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN JUAN
BAUTISTA HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. There is hereby created the City of San Juan Bautista Strategic
Planning Committee, which mission shall be to identify, consider, analyze, and
prepare appropriate recommendations and documentation regarding issues
critical to the advancement of the City of San Juan Bautista, issues not otherwise
covered by other studies and documents such as the required and optional
subjects in City’s state-mandated General Plan.

SECTION 2. The following are hereby appointed as the initial membership
of the Committee:

Rachel Ponce
Larry Cain

John Ferriera
Wanda Guibert
Nancy Martin
Phil Esparza
Anthony Botelho



Georgana Gularte
Chris Martorana
Mike Hicks
Father Jim Henry
Bob Reid

Teresa Lavagnino
Dan DeVries
Maggie Bilich
Jennifer Colby
Valerie Egland
John Freeman
Dave Medeiros
Donna Holmes
Rick Edge
Shawna Freels
Eddie Guaracha

SECTION 3. Additions to and other changes in membership may be
accomplished by action of the Council without need of a resolution.

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular
meeting of the San Juan Bautista City Council duly called and held on the 15" day
of January, 2013, by the following vote:

AYES: Boch, Moore, Edge, Cosio, Lund
NOES: None

ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None ‘J\
L J»_./l &C =< 4 - i

Tony Boch \Ma or

ATTEST;

VYARE

Trish Paetz, Deputyféitv Clerk




CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA
STRATEGIC PLAN COMMITTEE
BYLAWS

SECTION I, Powers and Duties.

The Strategic Plan Committce and the respective members thereof shall perform the following duties:

1. Develop a Strategic Plan for the City of San Juan Bautista and advise and assist the City Council
in its implementation.

SECTION 2. Membership.

1. Membership on the Strategic Plan Commiitee shall be representative of the entire community
insofar as that is possible in order to provide a broad and all-inclusive vision of the community.

2. Members of the Strategic Plan Committee shall be appointed by the City Council of the City of
San Juan Bautista.

3. Terms of appointments to the Committee shall commence in February, 2013 and expire once the
functions of the committee have been completed.

SECTION 3. Officers.

1. Annually in the Month of May of each year, the Committee shall appoint from its membership a
Chairperson and Vice Chairperson to serve for a one-year term.

2. The Chairperson shall preside at all regular meetings of the Committee and may delegate duties
to the members as necessary.

3. The Vice Chairperson shall serve in the capacity of the Chairperson in his or her absence, and
shall assist the Chairperson in fulfilling his or her duties as requested.

SECTION 4. Meetings.
1. The Strategic Plan Committee shall hold regular meetings at least once quarterly.
2. Each regular Strategic Plan Committee meeting wherein a majority of the membership is present

shall be open to the public and is subject to the Brown Act, California Government Code Section
54950 et. seq.

Page 1 of 2



3. Sub-committee meetings of less than a quorum of the full membership of the committee may be
held as needed to research and compile information to appraise the full committee, and shall not
be subject to the Brown Act

4. Any member of the Strategic Plan Committee who has a conflict of interest on any item before
the committee shall announce on the public record the nature of the conflict, vacate his/her seat,
and recuse themselves from discussing and voting on said item.

SECTION 5. Quorum.

1. A quorum is necessary at a regular meeting of the Strategic Plan Committee for any action to be
taken. A majority of the members of the committee shall constitute a quorum.

2. Tn the event that there is no quorum, any discussions which are held by those assembled shall be

regarded as informal.

SECTION 6. Attendance.

1. A Strategic Plan Committee member who is absent without excuse from two (2) regular
meetings of the Committee in a six (6) month period shall automatically forfeit his/her position.

. Absences will be deemed as excused if the Chairperson is notified forty-eight (48) hours in
advance of the meeting.

SECTION 7. Amendments.

1. Amendments to these bylaws may be initiated at any Strategic Plan Committee meeting, to be
voted upon not sooner than the next regularly scheduled meeting. Bylaws shall not conflict with
the City Code or other Council approved policy, rule, or regulation.

2. Recommendation of any amendment shall require a majority vote of the Committee members.

3. Upon approval by the Strategic Plan Committee, these bylaws, or future amendments to these
bylaws, shall take effect immediately.

Page 2 of 2
STATEGIC PLAN COMMITTEE BYLAWS ADOPTED MAY 14, 2013



9G5¢

NV1d JI931VvdlS ‘81

's1eaJyl pue ‘sajjunuoddo ‘sassauyeam ‘syiBualls 1oy spuels
1OMS ‘sisp|oyayels snouea pue ‘s3ullesw AJunwiwod ‘yaseasino
Alunwwod ayy wouy passyied seapr Asy sy sazuewwns ‘T°gT Ijqel
‘3|gel 1OMS 3YL "A8ajesis sy dojonsp o1 uonewuojul ayj sazAjeue
1uswa|3 ueld 213a1e43S Y3 pue ueld [essuas ay) Suidojanap ul jeaNI
Sem uoljew.oyui siyl 'ssasoid aiepdn uejd jesauaf ayy noysnouyy
Pa3109[]02 sem Indul Ajunwiwo) “asaydsowle umoy jjews [einyndoude
s} 9Alasaud 03 auisap AjBuouis Aayl Inq ‘ymoud dlwouoda Joy Jages
aJe AND 8yl jo siuapisay -uolleudels J|WOUOID JO ISUIS B Paleasd
9ABY 0] SWII3s )i pue 3aseq anuaAal S,AlD 9Y3 SUWI| 3seq J1WOoUoID
9SI9AIp-uou 5,A1D) By ‘sjuaplisas sl Joy sqol 4oy s3I Suipunouins
uo Juapuadap s| umos jjews ayi ‘|eadde |eauolsiy sy audsaq "UOISSIA
9y} 01 uonippe u| SIUS [BIII03SIY |BJIADS O 3woy SI elsnneg uenf
ues "AJo1siH jo AuD 3yl pajjea Ajrde si eisiineg uenr ues jo AuD ayy

suonlipuo) Sunsixy z'g1

STOZ ‘T 15quianop

"Alixs|dwod pue ajeas ul Alea
sweJsgdoud ay] "sadlijew uornejuawa|dwi ayl ul VETIVETE]
3y} JO ||e wod} swetdoud sisi| Juswd|3 ue|d Ji8a1e41S 3y

‘ue|d 213a1e.1s siy1 Suneaud jo
$53204d By} Ul WAyl P3A|OAU| pue DdS 3yl Aq 3uop diom
3Y31 sapn|dul ue|d |eJaua ay3 03 3jepdn ay] “uSWNI0p
SIY1 JO 1U0J} Y3 Je paisl SI DdS 9yl jo diysiaquisiy
‘ue|d J1891e41S B Ylm dn Bwod 03 [puno) Al 2yl
Ag pajutodde sem (Dds) 2933WWOo) ue|d o1891e43S By

"38ueyd
S3JUBISWNJIID J3Ylo pue ‘Sjuswadinbal ‘suoilipuod
se jdepe pue aAjoAs 01 sapjjod pue sjeod sa|qeus
pue ‘Guiyyels pue ‘Suipuny ‘sapuioud Buiiias Aq sapijod
pue sjeod ue|d |elsuad saziue8lo 3 's|eod asay] spiemo)
SAOW pue 3]eulpJO0I 01 Pasn SUODIIPE PUB ‘SIIINO53J
‘sassadoud  ‘saiyaioe BuioBuo ayr yum Suoje ‘sjeod
9s53y3 sisi] AjaAaIsusyaldwod Juswa|3 ueld 21991e.41S ayy
'S|eod ulenad piemol Suppiom s AlD 3yl JBYY S3UNSUD
pue aininy syl Joy sanoud s1as Juiuueld 218918418

uolnnposu] 1°8T

NV1d JI931VHlS 8T

ubjd (D13U39 GEQZ DISIINDY UDN[ UDS



LSC

NV1d J1931VHlS ‘81

alewn pIN

Suisnoy ajqep.ioye 210W 10} PaaN

Aluno) ojuag ues pue ‘Ja1si|joH
10 A ‘ssadoig “ed 1e1s syl Suipn)oul
‘sispjoyajels A3y [euoi3al yim 33el10qe||od

jJusawuianog
jeJ0] Ul Spuny 210w J0j pasN

wield 39)j3d 1a1em |eljuad pjing

A1ISIDAIP 5SBUISNG 4O o8]

uejd JuaWIeaI] J91BMIISEM
JO UOI3eJ0|3J JO} S2uUBN|Ju| o 3I3yds ui pueT]

saijl|ioe} pue
ainjoniisesjul 3joAdIg 491199 04 PAsN

JUDWAOJ2A3P |[1jUl JO) pUB| JUBDEA

suawanoldwi

Anunwwod Ajpuati4
)|EM3PIS pue peod 10} pIaN

pJeydIo pue yied 91e1s Jo asn Ajunwwo)

aseusis Jo yoe] Aujigexiem

SJuUaAd Ajunwwod 1oy sadeds dljgnd

Buip|ing

Alunwiwod pue ‘wsunol ‘suods
‘uoI1E3103J Ui UOIIRIOgR| 0D BuyIe]
sayainyd pue ‘syled ‘sjooyas ‘Aud

ouisadwe) 013e3] 3|
‘SOIIAILR [BANY NI 10} S9Je|d

syjed a)iq pue s|ieJ] 129uu0)

sqof

UMO] 3jBS ‘BWIID MO
|e20] jo yoe| ‘uone|ndod SulNWwo)d 194 ’ 1

ured Axisnpur 33| Joj pue| 3]qisSaNY 04300 JYje)} pUE SUOLEIO] SassauIsng [|ews
pooyj 01 uadzelpy U ’ SupyJed snq pue 21jgnd Suppoe )
Agqueau T
S3UOZ 3|qRISUINA 2oeds uado pue aunynause 122104d swesSoud yinoA jeso| ysnoua JoN BZUY 3( I UOIILIIIA 104
IYPIIM saipunuioddo pue adeds uadQ
saul| suoiled0| A3y J19Y10 pue jlied (23S SIEpIEY

1ney 01 Apwixold

|[euoieN s3jeuuld o3 Ajwixoud asiUaApY

‘s1auea|d AIp -'9'l) spaau sluapisal
[e20] SulAIaS $3553UISNG 4O Y JeT]

AllUNWWOD UMO] J{BWS 13IND

Suipun

ipuny Yimoud aaniny 01 SAIDNPUOI uonqllsip
MVETTIVEETYo):] s8uip(Iing [eo1101s1Y 918ACUR) PUB dAIBS3Id

- 10U S1 84n1oNJiseljul UIN) pue 2onposd |eanyndudy

9GT 21noy 3els
Jo uawdojanaq

==
o

yaeasno diqnd
pue a8eusis Ja13aq ySnouy} wsuno} puedxy

s1ap|oyaxels

>wv_ uami1aq UoI}eIIUNWWOD JO }IeT

23.E/10L1SIp [E2LIOISIY

ST

STOZ ‘T 19qWanoN

pue uolssi - Ai0IsIH J0 AND
AT

e Nl (| Pt _ e~ IR

ub|d |D43UID GEQZ DISIINDG ULN[ UDS




86¢ NV1d JID31VHLS 8T

suoildo uoijepuiodsuel;

SAlleuwId)e pue jisues) algnd Jo yoe
Aud ay3 Burysia

$3sNq JOJ S3IN0J UOIIR[NIID JOOY
¥203s Suisnoy pjo

Aujenb uajem Jooq

JUBWADIOUD
9p02 40 3| ‘aduasald 33)j0d jo yoe

ST0Z ‘T 13quianopy ubjd |013U3D GEQZ DISIINDY UDBN[ UDS



San Juan Bautista 2035 General Plan November 1, 2015

18.3 Vision for San Juan Bautista

The SPC worked hard over the previous year to develop a vision statement for the City. The
preferred growth plan encapsulates this vision, which states:

"San Juan Bautista is a vibrant, thriving community cherishing its history,
cultural heritage, the arts and one another, honoring the needs of its residents
and businesses and offering the world a destination amidst boundless
recreational opportunities and agricuitural resources.”

The preferred alternative in this General Plan envisions San Juan Bautista moving forward while
maintaining its small town charm and history. One key goal is to diversify the City’s economic
activity. Since agriculture is an important industry for the City, expanding agriculture to include
agricultural processing is one strategy to grow the agricultural industry. Infill development is a
key land use strategy to protect natural resources and to maintain walkability. This type of
development strategy balances the desire to preserve San Juan Bautista’s smalil town character
and the desire to create economic growth.

18.3.1 Key Stakeholders
Key Stakeholders for the City of San Juan Bautista:

1. City of San Juan Bautista personnel and departments (City Manager, City Council, Public
Works Department, Planning Commission, City Planning Department, City Attorney)

2. Local residents and businesses

3. Mission San Juan Bautista

4. San Juan Bautista State Historic Park

5. Business community

6. San luan Bautista Unified School District
7. San Benito County Government

8. California Department of Transportation (Caltrans)
9. Local youth

10. State Government

11. Federal Government

12. San Benito County

13. AMBAG
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18.3.2 Funding Sources

From 2007 to 2012, utility fees and property taxes provided the greatest source of revenue for
the City. In addition to previous funding sources, possible funding sources can emerge from the

following:

10.

Introducing additional development fees, since the "Quimby Act" and AB 1600 provide
the legal authority to cities to access impact fees in relation to new development.
Establishing special assessment districts to identify properties where benefits can be
exacted.

The City can partner with other agencies on joint projects, thus allowing the sharing of
acquisition, development, and operations costs and the leveraging of additional grants
not otherwise available.

A non-profit foundation for the preservation of the historic character of the town can be
established for raising necessary funds relating to projects in the Historic Downtown
area. Such a non-profit can accept donations from individual parties and organizations.
Corporate sponsorships can support facility and program funding. Many corporations,
such as Pepsi, fund park development through special programs.

"Natural Areas Heritage Programs" by State Parks fund the acquisition of land, as well as
the restoration of, and public access to, trails.

Parks Bond Act 2000 (Proposition 12) is a source for per capita grant programs relating to
recreation.

Easement dedications should be pursued in lieu of fee simple ownership for trail
projects. Tax exemptions and other benefits for land donations for parks and other
facilities can also be pursued.

Funds can be borrowed from other city funds.

Bonding can be considered if there is a regular funding source to provide long term debt
repayment. Such a funding method can capitalize on unique opportunities not available
in the short run. :

Creating a special district, such as a recreation or historic district, can generate funds that
may be allocated to specific projects while using the City Council to serve as the district’s
board of directors to minimize bureaucracy.

Additional Sources of revenue may include:

11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Neighborhood Stabilization Program
Caltrans' Local Assistance Program

Transportation for Livable Communities Program

Heritage Fund Grant

The Mills Act

Cal GRIP Grant

Home Owner Property Tax Relief (HOPTR)
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18.3.3 Expenditure

San Juan Bautista’s main expenses from 2007 to 2012 included contractual services and capital
expenditures. The use of funds on contractual services reflects the fact that San juan Bautista is
a small town, so many of the services are contracted out for more efficient use of resources. The
next largest expenditure for the City is capital expenditures, which include storage and
equipment. Much of the financial revenue is already allocated to existing needs, so many of the
new proposals in the General Plan Update will need to identify potential funding sources.

18.3.4 Programs

Each element developed goals, objectives, policies, and programs based on community input
from community meetings and outreach events. These programs reflect the SWOT table. In
addition to the programs, the Implementation Matrix in the Appendix to this chapter shows the
timing, responsible parties and potential funding source. The purpose of this matrix is to provide
stakeholders with the tools to effectively implement the general plan.

T —
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\~7=8-_,;"' CITY COUNCIL REPORT

AGENDA TITLE: NO FAULT EVICTIONS

DATE: December 17, 2019
FROM: Don Reynolds, City Manager
RECOMMENDATION:

This matter is for discussion purposes only.
BACKGROUND:

The State has identified sharp increases in housing rents as a result of the housing shortage, and
this is a contributor to homelessness and overcrowded housing. As a result, one of the many
bills signed by the Governor this year caps rent increases effective January 1. Some cities,
including Salinas, were concerned that in December, landlords would rush to increase rents
before the rent increase cap takes effect. Attached is the Salinas report that summarizes this
issue.

To pass an ordinance like this would require that the City make a finding of a specific health and
safety concern. The City Attorney wrote: “an urgency ordinance would require special findings that
the urgency measure is needed to protect public safety, health and welfare and a 4/5 vote. You can
pass an urgency ordinance at a special meeting. If you are only going to discuss this at the regular
meeting, you can pass something at a special meeting but you are running out of time.“ We are
running out of time.

l|Page
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CITY OF SALINAS
COUNCIL STAFF REPORT

DATE: December 3, 2019

DEPARTMENT: OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY

FROM: CHRISTOPHER A. CALLIHAN, CITY ATTORNEY
TITLE: EMERGENCY ORDINANCE TEMPORARILY PROHIBITING NO-
FAULT EVICTIONS

RECOMMENDED MOTION:

A motion to adopt an emergency ordinance temporarily prohibiting no-fault evictions.

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that the City Council adopt the proposed emergency ordinance.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

This emergency ordinance, proposed pursuant to Salinas Charter Section 11, addresses the
affordable housing and homelessness crises in Salinas by temporarily prohibiting no-fault
evictions until California Assembly Bill 1482 (the Tenant Protection Act of 2019) takes effect on
January 1, 2020. The emergency ordinance, with certain exceptions, prohibits an owner of
residential real property from terminating a tenancy without just cause, which is required to be
stated in the written notice to terminate tenancy when one or more tenants have continuously and
lawfully occupied the residential real property for twelve (12) months or more.

This item was recommended by Council members Davis and Barrera, with the support of Mayor
Gunter. Pursuant to Salinas Charter Section 11.8(a), the proposed emergency ordinance may be
passed only upon the affirmative votes of six (6) City Council members and will take effect
immediately.

DISCUSSION:

On September 11, 2019, California Assembly Bill 1482 (AB 1482) passed the legislature and on
October 8, 2019, the Governor signed AB 1482 into law. AB 1482 becomes effective on January
1, 2020 and will limit annual rent increases and will prohibit an owner from terminating a tenancy
without just cause if the tenant has lived in a unit for twelve (12) months or more. After AB 1482
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becomes effective, the prohibitions on eviction without just cause will go into effect and if rents
were increased after March 15, 2019, the rent on January 1, 2020, is reduced to the rent as of March
15, 2019, plus the maximum increase allowed by AB 1482. The proposed emergency ordinance
addresses only no-fault evictions and does not address rent limits.

AB1482 includes no-fault eviction protections for tenants if they have lived in a unit for twelve

(12) months or more. Just cause eviction protection would require a landlord to have a valid reason

for terminating a tenancy. Some examples include non-payment of rent, violation of a lease term,
and the creation of a nuisance.

The proposed emergency ordinance would temporarily prohibit no-fault evictions through
December 31, 2019, for residential real property that will be subject to the protections of AB 1482
beginning on January 1, 2020. The prohibition on no-fault evictions is not retroactive. The
proposed emergency ordinance is substantially similar to AB 1482 and local ordinances adopted
by neighboring jurisdictions, including the City of Seaside and Monterey County.

Prior to drafting the proposed emergency ordinance, the City Attorney met with community
members representing tenants and community members representing property owners and
landlords to listen to their concerns regarding AB 1482 and the effects on their respective
constituencies. On November 20, 2019, the City Attorney met with Daniel Gonzalez, Sabino
Lopez, and Armando Asencio from the Center for Community Advocacy; and Monica Gurmilan
and Cesar Lara from Building Healthy Communities. On that same day, the City Attorney met
with Gloria Moore, Chuck Cryder, Gail Valdez, and Carrie Appling from the Monterey County
Association of Realtors. All of these community members’ insights, knowledge, and experience
were critical to the preparation of the proposed ordinance. All understood and acknowledged the
need to protect tenants from no-fault evictions.

CEQA CONSIDERATION:

The action of adopting the proposed ordinance is categorically exempt from the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Guidelines section 15061(b)(3).

STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVE:

Adoption of the proposed emergency ordinance supports the City Council’s goal of promoting a
safe and livable community.

FISCAL AND SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:

The City Council’s adoption of the proposed emergency ordinance would not have an impact on
the City’s General Fund, Measure E, or Measure G.

Page | 2



DEPARTMENTAL COORDINATION

The City Attorney’s Department did not coordinate with other City Departments on the proposed
emergency ordinance.

ATTACHMENTS:

Emergency Ordinance
AB 1482
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ORDINANCE NO. (N.C.S.)

AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE ENACTING A TEMPORARY PROHIBITION ON
NO-FAULT EVICTIONS

City Attorney Impartial Analysis

This emergency ordinance, proposed pursuant to Salinas Charter Section i i, addresses ihe
affordable housing and homelessness crises in Salinas by temporarily prohibiting no-fault
evictions until California Assembly Bill 1482 (the Tenant Protection Act of 2019) takes effect on
January 1, 2020. The emergency ordinance, with certain exceptions, prohibits an owner of
residential real property from terminating a tenancy without just cause, which is required to be
stated in the written notice to terminate tenancy when one or more tenants have continuously
and lawfully occupied the residential real property for twelve (12) months or more.

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article XI, Section 7 of the California Constitution, the City of Salinas
(City) has broad authority to maintain the public peace, health, and safety of its community and to
preserve the quality of life for its residents and may make and enforce all regulations and
ordinances using its police powers in order to do so; and

WHEREAS, On October 8, 2019, California’s Governor signed into law the Tenant Protection Act
0f 2019, Assembly Bill 1482 (AB 1482), which in part addresses California’s affordable housing
crisis by prohibiting evictions without “just cause,” otherwise known as “no-fault” evictions, and
the raising of rents above a specified amount; and

WHEREAS, AB 1482 will not become effective until January 1, 2020; and

WHEREAS, the City has one of the least affordable housing markets in California and the United
States: the Salinas metropolitan area is one of seven in California that ranks in the top ten least
affordable in the United States according to an analysis of 2016 census data by Harvard’s Joint
Center for Housing Studies; and

WHEREAS, eviction creates particular hardships for individuals with households of limited
means, given the shortage of housing, particularly affordable housing, within the City of Salinas
and the Monterey Bay region, generally; and

WHEREAS, Salinas is experiencing an affordable housing crisis and a humanitarian crisis of
homelessness; and

WHEREAS, in advance of the implementation of AB 1482, no-fault eviction notices and threats
of eviction have increased; and

WHEREAS, the City is aware of specific instances where long-term tenants have received rent
increase notice in excess of what will be lawful under AB 1482, have received eviction notices
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based upon the premise of a need for repairs to the rental units, and in some cases tenants have
received both rent increase and eviction notices; and

WHEREAS, among those affected are low and very-low income tenants who have no other viable
housing options once evicted from their rental units due, for example, to a lack of resources and/or
a lack of vacant and affordable units; and

WHEREAS, due to a lack of education, a lack of resources, and in some cases having an
undocumented status, some residents facing either rent increases, eviction, or both have no
resource against unlawful rent increases and/or no-fault evictions; and

WHEREAS, when families with children are evicted from their rental units, the children’s
education may be interrupted; moving during the middle of a school year may affect a child’s
ability to remain within the same school district and to remain at the same school site; and

WHEREAS, in light of the presence of no-fault evictions occurring prior to AB 1482’s effective
date, Salinas can expect that more of its residents will be subject to no-fault evictions that would
otherwise violation AB 1482; and

WHEREAS, such evictions present an immediate threat to public peace, health, and safety of
Salinas residents and an emergency to Salinas residents who would be subject to no-fault evictions
in that they will cause a displacement of residents during the winter and close to the November
and December holidays and, with a shortage of both market rate and affordable rental units, will
contribute to an increase in the homeless population in the City; and

WHEREAS, the Salinas City Council declares that based on these findings no-fault evictions prior
to AB 1482’s effective date will create an emergency situation which may be addressed through
an emergency ordinance implementing provisions of AB 1482 prior to its effective date; and

WHEREAS, Salinas Charter Section 11.8(a) allows an emergency ordinance to be passed by six
(6) voted of the City Council; and

WHEREAS, Salinas Charter Section 11.8(b) allows an emergency ordinance to take effect
immediately, as indicated in the emergency ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF SALINAS as follows:

SECTION 1. Recitals. The above recitals are true and correct and are by this reference
incorporated herein in their entirety.

SECTION 2. Title. The title of this emergency ordinance shall be “Temporary Prohibition of No-
Fault Evictions.”
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SECTION 3. Findings and Purpose.

A. On October 8, 2019, Assembly Bill 1482 (AB 1482), the Tenant Protections Act of 2019,
was passed to address a key cause of California’s affordable housing crisis by preventing rent
gouging and arbitrary evictions.

B. Escalating real estate values provide an incentive to landlords to evict long-term, lower-
income tenants, without cause or under the guise of a need for repairs, to raise rents and to attract
wealthier tenants, before AB 1482 becomes effective. Tenants in Salinas have reported
experiencing an increase of no-fault eviction notices and threats of eviction; therefore, it is
imperative that the City implement temporary strategies to keep people housed.

C. This ordinance will temporarily prohibit no-fault evictions through December 31, 2019,
for residential real property that will be covered by AB 1482 beginning on January 1, 2020.

SECTION 4. Definitions.

The following words and phrases, whenever used in this ordinance, shall be construed as defined
in this Section:

A. Owner. The term “Owner” is any person, acting as a principal or through an agent, offering
residential real property for rent, and includes a predecessor in interest to the owner.

B. Residential Real Property. The term “residential real property” is any dwelling or unit that
is intended to be used for human habitation.

SECTION 5. Temporary Prohibition on No-Fault Evictions.

A. Until the effective date of AB 1482, after one or more tenants have continuously and
lawfully occupied a residential real property for twelve (12) months or more, the owner of
residential real property shall not terminate the tenancy without at-fault just cause, which shall be
stated in the written notice of termination of tenancy. This prohibition shall also apply to an
owner’s action that constitutes constructive eviction under California law. An owner’s failure to
comply with this ordinance shall render any notice of termination of tenancy void. This section
may be asserted as an affirmative defense in an unlawful detainer action. Terminations that are
required to comply with an order issued by a government agency or court requiring that the
residential real property be vacated, or comport with due process, federal, or state law, are
exempted from this prohibition. An owner’s failure to comply with this ordinance does not
constitute a criminal offense.

B. At-fault just cause is the following:

1. Default in the payment of rent.
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2. A breach of a material term of the lease, as described in paragraph (3) of Section
1161 of the California Code of Civil Procedure, including, but not limited to, violation of a
provision of a lease after being issued a written notice to correct the violation.

3. Maintaining, committing, or permitting the maintenance of continuation of a
nuisance as described in paragraph (4) of Section 1161 of the California Code of Civil Procedure.

4. Criminal activity by the tenant on the residential real property, including common
areas, or any criminal activity or criminal threat, as defined in subdivision (a) of Section 422 of
the California Penal Code, on or off the residential real property against the owner of residential
real property.

5. Assigning or subletting the premises in violation of the tenant’s lease, as described
in paragraph (4) of Section 1161 of the California Code of Civil Procedure.

6. The tenant’s refusal to allow the owner to enter the residential real property as
authorized by Sections 1101.5 and 1954 of the California Civil Code, and Sections 13113.7 and
17926.1 of the California Health and Safety Code.

7. Using the premises for an unlawful purpose as described in paragraph (4) of Section
1161 of the California Code of Civil Procedure.

8. The employee, agent, or licensee’s failure to vacate after their termination as an
employee, agent, or licensee as described in paragraph (1) of Section 1161 of the California Code
of Civil Procedure.

9. When the tenant fails to deliver possession of the residential real property after
providing the owner written notice as provided in Section 1946 of the California Code of Civil
Code of the tenant’s intention to terminate the hiring of real property, or makes a written offer to
surrender that is accepted in writing by the owner, but fails to deliver possession at the time
specified in the written notice as described in paragraph (5) of Section 1161 of the California Code
of Civil Procedure.

C. If an owner can show any of the following circumstances related to a termination of
tenancy, the termination will be exempt from the provisions of this ordinance:

1. Owner will imminently demolish the residential real property or otherwise
permanently remove the real property from any residential use or purpose in accordance with
California Government Code Sections 7060-7060.7.
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2. The owner, or one of the owner’s parents, grandparents, grandchildren, children,
spouse, domestic partner intent to move into and to reside in the residential real property as his,
her, or their primary residence. The residential real property must be occupied as the primary
residence within three months of the tenant vacating the residence and continue to occupy the
residential property for at least one year.

3. The need to make substantial repairs in order for a dwelling to be habitable and to
be in compliance with applicable health and safety codes, and that such repairs cannot be
completed while the dwelling unit is occupied.

D. This ordinance shall not apply to and of the following residential real property or residential
circumstances:

1. Transient and tourist hotel occupancy as defined in Subdivision (b) of Section 1940
of the California Civil Code.

2. Housing accommodations in a non-profit hospital, religious facility, extended care
facility, licensed residential care facility for the elderly, as defined in Section 1569.2 of the
California Health and Safety Code, or an adult residential facility, as defined in Chapter 6 of
Division 6 of Title 22 of the Manual of Policies and Procedures published by the State Department
of Social Services.

3. Dormitories owned and operated by an institution of higher education or a
kindergarten and grades 1 to 12, inclusive, school.

4. Housing accommodations in which the tenant shares bathroom or kitchen facilities
with the owner who maintains their principal residence at the residential real property.

5. Single-family owner-occupied residences, including a resident in which the owner-
occupant rents or leases no more than two (2) units or bedrooms, including, but not limited to, an

accessory dwelling unit or a junior accessory dwelling unit.

6. A duplex in which the owner occupied one (1) of the units as the owner’s principal
place of residence at the beginning of the tenancy, so long as the owner continues in occupancy.

7. Housing that has been issued a certificate of occupancy within the previous fifteen
(15) years.

8. Residential real property that is alienable separate from the title to any other
dwelling unit, provided that the owner is not any of the following:
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a. A real estate investment trust, as defined in Section 856 of the Internal
Revenue Code.

b. A corporation.
c. A limited liability company in which at least one member is a corporation.

9. Housing restricted by deed, regulatory restriction contained in an agreement with a
governmental agency, or other recorded document as affordable housing for persons and families
of very low, low, or moderate income, as defined in Section 50093 of the Health and Safety Code,
or subject to an agreement that provides housing subsidies for affordable housing for persons and
families of very low, low, or moderate income, as defined in Section 50093 of the Health and
Safety Code or comparable federal statutes.

SECTION 6. Application.

This ordinance shall apply to tenancies where the tenant remains in possession and the eviction
lawsuit has not been adjudicated.

SECTION 7. Severability.

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason held to be
invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this ordinance.
The Salinas City Council hereby declares that it would have adopted this ordinance and each
provision thereof irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences,
clauses, or phrases be declared invalid.

SECTION 8. Effective Date. This emergency ordinance shall be effective on December 3,2019
and shall expire at midnight on December 31, 2019.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 3™ day of December 2019, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:
ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

APPROVED:
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Joe Gunter, Mayor

ATTEST:

Patricia M. Barajas, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Christopher A. Callihan, City Attorney
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CITY OF SAN JUAN BAUTISTA
CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT

AGENDA TITLE: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT “101”
MEETING DATE: DECEMBER 17, 2019

SUBMITTED BY: DON REYNOLDS, CITY MANAGER
RECOMMENDATION:

This is an introduction to the City Council of the Community Development Block Grant program.
No action is being requested at this time.

BACKGROUND:

CDBG has been one of the most successful federally funded grant programs in US history. It
consolidated many “categorical grants” of the Johnson era’s “War on Poverty” program into
broadly written regulations that are designed to be tailored to fit the needs of low-income
communities through-out the nation. Any US city larger than 50,000 population, (or a collection
of smaller jurisdictions that have a collective population greater than 50,000) are eligible to
become “entitlement” agencies, and receive annual funding through a formula allocation.
Communities that are less than 50,000 population have to compete for grant allocations in what
used to be referred to as the “small city” CDBG program.

The CDBG program is designed to assist low and moderate income communities, defined as
census blocks with a majority of residents earning less than 80% of the median income. In San
Juan Bautista, there are two census blocks: one is on the western half of town and is 35.94% low-
mod income, and the other on the western side is 58.48% low and moderate income. The City as
awhole is 51.56 % eligible for these funds. A City-wide project, like building a community center
that everyone has access to, will require both census blocks to be at least 51% low/mod income
levels. There are other ways prove the eligibility of a specific program, including services for
seniors, farmworker families, or children, but these specific methods are more challenging to
manage.

The CDBG program was initially intended for “bricks and mortar projects.” Now 15% of the
funds can be used for social services. A small percentage of funds can be used to administer the
program if the cost accounting methods meet federal standards.

Attached is a 7-page summary of the State Housing and Community Development’s “CDBG”
web-site. Page 2 begins a description of eligible activities. A lot of times, CDBG is used to get
infrastructure to affordable housing, and then the housing is built using other HUD funds.
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Community facilities also qualify, but these facilities have to demonstrate that sufficient funding
exists to operate them.

Planning and Technical Assistance grants (PTA) are also available, which may help the City get
to a place (through planning, design, community outreach, environmental work, site acquisition)
where it is ready to build something. Page 4 lists some of these requirements including a Citizen
Participation Plan, survey of un-met needs of low-income residents, impediments to fair housing
studies and other assorted policies and practices that must be in place to confirm eligibility for
funding.

CDBG funds for small cities are awarded competitively through the State. This annual process
begins with a Notice of Funds Availability (“NOFA”) in December, with applications due in mid-
February. This year, the deadline has been pushed out to mid-March. If selected, grant agreements
are executed before July 1, projects are funded after the federal budget is adopted and the
environmental clearances have been approved.

Prior to the adoption of the City’s Housing Element, the City was not eligible to apply for
Community Development Block Grant. This is because for small cities in California, the State
controls the distribution of CDBG. The last time the City applied for CDBG was 2014. It was an
attempt to resolve the water issue. But this application was not successful.

DISCUSSION:

The City’s CIP budget includes $100,000 from CDBG for a planning grant to study “housing
program design.” It is staff’s interpretation that this is a PTA grant that would provide the
necessary technical support to prepare the City for the use of CDBG funds. It would include a 90-
day community survey and outreach process in Spanish and English.

After meeting with the Aromas San Juan Bautista School District, a teen or youth community
center was discussed. The Strategic Planning Committee did not consider a community or youth
center in its “Parks Master Plan.” But services for youth are a priority.

If the City is interested in pursuing this goal, it could use a PTA grant to start the process toward
a multi-million-dollar application to be prepared next year at this time. Assuming a site at the San
Juan School can be developed, the City will still be required to show how the on-going daily
services would be paid for and provided. Only sustainable programs would be competitive. In
one jurisdiction the City Manager worked for, a facility was bought for the Boys and Girls Club,
and later it turned out that they could not fund its operations. This was between 2007-2011 when
the Great Recession impacted this program’s success. It takes time to build the relationships
necessary to achieve these types of dreams.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This is a discussion item and there is no immediate fiscal impact. Large multi-million dollar grant
awards are possible, including as much as $500,000 for public services. If the City were successful
in receiving HUD funds, there are a whole slew of federal audit requirements that will have to be
met. Rarely are the costs of administering a CDBG grant sufficient to pay for the cost of
administration.
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California Department of
Housing and Community Development

Community Development Block Program (CDBG)

Community Development Block Program

Contact

Application, General Program, and Standard
Agreements Questions -
CDBGNOFA@hcd.ca.gov

Purpose

(CDBQG)

Program Details

Purpose

Assistance Type

Eligible Applicants and Activities

Advisory Committee

CDBG Programs

CDBG Program Redesign

Guidelines and Regulations

Get Funding — Current Notice of Funding
Availability (NOFA)

Previous Notices of Funding Availability (NOFAs)
Awards

Workshop Dates and Locations

Success Stories

Map of Grants Management Representatives (by
County)

Program Forms

Management Memos

Training and Technical Assistance

CDBG Partners with rural cities and counties to improve the lives of their low- and moderate-income
residents through the creation and expansion of community and economic development opportunities in

support of livable communities.

HUD Objective: The primary federal objective of the CDBG program is the development of viable urban
communities by providing decent housing and a suitable living environment and through expanding
economic opportunities, principally, for persons of low- and moderate-income. "Persons of low and

https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/cdbg.shtmi#funding
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moderate income” are defined as families, households, and individuals whose incomes do not exceed 80
percent of the county median income, adjusted for family or household size.

Assistance Type

CDBG funds are provided as grants to non-entitlement jurisdictions. Grants can vary based on annual
allocations and activity limits. Must address one of three national objectives:

1. Benefit to low- and moderate-income persons
2. Aid in the prevention or elimination of slums and blight, or
3. To meet an urgent need

Planning and Technical Assistance Grants (PTA) are available through the annual Notice of Funding
Availability (NOFA).

Eligible Applicants

Non-entitlement jurisdictions [cities with populations under 50,000 and counties with populations under
200,000 in unincorporated areas that do not participate in the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) CDBG entitlement program]; non-federally recognized Native American communities;
and, Colonia as defined by the National Affordable Housing Act of 1990.

Eligible Activities

Community Development (CD)
Housing

¢ Includes single- and multi-family rehabilitation, rental housing acquisition or homeownership assistance, and
activities that support new housing construction.

Public Improvements
¢ Includes water and wastewater systems, and rural utilities such as gas and electric services.
Community Facilities

¢ Includes day care centers, domestic violence shelters, food banks, community centers, medical and dental
facilities, and fire stations.

Public Services
¢ Includes staff and operating costs associated with the community facilities.
Planning and Technical Assistance (PTA)

* Includes studies and plans for housing, public works, and community facilities that meet CDBG national
objectives and provide principal benefit to low-income persons.

Native American

* Housing and housing-related activities.
* Water, sewer, and housing.

hitps:/iwww.hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/cdbg.shtmi#funding 217
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Colonia

* Housing, including single- and multi-family rehabilitation, rental housing acquisition or homeownership
assistance, and activities that support new housing construction.

Economic Development (ED)
Enterprise Fund

* Grants for loans to businesses for working capital, land acquisition, equipment purchase, inventory
purchase, debt restructuring, and other direct assistance. Grants to support businesses by providing water
and sewer services, access roads, and other public facilities. Microenterprise funds may provide credit,
general support (e.g., childcare, transportation), or technical assistance for persons developing
microenterprises.

Planning and Technical Assistance (PTA)

* Studies and plans for economic development activities that meet CDBG national objectives and provide
principal benefit to low-income persons.

Over-the-Counter

® Grants for the creation or retention of jobs for low-income workers. May include loans or loan guarantees to
businesses for construction, on-site improvements, equipment purchase, working capital, and site
acquisition. May also include loans for business start-ups, grants for publicly-owned infrastructure, and loans
or grants for small business incubators.

Advisory Committee

The role of the CDBG Advisory Committee is to provide input and recommendations to the Department of
Housing and Community Development (HCD) on the CDBG Program that are consistent with federal
requirements and result in good policies, procedures and regulations designed to benefit low- to moderate-
income individuals residing in non-entitlement communities of California.

The CDBG Advisory Committee Charter is currently under review and development.

CDBG Advisory Committee Members

* CDBG Advisory Committee Members (PDF)
* Advisory Committee Representation Chart (PDF)

Committee Process

Meeting Agendas and Minutes

CDBG Programs

Community Development

¢ Community Development
® Native American
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/cdbg.shtml#funding 317
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* Colonia
¢ Planning and Technical Assistance

Economic Development

® Qver-the-Counter (OTQC)
* Enterprise Fund
© Business Assistance
o Microenterprise Assistance
o Planning and Technical Assistance

CDBG Program Redesign

Since the passage of California Senate Bill 106 in July 2017, the Department of Housing and Community
Development has commenced efforts to redesign the CDBG Program for non-entitlement jurisdictions. To
better understand the efforts of the redesign process, please visit CDBG Program Redesign.

To share any feedback or for any additional information, contact HCD at cdbgredesign@hcd.ca.gov.

Guidelines and Regulations

» New! 2019 Final Guidelines (PDF) — Most current state regulations.
* 2016 Federal Regulations (& — Most current federal regulations.

Get Funding

HCD releases a Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) that includes all CDBG-eligible activities.

Current NOFA

Application due date: February 26, 2019 has passed. Please be sure you are subscribed to the CDBG emailing
list to receive notifications and announcements.,

2018 Funding Limits and Eligible Activities Chart (PDF)
2018 CDBG NOFA and Amendment #1 (DOC)

2018 CDBG NOFA and Amendment #2 (PDF)

2018 CDBG NOFA Applicant Self-Scores by Activity (PDF)
New! 2018 CDBG Final Point Score and Awardee List (PDF)
2018 Appendices

* Appendix A Non-Entitlement CDBG Jurisdictions Census and American Community Survey (ACS) Data for
Need Scoring (PDF) Revised - 10/24/2018

* Appendix B Housing Element and Growth Control Requirements (PDF)

* Appendix C Citizen Participation, Public Hearings, and Public Information File Requirements (PDF) Revised -
10/24/2018

¢ Appendix D Sample Resolution of the Governing Body (PDF) Revised - 10/24/2018

* Appendix E Econamic Development Over-the-Counter Application Process (PDF)

https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/cdbg.shtmi#funding 417
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Appendix F IDIS Matrix CDBG Eligibility Activity Codes and National Objectives (PDF)

Appendix G Section 504 Self-Evaluation (PDF)

Appendix H Accessing CDBG Income Limits by County and HUD Low-Mod Income Area Benefit Data (PDF)
Appendix | Cash Match Requirement for PTA Applications (PDF)

Appendix ] Determining Service Area (PDF)

Appendix K Joint Powers Agreements (PDF)

Appendix L 2018 CDBG Application Scoring Details (DOC) Deleted - Please see Self Score Workbook
Appendix M CDBG Income Survey Information (PDF) Revised - 10/24/2018

Appendix N CDBG Request for Waiver Process (PDF) Revised - 01/07/2019

Appendix O State Objectives Criteria (PDF) Revised - 10/24/2018

List of CDBG Activity Application Forms

Application Forms - Required for all Applications
© New! Application Summary (XLS) Revised - 01/04/2019
© Grant Management Capacity Application and Instructions (Not Applicable to Over the Counter) (DOC)
Revised - 11/29/2018
© New! CDBG Self Score Workboaok (XLS) Revised - 01/04/2019
Economic Development (ED) Enterprise Fund Applications
© ED Business Assistance Application and Instructions (DOC) — Revised 11/29/2018
° ED Microenterprise Assistance Application and Instructions (DOC) — Revised 11/29/2018
Economic Development (ED) Over-the-Counter Applications
© ED OTC Project Inquiry Form (DOC) — Revised 11/29/2018
© ED OTC Special ED Application Form (DOC) — Revised 11/29/2018
© ED OTC Special ED Activity Instructions (DOC) — Revised 11/29/2018
Housing Activities Applications
© Homeownership Assistance Application and Instructions (DOC) — Revised 11/29/2018
© Housing Rehabilitation Program (1-4 Units) Application and Instructions (DOC) — Revised 11/29/2018
© Housing Rehabilitation Project Multi-Family Application and Instructions (DOC) — Revised 11/29/2018
Public Improvements Activity Applications
© Public Improvements Application and Instructions (DOC) — Revised 11/29/2018
© Public Improvements In Support of Housing New Construction Application and Instructions (DOC) —
Revised 11/29/2018
Public Facilities Activity Application
© Public Facilities Application and Instructions (DOC) — Revised 11/29/2018
Public Services Activity Application
© Public Services Application and Instructions (DOC) — Revised 11/29/2018
© Code Enforcement Application and Instructions (DOC) — Revised 11/29/2018
Planning and Technical Assistance Activity Application
°© Planning & Technical Assistance Application and Instructions (DOC) — Revised 11/29/2018
Supplemental Activity Forms
© Supplemental Form Program (DOC) — Revised 11/29/2018
© Supplemental Form Project (DOC) — Revised 11/29/2018

2018 CDBG NOFA FAQs (PDF) — Revised 02/11/2019

2018 CDBG NOFA Application Workshop Presentation (PDF)

https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/aclive-funding/cdbg.shtml#funding
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+ Previous NOFAs

+ Awards

Workshop Dates and Locations

There are no workshops available at this time.

Success Stories

These success stories (PDF) highlight project examples of what CDBG program funding can do for your
community.

Map of Grants Management Representatives (by
County)

Map of Grants Management Representatives (PDF) — Revised 05/2019 — Includes phone numbers and email
addresses.

Program Forms

Program Forms

Management Memos

Management Memos

¢ 15-06 - Program Guidelines (PDF)
* 15-05 - Release of Chapter 8: Procurement (PDF)
* 15-04- New Required Setup and Completion Reports (PDF)
¢ 15-03 - Release of Chapter 21: ED Business Assistance (PDF)
* 15-02 - State CDBG Program Guidance on Code Enforcement Activities (PDF)
* 15-01 - State CDBG Program Change on Elderly Activities (PDF)
* 14-08 - State CDBG Program's Income Survey Requirements for Grantees (PDF)
* 14-07- State CDBG Program's Updated Low/Moderate Income Summary Data (PDF)
* 14-06 - State CDBG Program’s Procurement Requirements for Grantees (PDF)
¢ 14-05 - Program Income (Pl) Rule Changes (PDF)
¢ CDBG Grant Reprogramming for Drought Disaster (PDF)
* 14-03- CDBG Definition of Family for Income Eligibility (PDF)
* 14-02 - CDBG Program Income Reporting Delay (PDF)
* 14-01 - CDBG - Lateral Water/Sewer Hookups as a Single Activity (PDF)
* 13-07 - CDBG Citizen Participation (PDF)
¢ 13-06- CDBG Funding Outside Jurisdictional Boundaries -Supersedes Management Memo 12-01 (PDF)
¢ 13-05 - State CDBG Program'’s Procurement Requirements for Grantees (PDF)
6/7
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® 13-04 - Release of New Chapter 15: Microenterprise Program Activities and Supporting Document
References (PDF)

* 13-02 State CDBG Self-Certification of Income Form (PDF)

® 13-01 Discontinuation of the ED Progress Report (PDF)

* 12-04 Updated Environmental (NEPA) Forms and Grant Management Manual - Chapter 3 (PDF)

* 10-07State CDBG and HOME Income Calculation and Determination Guide for Federal Programs (PDF)

* 10-05 Change/Clarification on NEPA Requirements for CDBG Grants and Program Income (PDF)

* 10-04 Notice of Change in CDBG Reconstruction Policy (PDF)

* CDBG Signature Card (DOC)

See Archived Memos for additional memos.

Training and Technical Assistance

Training and Technical Assistance

CAMPAIGNS
Register to Vote

Save Our Water
Flex Alert

Real ID
 —
REAL
-
C%ﬁw
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